
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1

http://www.sisterbaywi.gov/
mailto:zeke.jackson@sisterbaywi.gov


MINUTES FOR THE JOINT MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES, THE 1 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE, THE PARKS COMMITTEE AND THE 2 

PLAN COMMISSION 3 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 15, 2015 4 

SISTER BAY VILLAGE HALL – 10693 N. BAY SHORE DRIVE 5 

 (APPROVAL PENDING) 6 

 7 

The September 15, 2015 joint meeting of the Board of Trustees, the Economic 8 
Development Committee, the Parks Committee, and the Plan Commision was called to 9 
order by Village President Dave Lienau at 6:02 P.M. 10 
 11 
Present:  Village President, Plan Commission Chair, Parks Committee Chair, and Economic 12 
Development Committee member Dave Lienau, Trustees and Parks Committee members 13 
John Clove and Scott Baker, Trustees Pat Duffy, Kathy Enquist and Nora Zacek, Plan 14 
Commission members Nate Bell, Don Howard, and Marge Grutzmacher, Economic 15 
Development Committee members Jennifer Dahl, Larry Gajda and Denise Bhirdo and 16 
Parks Committee member Sharon Doersching. 17 
 18 
Excused:  Facilities Manager Steve Mann, Village Board Member, Plan Commission 19 
Member and Marketing and Finance Committee Chair Shane Solomon, Marketing 20 
Committee Members Dan Mortier, Mike Flood, Bill Chaudoir and Jimmy Grasse, and Plan 21 
Commission and Economic Development Committee Member Eric Lundquist.    22 
 23 
Staff Members: Village Administrator Zeke Jackson, Marketing Director Jason Polecheck 24 
and Assistant Administrator Janal Suppanz.  25 
 26 
Others: Jamison Brown and Jay MacDonald of Living Labs, Laddie Chapman, Sharon 27 
Doersching, Judith Ross Stevenson, Al Gokey, Ron Kane, Steve Musinsky, Mike Schell, Ken 28 
Church, Trudy Jischke, and two other individuals. 29 
 30 
Business Items: 31 
Item No. 1. Stakeholder meeting with Wayfinding Signage Consultants from Living Labs; 32 
Consider a motion for action as appropriate: 33 
Jackson introduced Jamison Brown and Jay MacDonald of Living Labs. Living Labs has 34 
been contracted to create new wayfinding signage for the Village, and this evening Brown 35 
and MacDonald will be making a presentation regarding the entire wayfinding signage 36 
planning/development/plan implementation process. “Wayfinding” is basically defined as 37 
all of the ways in which people orient themselves in physical space, navigate from place, 38 
and interpret their surroundings. An integral part of the wayfinding process is solicitation of 39 
input from the members of the public, and, therefore, a number of informational/question 40 
and answer sessions will be conducted in the Village Hall throughout the week. Schedules 41 
have been posted in a number of locations throughout the Village, and everyone is invited 42 
and encouraged to attend as many of the meetings/informational/question and answer 43 
sessions as they can. State and Village regulations will definitely be taken into 44 
consideration when the wayfinding signage is created, but during the planning process a 45 
number of types and styles of signage, including unique and “fun” designs will be 46 
presented. Basically the following procedures will be followed: First, the Village’s 47 

2



Minutes for the September 15, 2015 Meeting of the Village Board, the Economic Development Committee, the Parks 

Committee and the Plan Commission  

I:\1. 2015 Agendas\Board\2015\2015_09\091515 Village Board, Ec. Dev., Parks Com. & PC Meeting 
Minutes - Unapproved Version.docx 
Created by Janal Suppanz on 9/2/2015; Last Printed: 10/1/2015 4:59 PM 

- 2 - 

Wayfinding Plan will be finalized, and then full size mock-ups will be created. After that 1 
the Wayfinding Plan will be adopted, DOT/County Permits will be obtained, and finally 2 
the signage will be installed. 3 
 4 
Item No. 2. Discussion regarding matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred to a 5 
Committee, Official of Employee: 6 
Lienau stressed that this will not be the only meeting which will be conducted regarding 7 
the wayfinding signage. After the planning process has concluded more joint meetings will 8 
be scheduled.    9 
 10 
Adjournment: 11 
A motion was made by Doersching, seconded by Duffy to adjourn the joint meeting of the 12 
Village Board, the Economic Development Committee, the Parks Committee and the Plan 13 
Commission at  6:42 P.M. Motion carried – All ayes. 14 
 15 
Respectfully submitted,  16 

 17 
Janal Suppanz,  18 
Assistant Administrator 19 

3



VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING MINUTES 1 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 15, 2015 2 

SISTER BAY VILLAGE HALL – 10693 N. BAY SHORE DRIVE 3 

UNAPPROVED VERSION 4 
 5 
The September 15, 2015 meeting of the Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees was called to 6 
order by Village President Dave Lienau at 6:51 P.M.   7 
 8 
Present:  President Lienau and Trustees John Clove, Pat Duffy, Scott Baker, Kathy Enquist, and 9 
Nora Zacek.    10 
 11 
Excused:  Shane Solomon 12 
 13 
Staff Members: Village Administrator Zeke Jackson and Assistant Administrator Janal Suppanz. 14 
 15 
Others:  Steve Musinsky, Don Howard, Marge Grutzmacher, Judith Ross Stevenson, Sharon 16 
Doersching, Denise Bhirdo, Ken Church, Trudy Jischke, Mike Schell, Ron Kane, Jamison Brown 17 
and Jay MacDonald of Living Labs and one other individual.  18 
 19 
Approval of the Agenda and Minutes as published: 20 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Zacek that the Agenda for the September 15, 2015 21 
meeting of the Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees be approved as presented. Motion carried 22 
– All ayes. 23 
  24 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Clove that the minutes for the August 18, 2015 25 
meeting of the Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees be approved as presented. Motion carried 26 
– All ayes. 27 
 28 
Comments and correspondence: 29 
Jackson noted that the following pieces of correspondence had been received: 30 

     A letter from Rodney Hedeen concerning the assessment process; 31 

     An e-mail from Paul Kelnhofer concerning a number of issues associated with the 32 
quarry; 33 

 A letter from Bruce Scher concerning relocation of the Fall Fest helicopter landing   34 
site and establishment of a snowmobile trail in the Village; and, 35 

   A letter from Shirley Adams in which she states that she is opposed to expansion 36 
of the quarry. 37 

He then proceeded to read all of those letters aloud.  38 
 39 

Lienau asked if anyone wished to comment regarding a non-agenda item.  40 
 41 
Denise Bhirdo suggested that whenever document revisions are being suggested the areas to be 42 
amended be highlighted in the packet materials. She also noted that she had questions 43 
concerning the actions of the Administrative Committee and the Fire Board, but would like to 44 
ask those questions when Committee reports are addressed. 45 
  46 
 47 
 48 
 49 

4



Minutes for the September 15, 2015 Meeting of the Village Board 

-2- 

Item No. 1.  Public Hearing on the 2015 Wastewater Rate Study and proposed rate changes; 1 
Discussion on the 2015 proposed Wastewater Rate Study; and Consider a motion for action to 2 
approve Resolution No. 315, Establishing Various Rates and Charges for Wastewater Service: 3 
At 6:59 P.M. Lienau called the Public Hearing on the 2015 Wastewater Rate Study and 4 
proposed rate changes to order and asked if anyone wished to comment regarding this issue.  5 
 6 
An analysis of wastewater rates was recently performed by Utilities staff members. Many hours 7 
were spent verifying values and allocations, and the Utilities Committee members have 8 
recommended that the study data as well as the proposed new rates, which are based upon 9 
established formulas and are contained on the documents which had been included in the 10 
meeting packets, be approved. 11 
 12 
Sharon Doersching stated that she believes those who take actions to protect the environment 13 
should be “rewarded” for their actions. 14 
 15 
At 7:10 P.M. Lienau asked if anyone else wished to comment regarding the proposed rate 16 
changes, and when no one responded he declared that the public hearing was officially closed. 17 
 18 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Enquist that the Village Board accepts the 19 
recommendation of the Utilities Committee and approves Resolution No. 315, which 20 
establishes new rates and charges for wastewater services.  Motion carried – All ayes. 21 
 22 
Item No. 2. Public Hearing regarding the provisions of Ordinance No. 239, which establishes 23 
impact fees for water system improvements; Discussion regarding Ordinance No. 239, which 24 
establishes impact fees for water system improvements; and consider a motion for action if 25 
appropriate: 26 
At 7:11 P.M. Lienau called the public hearing regarding the provisions of Ordinance No. 239, 27 
which establishes impact fees for water system improvements, to order.  28 
 29 
The Utilities Committee has discussed a number of possible “system pressurizing” 30 
improvements which could be made to address lack of water pressure within the service area. 31 
The 2005 enabling Ordinances for impact fees specify “water tower and related system 32 
improvements”. The regulations contained in the Ordinances probably should have read, 33 
“water tower or related system improvements”, and the Utilities Committee has recommended 34 
that the proposed amendments, which are delineated on the documents which were included 35 
in the meeting packets, be made. If the amendments are approved the Utilities Committee, the 36 
Village Board, staff members and engineers will have some flexibility with regard to future 37 
system design, without specifically restricting improvements to a water tower. 38 
 39 
Lienau noted that if the proposed Ordinance is approved some refunds may have to be issued, 40 
and Jackson responded that this is an issue which will have to be referred to the Village 41 
Attorney. 42 
 43 
Zacek asked how long a time frame will come into play, and Jackson responded that this also is 44 
an issue which should be referred to the Village Attorney. The original Ordinances did specify 45 
that a water tower must be constructed by 2026, but PSC and State regulation changes have 46 
affected that time limit. 47 
 48 
At 7:38 P.M. Lienau asked if anyone wished to comment regarding Ordinance No. 239, and 49 
when no one responded he declared that the Public Hearing was officially closed. 50 

5



Minutes for the September 15, 2015 Meeting of the Village Board 

-3- 

A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Baker that the Village Board accepts the 1 
recommendation of the Utilities Committee and approves Ordinance No. 239 which amends 2 
Ordinance No.109 and Ordinance No. 113, and establishes impact fees for a water system and 3 
related improvements. Motion carried with Zacek abstaining. 4 
 5 
Item No. 3. Discussion regarding recommendations from various committees concerning 6 
amendments to the Personnel Handbook; Consider a motion for action if appropriate: 7 
Within the last 120 days the Village has incurred three Workmen’s Comp. claims. At least two 8 
of the injuries were preventable. Following the second injury, Jackson and Department Heads 9 
sought to enhance safety in the workplace. A safety consultant was brought in to examine the 10 
workplace as well as procedures and practices, and that individual was also asked to update 11 
forms and manuals. A number of changes have been recommended, but one issue which 12 
should be remedied in 2015 is that employees satisfy ANSI III clothing standards while working 13 
within 50’ of a road right-of-way. Staff is recommending that all clothing worn by employees 14 
who do work within 50’ of a road right-of-way be ANSI III compliant. Other safety issues will 15 
be addressed in the 2016 budget. 16 
 17 
The question arose as to how citizens will be able to tell that the individuals wearing the ANSI 18 
III compliant clothing are Village employees, and the suggestion was made that reasonably 19 
priced lanyards, name tags or business cards be purchased and worn. 20 
 21 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Zacek that the Village Board accepts the 22 
recommendations of the Parks Committee and the Utilities Committee and approves the 23 
amendments to Section 32 of the Village’s Personnel Handbook – CLOTHING POLICY, as 24 
presented. All Village employees who are required to wear clothing which is ANSI III compliant 25 
must wear or carry some type of reasonably priced identification tag or card. Motion carried – 26 
All ayes.   27 
 28 
The Personnel Committee has recommended that the Personnel Handbook be revised in such 29 
fashion that it states that employees and their dependents who become eligible for Medicare 30 
will automatically become ineligible for coverage under the Village’s Health Insurance 31 
Program. A copy of the proposed Personnel Handbook amendments was included in the 32 
meeting packets. 33 
 34 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Enquist that the Village Board accepts the 35 
recommendation of the Personnel Committee and approves the amendments to Section 33 of 36 
the Village’s Personnel Handbook – BENEFITS ELIGIBILITY, as presented. Motion carried – All 37 
ayes. 38 
  39 
Item No. 4. Discussion regarding a request from Charter Communications for a personal 40 
property tax exemption refund of up to $3,625.46; Consider a motion for action if 41 
appropriate: 42 
Charter Communications has requested a refund of its 2014 Personal Property Taxes because of 43 
exemptions for digital cable equipment. 44 
 45 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Baker that the Village Board accepts the 46 
recommendation of Action Appraisers and the Village Clerk-Treasurer and approves Charter 47 
Communications’ request for a refund of its 2014 personal property taxes. The amount of that 48 
refund shall not exceed $3,625.46. Motion carried – All ayes. 49 
 50 

6



Minutes for the September 15, 2015 Meeting of the Village Board 

-4- 

Item No. 5. Discussion regarding a recommendation from the Personnel Committee 1 
concerning short and long term disability coverage, and review proposals for long term 2 
disability coverage; Consider a motion to amend the Personnel Handbook if appropriate: 3 
After conducting a comprehensive examination of the Village’s insurance coverages, Sarah Beth 4 
Janssen of the McClone Agency has recommended that the Village switch from providing short 5 
term disability insurance coverage to long term disability insurance coverage for its employees 6 
effective January 1, 2016. The Personnel Committee concurs. 7 
 8 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Zacek, that the Village Board accepts the 9 
recommendation of the Personnel Committee and directs the Village Administrator to see that 10 
the Village transitions from providing short-term disability insurance coverage for its employees 11 
to long-term disability insurance coverage effective January 1, 2016. Motion carried – All ayes.   12 
 13 
Item No. 6. Discussion regarding a recommendation from the Parks Committee to transfer a 14 
sum of money to cover additional sidewalk improvements for the Sister Bay Beach Project 15 
from the Unassigned Fund Balance to the Waterfront Improvement CIP; Consider a motion 16 
for action if appropriate: 17 
The Parks Committee has recommended that the parking area by the Post Office be expanded. 18 
The Committee has also recommended that the beach sidewalk be extended. Recycled pavers 19 
will be utilized for the expanded sidewalk.   20 
 21 
A motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Duffy that the Village Board accepts the 22 
recommendation of the Parks Committee and authorizes the construction of additional sidewalk 23 
and Post Office parking improvements. Those improvements shall be considered components 24 
of the Sister Bay Beach Project, and the costs of them shall not exceed $45,000. Before any 25 
expenditures are actually made for the previously mentioned projects approval must be 26 
obtained from the Finance Committee. Motion carried – All ayes. 27 
 28 
At 8:16 P.M. a brief recess was taken and the Board reconvened at 8:31 P.M. 29 
  30 
Item No. 7. Discussion regarding the results of the 2015 Citizen Survey; Consider relevant 31 
motions for action, if appropriate: 32 
A motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Duffy that Agenda Item No. 7 – Discussion 33 
regarding the results of the 2015 Citizen Survey; Consider relevant motions for action, if 34 
appropriate, shall be tabled until the next meeting of the Village Board. Motion carried – All 35 
ayes. 36 
 37 
Item No. 8. Consider a motion to amend the Sister Bay Board and Committee By-Laws: 38 
Drafts of revised Board and Committee By-Laws were included in the meeting packets and the 39 
Board members jointly reviewed those documents. During the review process Clove noted that 40 
the Board By-Laws should state that the Board meets on the third Tuesday of each month at 41 
6:00 P.M. 42 
 43 
Lienau indicated that he would like to eliminate the Marketing Committee and reinstate the 44 
Waterfront Oversight Committee. The Waterfront Committee would be charged with making 45 
recommendations for utilization of the waterfront. He would also like to change the makeup of 46 
the Waterfront Oversight Committee so that it consists of two Trustees, one SBAA 47 
representative, one member of the business community and three citizens. 48 
 49 
 50 

7



Minutes for the September 15, 2015 Meeting of the Village Board 

-5- 

A motion was made by Enquist, seconded by Duffy that the Village Board accepts President 1 
Lienau’s recommendations for amendment of the Board and Committee By-Laws in such 2 
fashion that the Marketing Committee is eliminated and the Waterfront Oversight Committee is 3 
reinstated. The makeup of the Waterfront Oversight Committee shall consist of two Trustees, 4 
one SBAA representative, one member of the business community and three citizens. Further, 5 
the Board By-Laws shall be amended in such fashion that they state that the Board of Trustees 6 
meets on the third Tuesday of each month at 6:00 P.M. Motion carried – All ayes. 7 
 8 
Item No. 9. Consider a motion to discuss and confirm President Lienau’s Committee 9 
Appointments: 10 
Lienau noted that he didn’t wish to recommend any new Committee appointments at this time. 11 

 12 
Committee Reports: 13 
(1) Administrative Committee: 14 
         The Administrative Committee formulated the previously mentioned Board and 15 

Committee Member By-Law revisions. 16 
 17 

(2) Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction Oversight Ad Hoc Committee: 18 
          The Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction Oversight Ad Hoc Committee has not met recently.  19 

 20 
(3) Communication and Technology Committee: 21 
          The Communication and Technology Committee has not met recently. 22 
    23 
(4)  Door County Coastal Byways Commission: 24 
 The Coastal Byways Commission has not met recently. Baker does intend to show the 25 

Coastal Byways Kiosk to the consultants from Living Labs. 26 
 27 
(5)  DCEDC: 28 

 The DCEDC met on Monday, but the minutes for that meeting have not been completed 29 
yet. The Bass Masters Tournament will be conducted in Sturgeon Bay this weekend.  30 

 31 
(6)  Economic Development Committee: 32 
 The Economic Development Committee took part in recent round-table discussions. 33 
 34 
(7)  Finance Committee: 35 

 The Finance Committee has been meeting on a regular basis and work is ongoing on 36 
preparation of the 2016 Budget. 37 

 38 
(8)  Fire Board and Fire District Exploratory Committee: 39 
 No action based on the Fire Board minutes which were included in the meeting packets.  40 
  41 
 The Fire District Exploratory Committee has not met recently. 42 
 43 
(9)  Historical Society: 44 
 The Historical Society Board of Directors met on September 3, 2015, but those minutes 45 

have not been completed yet. Things are going well out at The Corner of the Past. The 46 
closing date for that facility has now been extended to October 10, 2015.   47 

 48 
 49 
 50 

8



Minutes for the September 15, 2015 Meeting of the Village Board 

-6- 

(10)  Library Commission: 1 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. The Library 2 
Garden has been well received, and the Marina Fest Book Sale was quite profitable. 3 
Work is ongoing on the Library Budget for 2016. 4 

 5 
(11)   Marina Committee and Marina Fest Committee: 6 

The Marina Committee will be meeting on Friday. It appears that it will be a record year 7 
for seasonal and transient slip rentals. 8 
 9 
From all outward appearances Marina Fest was a huge success, and the vendors really 10 
liked the fact that the festival grounds were extended. Some complaints were received 11 
about the token system, and they will be addressed by the Marina Fest Committee. This 12 
year more family-oriented events were added, and all of them seemed to be well 13 
received. A number of compliments were received about the fireworks displays. The 14 
Marina Fest Wrap-Up Meeting will be conducted after Fall Fest.  15 
 16 

(12)  Marketing Committee: 17 
The Marketing Committee has now been eliminated.  18 
 19 

(13)  Parks: 20 
 No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. 21 
 22 
(14)  Personnel Committee: 23 
 No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. 24 
 25 
(15)  Plan Commission: 26 
 No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. 27 
 28 
(16)  SBAA: 29 
 No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. The 30 

SBAA’s Fall Dinner will be conducted at JJ’s on October 22, 2015. Approximately 31 
$2,400 was realized as the result of auctioning off the “goats on poles”. Zacek stressed 32 
that even though roadwork will be conducted in the downtown area, Fall Fest, 2015 will 33 
be conducted.  34 

  35 
(17)  Teen Center: 36 

The Teen Center Board has not met recently. Britt Maltby has expressed interest in 37 
volunteering to help with Teen Center activities and installation/utilization of the skate 38 
park equipment. Enquist will be in contact with her soon. 39 

 40 
(18)  Tourism Zone Commission: 41 
  Work is ongoing on the Tourism Zone Commission budget for 2016. 42 
 43 
(19)  Utilities – Water, Sewer, and Storm Sewer Committees: 44 

The Utilities – Water, Sewer, and Storm Sewer Committee has not met recently.  45 
 46 
(20)  Administration/Compensation Oversight: 47 
 The Administration/Compensation Oversight Committee has not met recently. 48 
 49 
 50 

9



Minutes for the September 15, 2015 Meeting of the Village Board 

-7- 

(21)  Waterfront Oversight 1 
 In accord with the Board’s directives the Waterfront Oversight Committee has been 2 

reinstated and new members will be appointed in the near future. 3 
 4 
Item No. 14. Review of the financial statements and consideration of a motion to approve the 5 
monthly bills: 6 
Payment Approval Reports for the period August 19, 2015 through September 15, 2015 were 7 
included in the meeting packets, and the Board members jointly reviewed those documents.  8 
 9 
A motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Duffy that the monthly bills depicted on the 10 
reports which were included in the meeting packets totaling $516,681.77 are all approved. 11 
Motion carried – All ayes. 12 
 13 
Item No. 15. Report by the Village Administrator on Village activities and projects: 14 
Jackson noted that his Administrator’s Report was included in the meeting packets and the 15 
Board members jointly reviewed that document. Keith Garot is working on obtaining new bids 16 
for his development project, but he informed Lienau that construction should start soon. The 17 
Village applied for and received a grant for restroom renovations at the Marina, but due to 18 
some technical issues the grant funds have not been released yet. Jackson will be meeting with 19 
DNR officials to address those issues in the near future.  20 
 21 
Based upon recent DNR compliance issues and change order requests which were made by the 22 
Village, representatives of JJR would like to amend the contract for the Beach Project. The 23 
estimated related costs are approximately $10,000.00.  24 
 25 
A motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Duffy that the Village Administrator is authorized 26 
to expend up to $10,000.00 for the services delineated in a contract amendment with JJR, but 27 
no payments will be made to that agency unless and until an itemized bill(s) is/are received for 28 
the stated services.  Motion carried – All ayes. 29 
  30 
Item No. 13. Report on County activities from the County Supervisor, Dave Lienau: 31 
Lienau gave the following oral report regarding Door County activities: 32 

    At the last Joint Finance and Administration Committee Meeting a number of new 33 
positions were authorized, but a number of reclassifications will also be made.  34 

   Studies are still being conducted related to the construction of a new EMS Center and a 35 
new Senior Center. 36 
 37 

At 9:39 P.M. a brief recess was taken and the Board reconvened at 9:45 P.M. 38 
 39 
Item No. 10. Consider a motion to convene into executive session pursuant to Wis. Stats., 40 
§19.85(1)(c) to discuss personnel and employee benefits: 41 
At 9:46 P.M. a motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Baker that the Village Board convene 42 
into executive session pursuant to Wis. Stats., §19.85(1)(c) to discuss personnel and employee 43 
benefits. A roll call vote was taken on that motion and the Board members voted in the 44 
following fashion: 45 
 46 

Baker – Aye; Clove – Aye;     Duffy – Aye; 47 
Enquist – Aye;    Lienau – Aye;      Zacek – Aye. 48 

 49 

10



Minutes for the September 15, 2015 Meeting of the Village Board 

 

I:\1. 2015 Agendas\Board\2015\2015_09\091515 Village Board Meeting Minutes - Unapproved Version.docx 
Created by Janal Suppanz on 03/04/2015; Last Printed: 10/16/2015 2:19 PM 

-8- 

Motion carried. 1 
 2 
Item No. 11. Consider a motion to reconvene into open session: 3 
At 10:02 P.M. a motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Zacek that the Village Board 4 
reconvene into open session. Another roll call vote was taken, and the Board members voted in 5 
the following fashion: 6 
 7 

Baker – Aye;      Clove – Aye;     Duffy – Aye; 8 
Enquist – Aye;    Lienau – Aye;   Zacek – Aye. 9 

 10 
Motion carried. 11 
 12 
Item No. 12. Consider a motion to take action if required: 13 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Enquist that the Village Administrator shall act on 14 
the matters which were discussed in closed session at this meeting with respect to the Utilities 15 
Department.     16 
 17 
Item No. 16. Discussion regarding matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred to a 18 
committee, official or employee: 19 

   The questions which were raised with respect to the provisions of Ordinance No. 239 20 
shall be referred to the Village Attorney. 21 

 22 

   Discussion regarding the results of the 2015 Citizen Survey; Consider relevant motions 23 
for action, if appropriate, will be addressed at the October Village Board Meeting. 24 
 25 

  Lienau will make recommendations for appointments to the Waterfront Oversight 26 
Committee ASAP. 27 

 28 
Adjournment: 29 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Duffy to adjourn the meeting of the Board of 30 
Trustees at 10:09 P.M. Motion carried – All ayes. 31 
 32 
Respectfully submitted,  33 

 34 
Janal Suppanz, 35 
Assistant Administrator 36 

11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



Name: i:\1. 2015 agendas\board\2015\2015_10\02a 102015 notice-pub hearing - small quarry text amendment.docx Created: 
9/28/2015 4:03 PM Printed: 10/16/2015 11:23 AM Author: Robert L. Kufrin Last Saved By: Zeke Jackson Revision:  

101

http://www.sisterbaywi.info/
mailto:zeke.jackson@sisterbaywi.gov
http://www.sisterbaywi./


Village of Sister Bay 
BOARD REPORT 

PUBLIC INFORMATION NOTICE 
 
            Meeting Date 10/20/15  
            Item No.: 1 
 

September 28, 2015 
 
There are two issues before the Village Board regarding the Sister Bay Properties, LLC. (SBP) quarry located behind 
Shopko. After years of litigation over citations issued by the Village, judge Diltz  required a mediation process between 
the Village and SBP that has resulted in this public hearing. The first item is a zoning text change that would permit di-
mensional stone quarries as a conditional use in B-1 General Business Districts. The Plan Commission recommends ap-
proval of this change.  If the Board also approved of this text amendment and adopted the proposed ordinance, then the 
Plan Commission would take up the second issue: review and consider approval of a conditional use permit to operate 
the quarry under a series of specific conditions. 
 
Regardless, even if the Plan Commission approves or disapproves both items the Village Board makes the final decision 
and can follow the Plan Commission's recommendations or reject them.  Both items will be considered at appropriately 
noticed public hearings.  The Public Hearing for the first issue at the Village Board is scheduled for October 20, 2015 at 
6:00 at the SBLG Fire Station on Mill Rd. 
 
Background 
In August 2012, Brandon Small developed a proposal for the operation of the existing quarry and expansion of operations 
into the adjacent parcel. The issue was referred to the Plan Commission in October 2012 and the result was direction 
from the Plan Commission to develop a series of talking points that would  address neighbor complaints and Code viola-
tions. By April 2013, the Village Administrator had prepared a series of "talking points" that the Plan Commission used as 
the basis for discussion with Brandon Small and the neighbors at a meeting on May 2013. The result of those meetings 
was a new operating proposal from Brandon Small. In general terms, in ex change for allowing the expansion of the 
quarry operation into their adjacent 7 acre parcel, SBP would make a series of operational changes to the existing quarry 
and both quarries would stop operating after 10 years. Since 2014, the Village has been negotiating with SBP to develop 
a set of conditions that protect nearby property owners. 
 
The following documents are available at the Village Administration Offices. 
1.     A proposed ordinance that would change the Zoning Code to permit allow a quarry to operate under a conditional 
use permit. 
2.  A proposed Conditional Use Permit and Development Agreement that specifies the new operating requirements for 
the entire quarry. There are numerous detailed requirements in or der to protect the neighbor's and Village's interests. 
3.     A draft resolution for the Board of Trustees that would express the reasons why the proposed 
project meets the conditional use permit standard. 
 
 
Currently quarries are prohibited and the SBP quarry operates as a preexisting nonconforming use. The Plan Commission 
conducted the hearing on the issue of changing the B-1 business district zoning  to allow  dimensional stone quarries as a 
conditional  use. However, they did not make a decision on that issue and decided to defer action until the August 26 
meeting. 
 
If the Plan Commission recommends changing the zoning code, then they can consider the information provided  by  
SBP for  the conditional  use permit.  The ViIIage has prepared a draft agreement that covers the points raised by the Plan 
Commission and residents back in 2012-2013. The conditional use process requires the applicant to address the pro-
posal's impact on the community and neighborhood. Section 66.1535 of the Zoning Code outlines the factors that the 
Plan Commission must consider and the information that the applicant needs to apply. A draft  
resolution has been prepared for the Board to consider that would  approve the conditional use agreement. 
 
The items below are a summary of pros and cons for approving the expansion of the quarry. All the details are covered 
in the draft conditional use agreement. 
 
 
 
 

102



Duration of operation 
Back in 2012 Bill Schuster's wrote a letter to Tom Sadler stating that converting the existing dimension stone quarry to a 
gravel quarry  is highly  unlikely,  if  not impossible. The promise by Brandon Small to stop all operations on both parcels 
after 10 years is a good deal, if he could keep operating the existing quarry for more than 10 years. But, if he runs into 
stone that is uneconomical to remove after five years it is a bad deal. It is also likely that if he does not expand the opera-
tion into the second parcel that he will blast to reach lower and lower layers of rock in the existing parcel. The dilemma  
on how  long he will  operate is unclear, but with  this agreement there is a date certain when it will  stop. The other fac-
tor effecting the duration of the quarry's operation is the demand for the type of stone it generates. During the recent eco-
nomic and housing recession the quarry's activities slowed considerably. If the demand slows for stone slows down, but 
the quality of the stone remains acceptable the quarry will just operate longer in the existing pit. 
 
Dust Control and Noise 
The complaints regard dust blowing off the property and backup alarm noise from the operating machinery started in 
2007 when SBP greatly expanded the removal of rock from the quarry. The Village Administrator issued citations and the 
Village Attorney has been dealing with this issue before Judge Diltz who has deferred the issue to the mediator. It is un-
likely that the judge will order the quarry shut down based on the dust. The agreement requires SBP to actively water the 
entire quarry to control dust except during winter. This agreement provides for watering for dust control that would most 
likely exceed a court order. The back-up alarms are controlled by OSHA and the Bureau of Mines. The ambient sensing 
back-up alarms would most likely exceed a court order as well. 
 
Screening and Landscaping 
The agreement provides for maintenance of a screening berm consistent with the Zoning Code and the proposed future 
development. The current screening is consistent with the Door County Soil and Water Department's reclamation plan. 
The proposed agreement has more requirements. 
 
Blasting and Crushing 
As noted above the Village took the quarry to court over the issue of blasting and the judge indicated that it was a routine 
part of a quarry's operating and would not restrict it. This agreement prohibits blasting on either parcel. One of the issues 
that the mediator raised was the crushing of waste rock from the site. His comments opened the door for crushing on site, 
which had not previously occurred. This agreement limits crushing to only waste rock from the parcels and limits when it 
can be done. 
 
Moving Forward: 
The Village Board of Trustees seeks input on the request to allow Quarries as a Conditional Use in the B-1 District.  
While many may speculate that this amendment would allow quarrying “everywhere” in the Village, this is not the case.  
A sunset clause will be considered that will not facilitate substantial expansion of quarrying as a use throughout the Vil-
lage. 
 
While this proposed text amendment may ultimately result in an expansion of the existing quarry, the tradeoff is a date 
certain cessation of quarry activities. It is up to the citizens and their duly elected representatives to determine if the 
tradeoff is worthwhile, or if it merely exacerbates a known problem.    
 
Understand that from our Plan Commission public hearing, many alternative ideas were proposed from Citizens, many of 
them quite worthwhile.  The Village is not at liberty to disclose which they are exploring in order to protect our position, 
please understand  that your ideas were certainly heard. 
 
The purpose of the hearing is to answer questions and obtain input from affected neighbors, for the Board to make a deci-
sion on this issue. Looking back over the past 8 years, the Plan Commission, Village Board, and residents need to recon-
cile is if the operating changes that the conditional use agreement create are better than gambling that the existing quarry 
will  cease operations in less than 10 years. 

 
 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
       Zeke Jackson  
       Village Administrator 
 
       Bob Kufrin, Consultant 

 
 
 
 

103



104



105



ORDINANCE № 235-XXXX15 

An Ordinance Amending the Zoning Code Sections 
66.0320(c) B-1  Conditional Uses  

 

WHEREAS

WHEREAS

WHEREAS

NOW, THEREFORE,

VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY

ATTEST:

106



Name: h:\active\sister bay\projects village\lawsuits\small quarry lawsuit\plan commission report\ord 235 - xxxx15 chapter 66 b-1 district add quarry as 

conditional use v4.docx Created: 6/8/2015 11:28 AM Printed: 6/15/2015 10:14 AM6/15/2015 10:14:00 AM Author: Robert L. Kufrin Last Saved By: Robert 

Kufrin Revision: 5 Last Save Date: 

107



Business Districts 

Sec. 66.0320 B-1 General Business District 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

108



 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

109



 

 

Name: h:\active\sister bay\projects village\lawsuits\small quarry 

lawsuit\plan commission report\ord 235 - xxxx15 chapter 66 b-1 district 

add quarry as conditional use v4.docx Created: 6/8/2015 11:28 AM 

Printed: 6/15/2015 10:14 AM6/15/2015 10:14:00 AM Author: Robert L. 

Kufrin Last Saved By: Robert Kufrin Revision: 5 Last Save Date:  

110



 

Name: i:\1. 2015 agendas\board\2015\2015_10\03a br 3 reso 316-102015 cmar 2014 report.docx Created: 10/16/2015 
10:14 AM Printed: 10/16/2015 11:25 AM Author: Robert Kufrin Last Saved By: Zeke Jackson Revision: 2 

 
For additional information: www.sisterbaywi.gov 

 
Meeting Date: 10/20/15 

Item No. 3 
 
Recommendation: That the Board adopt Resolution No. 316-102015 Approving the 2014 An-
nual Compliance Maintenance Report. 
 
Background: Each year the DNR requires the Village Utilities to submit a report that identifies 
the various operating levels and maintenance activities at the wastewater plant and collection 
system. The Utilities Committee discussed the report at their October 6 meeting. This is essen-
tially a review and inspection tool for best management practices. 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: None at this time. 
 
       At your service, I am 
        
 
 
 
       Zeke Jackson 
       Village Administrator 

111

http://www.sisterbaywi.gov/


 
 

Resolution No. 316-102015 
Approving the 2014 Annual Compliance Maintenance Report 

 
WHEREAS, the Utilities Superintendent of the Village of Sister Bay has reviewed the 2014 Annual 
Compliance Maintenance Report to be submitted to the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources, 
and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Village of Sister Bay, Wisconsin 
that the attached 2014 Annual Compliance Maintenance report prepared by Steve Jacobson is hereby 
approved. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution and report is forwarded to the Wisconsin 
Department of Natural Resources.  
 
Introduced at a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Village of Sister Bay held this 20th day 
of October 2015. 
 
Passed and adopted this 20th day of October 2015. 
 
 
         _____________________________________ 
         Dave Lienau, President 
ATTEST: 
__________________________________     VOTE: Ayes _____ Noes _____ 
Christy Sully, Village Clerk WCPC MMC 
 
 
 
 
 
File Name: \\sb01\redirectedfolders\martha.baker\my documents\active\agendas\board\2014\2014_06\reso 287 – 061014 compliance 
maintenance report 2013 dnr.doc Printed: 10/16/2015 11:25 AM  Created: 5/28/2014 12:27 AM Author: Martha Baker  Revision: 1 

112



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Sister Bay Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

6/4/2015 2014

Influent Flow and Loading

1. Monthly Average Flows and (C)BOD Loadings
1.1 Verify the following monthly flows and (C)BOD loadings to your facility.

Outfall No.
701

Influent Monthly
Average Flow, MGD

x Influent Monthly
Average (C)BOD

Concentration mg/L

x 8.34 = Influent Monthly
Average (C)BOD
Loading, lbs/day

January 0.1433 x 184 x 8.34 = 219
February 0.1336 x 216 x 8.34 = 241

March 0.1292 x 229 x 8.34 = 247
April 0.4008 x 100 x 8.34 = 335
May 0.2070 x 274 x 8.34 = 472
June 0.2230 x 376 x 8.34 = 699
July 0.3048 x 347 x 8.34 = 881

August 0.2881 x 421 x 8.34 = 1,011
September 0.2816 x 397 x 8.34 = 933

October 0.2688 x 289 x 8.34 = 649
November 0.1551 x 232 x 8.34 = 300
December 0.1376 x 184 x 8.34 = 219

2. Maximum Month Design Flow and Design (C)BOD Loading
2.1 Verify the design flow and loading for your facility.

Design Design Factor x % = % of Design
Max Month Design Flow, MGD .7 x 90 = 0.63

x 100 = .7
Design (C)BOD, lbs/day 1780 x 90 = 1602

x 100 = 1780

2.2 Verify the number of times the flow and (C)BOD exceeded 90% or 100% of design, points
earned, and score:

Months
of

Influent

Number of times
flow was greater

than 90% of

Number of times
flow was greater

than 100% of

Number of times
(C)BOD was greater
than 90% of design

Number of times
(C)BOD was greater
than 100% of design

January 1 0 0 0 0
February 1 0 0 0 0

March 1 0 0 0 0
April 1 0 0 0 0
May 1 0 0 0 0
June 1 0 0 0 0
July 1 0 0 0 0

August 1 0 0 0 0
September 1 0 0 0 0

October 1 0 0 0 0
November 1 0 0 0 0
December 1 0 0 0 0

 Points per each 2 1 3 2
 Exceedances 0 0 0 0
 Points 0 0 0 0

 Total Number of Points 0

0

113



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Sister Bay Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

6/4/2015 2014

3. Flow Meter
3.1 Was the influent flow meter calibrated in the last year?

Yes Enter last calibration date (MM/DD/YYYY) 04/21/2015
No

If No, please explain:

4. Sewer Use Ordinance
4.1 Did your community have a sewer use ordinance that limited or prohibited the discharge of
excessive conventional pollutants ((C)BOD, SS, or pH) or toxic substances to the sewer from
industries, commercial users, hauled waste, or residences?

Yes
No

If No, please explain:

4.2 Was it necessary to enforce the ordinance?
Yes
No

If Yes, please explain:

5. Septage Receiving
5.1 Did you have requests to receive septage at your facility?
Septic Tanks Holding Tanks Grease Traps

Yes Yes Yes

No No No

5.2 Did you receive septage at your faclity? If yes, indicate volume in gallons.
Septic Tanks

Yes 394,300 gallons

No
Holding Tanks

Yes 6,988,300 gallons

No
Grease Traps

Yes 0 gallons

No
5.2.1 If yes to any of the above, please explain if plant performance is affected when receiving
any of these wastes.

WWTP was designed to be able to treat this waste stream.

6. Pretreatment
6.1 Did your facility experience operational problems, permit violations, biosolids quality concerns,
or hazardous situations in the sewer system or treatment plant that were attributable to
commercial or industrial discharges in the last year?

Yes
No

If yes, describe the situation and your community's response.

6.2 Did your facility accept hauled industrial wastes, landfill leachate, etc.?
Yes

114



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Sister Bay Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

6/4/2015 2014

No
If yes, describe the types of wastes received and any procedures or other restrictions that were
in place to protect the facility from the discharge of hauled industrial wastes.

We have recieved Going Garbage transfer station leachate for many years without having any
issues. We test and charge for load based on B.O.D., S.S., Phos. and flow.

Total Points Generated 0
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100

Section Grade A

115



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Sister Bay Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

6/4/2015 2014

Effluent Quality and Plant Performance (BOD/CBOD)

1. Effluent (C)BOD Results
1.1 Verify the following monthly average effluent values, exceedances, and points for BOD or
CBOD

Outfall No.
001

Monthly
Average

Limit (mg/L)

90% of
Permit Limit
> 10 (mg/L)

Effluent Monthly
Average (mg/L)

Months of
Discharge

with a Limit

Permit Limit
Exceedance

90% Permit
Limit

Exceedance
January 30 27 4 1 0 0
February 30 27 4 1 0 0

March 30 27 2 1 0 0
April 30 27 3 1 0 0
May 30 27 2 1 0 0
June 30 27 0 1 0 0
July 30 27 0 1 0 0

August 30 27 0 1 0 0
September 30 27 0 1 0 0

October 30 27 0 1 0 0
November 30 27 2 1 0 0
December 30 27 2 1 0 0

* Equals limit if limit is <= 10

Months of discharge/yr 12
Points per each exceedance with 12 months of discharge 7 3
Exceedances 0 0
Points 0 0

Total number of points 0
NOTE: For systems that discharge intermittently to state waters, the points per monthly
exceedance for this section shall be based upon a multiplication factor of 12 months divided by
the number of months of discharge. Example: For a wastewater facility discharging only 6 months
of the year, the multiplication factor is 12/6 = 2.0

1.2 If any violations occurred, what action was taken to regain compliance?

0

2. Flow Meter Calibration
2.1 Was the effluent flow meter calibrated in the last year?

Yes Enter last calibration date (MM/DD/YYYY)  04/21/2015
No 

If No, please explain:

3. Treatment Problems
3.1 What problems, if any, were experienced over the last year that threatened treatment?

None

4. Other Monitoring and Limits
4.1 At any time in the past year was there an exceedance of a permit limit for any other pollutants
such as chlorides, pH, residual chlorine, fecal coliform, or metals?

Yes  
No 

If Yes, please explain:

116



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Sister Bay Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

6/4/2015 2014

4.2 At any time in the past year was there a failure of an effluent acute or chronic whole effluent
toxicity (WET) test?

Yes  
No 

If Yes, please explain:

4.3 If the biomonitoring (WET) test did not pass, were steps taken to identify and/or reduce
source(s) of toxicity?

Yes  
No 
N/A 

Please explain unless not applicable:

Total Points Generated 0
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100

Section Grade A

117



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Sister Bay Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

6/4/2015 2014

Effluent Quality and Plant Performance (Total Suspended Solids)

1. Effluent Total Suspended Solids Results
1.1 Verify the following monthly average effluent values, exceedances, and points for TSS:

Outfall No.
001

Monthly
Average

Limit (mg/L)

90% of
Permit Limit
>10 (mg/L)

Effluent Monthly
Average (mg/L)

Months of
Discharge

with a Limit

Permit Limit
Exceedance

90% Permit
Limit

Exceedance
January 30 27 2 1 0 0
February 30 27 1 1 0 0

March 30 27 2 1 0 0
April 30 27 1 1 0 0
May 30 27 1 1 0 0
June 30 27 0 1 0 0
July 30 27 1 1 0 0

August 30 27 0 1 0 0
September 30 27 1 1 0 0

October 30 27 0 1 0 0
November 30 27 2 1 0 0
December 30 27 1 1 0 0

* Equals limit if limit is <= 10

Months of Discharge/yr 12
Points per each exceedance with 12 months of discharge: 7 3
Exceedances 0 0
Points 0 0

Total Number of Points 0
NOTE: For systems that discharge intermittently to state waters, the points per monthly
exceedance for this section shall be based upon a multiplication factor of 12 months divided by
the number of months of discharge.
 Example: For a wastewater facility discharging only 6 months of the year, the multiplication
factor is 12/6 = 2.0

1.2 If any violations occurred, what action was taken to regain compliance?

0

Total Points Generated 0
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100

Section Grade A

118



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Sister Bay Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

6/4/2015 2014

Effluent Quality and Plant Performance (Phosphorus)

1. Effluent Phosphorus Results
1.1 Verify the following monthly average effluent values, exceedances, and points for Phosphorus

Outfall No. 001 Monthly Average
phosphorus Limit

(mg/L)

Effluent Monthly
Average phosphorus

(mg/L)

Months of
Discharge with a

Limit

Permit Limit
Exceedance

January 1 .215384615 1 0
February 1 .4 1 0

March 1 .407692308 1 0
April 1 .378571429 1 0
May 1 .258333333 1 0
June 1 .384615385 1 0
July 1 .378571429 1 0

August 1 .358333333 1 0
September 1 .457142857 1 0

October 1 .246153846 1 0
November 1 .15 1 0
December 1 .092857143 1 0

 Months of Discharge/yr 12
 Points per each exceedance with 12 months of discharge: 10
 Exceedances 0

 Total Number of Points 0
NOTE: For systems that discharge intermittently to waters of the state, the points per monthly
exceedance for this section shall be based upon a multiplication factor of 12 months divided by
the number of months of discharge.
Example: For a wastewater facility discharging only 6 months of the year, the multiplication factor
is 12/6 = 2.0

1.2 If any violations occurred, what action was taken to regain compliance?

0

Total Points Generated 0
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100

Section Grade A

119



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Sister Bay Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

6/4/2015 2014

Biosolids Quality and Management

1. Biosolids Use/Disposal
1.1 How did you use or dispose of your biosolids? (Check all that apply)

Land applied under your permit
Publicly Distributed Exceptional Quality Biosolids
Hauled to another permitted facility
Landfilled
Incinerated
Other

NOTE: If you did not remove biosolids from your system, please describe your system type such
as lagoons, reed beds, recirculating sand filters, etc.
1.1.1 If you checked Other, please describe:

2. Land Application Site
2.1 Last Year's Approved and Active Land Application Sites
2.1.1 How many acres did you have?
91 acres

2.1.2 How many acres did you use?
0 acres

2.2 If you did not have enough acres for your land application needs, what action was taken?

2.3 Did you overapply nitrogen on any of your approved land application sites you used last year?
Yes (30 points)
No

2.4 Have all the sites you used last year for land application been soil tested in the previous 4
years?

Yes
No (10 points)

N/A

10

3. Biosolids Metals
Number of biosolids outfalls in your WPDES permit:

3.1 For each outfall tested, verify the biosolids metal quality values for your facility during the last
calendar year.

Outfall No. 002 - Liquid Sludge
Parameter 80%

of
Limit

H.Q.
Limit

Ceiling
Limit

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 80%
Value

High
Quality

Ceiling

Arsenic 41 75 6.4 0 0
Cadmium 39 85 .5 0 0
Copper 1500 4300 670 0 0
Lead 300 840 17 0 0

Mercury 17 57 <.63 0 0
Molybdenum 60 75 5.6 0 0

Nickel 336 420 20 0 0
Selenium 80 100 <7.7 0 0

Zinc 2800 7500 690 0 0

3.1.1 Number of times any of the metals exceeded the high quality limits OR 80% of the limit for
molybdenum, nickel, or selenium = 0
Exceedence Points

0     (0 Points)

120



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Sister Bay Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

6/4/2015 2014

1-2   (10 Points)
> 2   (15 Points)

3.1.2 If you exceeded the high quality limits, did you cumulatively track the metals loading at
each land application site? (check applicable box)

Yes
No (10 points)

N/A - Did not exceed limits or no HQ limit applies (0 points)
N/A - Did not land apply biosolids until limit was met (0 points)

3.1.3 Number of times any of the metals exceeded the ceiling limits = 0
Exceedence Points

0     (0 Points)
1     (10 Points)
> 1   (15 Points)

3.1.4 Were biosolids land applied which exceeded the ceiling limit?
Yes (20 Points)
No  (0 Points)

3.1.5 If any metal limit (high quality or ceiling) was exceeded at any time, what action was taken?
Has the source of the metals been identified?

0

4. Pathogen Control (per outfall):
4.1 Verify the following information. If any information is incorrect, Contact Us.

Outfall Number:
Biosolids Class:
Bacteria Type and Limit:
Sample Dates:  -
Density:
Sample Concentration Amount:
Requirement Met: No
Land Applied: No
Process:
Process Description:

4.2 If exceeded Class B limit or did not meet the process criteria at the time of land application.
4.2.1 Was the limit exceeded or the process criteria not met at the time of land application?

Yes (40 Points)
No

If yes, what action was taken?

0

5. Vector Attraction Reduction (per outfall):
5.1 Verify the following information. If any of the information is incorrect, Contact Us.

Outfall Number:
Method Date:
Option Used To Satisfy Requirement:
Requirement Met: No
Land Applied: No
Limit (if applicable):
Results (if applicable):

121



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Sister Bay Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

6/4/2015 2014

5.2 Was the limit exceeded or the process criteria not met at the time of land application?
Yes (40 Points)
No

If yes, what action was taken? 0

6. Biosolids Storage
6.1 How many days of actual, current biosolids storage capacity did your wastewater treatment
facility have either on-site or off-site?

>= 180 days (0 Points)
150 - 179 days (10 Points)
120 - 149 days (20 Points)
90 - 119 days (30 Points)
< 90 days (40 Points)
N/A (0 Points)

6.2 If you checked N/A above, explain why.

0

7. Issues
7.1 Describe any outstanding biosolids issues with treatment, use or overall management:

None

Total Points Generated 10
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 90

Section Grade B

122



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Sister Bay Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

6/4/2015 2014

Staffing and Preventative Maintenance (All Treatment Plants)

1. Plant Staffing
1.1 Was your wastewater treatment plant adequately staffed last year?

Yes
No

If No, please explain:

Could use more help/staff for:

1.2 Did your wastewater staff have adequate time to properly operate and maintain the plant and
fulfill all wastewater management tasks including recordkeeping?

Yes
No

If No, please explain:

2. Preventative Maintenance
2.1 Did your plant have a documented AND implemented plan for preventative maintenance on
major equipment items?

Yes (Continue with question 2) 

No (40 points)


If No, please explain, then go to question 3:

2.2 Did this preventative maintenance program depict frequency of intervals, types of lubrication,
and other tasks necessary for each piece of equipment?

Yes
No (10 points) 

2.3 Were these preventative maintenance tasks, as well as major equipment repairs, recorded and
filed so future maintenance problems can be assessed properly?

Yes

Paper file system
Computer system
Both paper and computer system

No (10 points)

0

3. O&M Manual
3.1 Does your plant have a detailed O&M Manual that can be used as a reference when needed?

Yes
No

4. Overall Maintenance /Repairs
4.1 Rate the overall maintenance of your wastewater plant.

Excellent
Very good
Good
Fair
Poor

Describe your rating:

Excellent long time caring employees

123



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Sister Bay Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

6/4/2015 2014

Total Points Generated 0
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100

Section Grade A

124



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Sister Bay Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

6/4/2015 2014

Operator Certification and Education

1. Operator-In-Charge
1.1 Did you have a designated operator-in-charge during the report year?

Yes (0 points) 
No  (20 points) 

Name: STEVEN D JACOBSON
Certification No:  01308

0

2. Certification Requirements
2.1 In accordance with Chapter NR 114.08 and 114.09, Wisconsin Administrative Code, what grade
and subclass(es) were required for the operator-in-charge to operate the wastewater treatment
plant and what grade and subclass(es) were held by the operator-in-charge?
Required:

2 - CEIJ; C - ACTIVATED SLUDGE; E - DISINFECTION; I - PHOSPHORUS REMOVAL; J -
LABORATORY

Held:

2 - ABCDEFGHIJ; 2 - A=PRIMARY SETTLING GRADE 2; B=TRICKLING FILTER/RBC GRADE 2;
C=ACTIVATED SLUDGE GRADE 2; D=PONDS/AEREATED LAGOONS GRADE 2; E=DISINFECTION
GRADE 2; F=ANAEROBIC DIGESTION GRADE 2; G=MECHANICAL SLUDGE GRADE 2;
H=FILTRATION GRADE 2; I=PHOSPHORUS REMOVAL GRADE 2; J=LABORATORY GRADE 2

2.2 Was the operator-in-charge certified at the appropriate level to operate this plant?
Yes (0 points) 
No  (20 points) 

0

3. Succession Planning
3.1 In the event of the loss of your designated operator-in-charge, did you have a contingency plan
to ensure the continued proper operation and maintenance of the plant that includes one or more
of the following options (check all that apply)?

One or more additional certified operators on staff 
An arrangement with another certified operator 
An arrangement with another community with a certified operator 
An operator on staff who has an operator-in-training certificate for your plant and is expected to
be certified within one year
A consultant to serve as your certified operator 
None of the above (20 points) 

If "None of the above" is selected, please explain:

0

4. Continuing Education Credits
4.1 If you had a designated operator-in-charge, was the operator-in-charge earning Continuing
Education Credits at the following rates?
Grades T, 1, and 2:

Averaging 6 or more CECs per year. 
Averaging less than 6 CECs per year. 

Grades 3 and 4:
Averaging 8 or more CECs per year. 
Averaging less than 8 CECs per year. 

Total Points Generated 0
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100

Section Grade A

125



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Sister Bay Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

6/4/2015 2014

Financial Management

1. Provider of Financial Information
Name:  Steven D. Jacobson

Telephone: 920-421-0254  (XXX) XXX-XXXX

E-Mail Address
(optional): steve.jacobson@sisterbaywi.gov

2. Treatment Works Operating Revenues
2.1 Are User Charges or other revenues sufficient to cover O&M expenses for your wastewater
treatment plant AND/OR collection system ?

Yes (0 points) 

No (40 points)

If No, please explain:

2.2 When was the User Charge System or other revenue source(s) last reviewed and/or revised?
Year: 2013

0-2 years ago (0 points) 

3 or more years ago (20 points)

N/A (private facility) 

2.3 Did you have a special account (e.g., CWFP required segregated Replacement Fund, etc.) or
financial resources available for repairing or replacing equipment for your wastewater treatment
plant and/or collection system?

Yes (0 points) 

No (40 points) 

0

REPLACEMENT FUNDS [PUBLIC MUNICIPAL FACILITIES SHALL COMPLETE QUESTION 3]
3. Equipment Replacement Funds
3.1 When was the Equipment Replacement Fund last reviewed and/or revised?
Year:  2013

1-2 years ago (0 points)

3 or more years ago (20 points)

N/A

If N/A, please explain:

3.2 Equipment Replacement Fund Activity

3.2.1  Ending Balance Reported on Last Year's CMAR $ 907,178.00

3.2.2 Adjustments - if necessary (e.g. earned interest,
audit correction, withdrawal of excess funds, increase
making up previous shortfall, etc.)

+ $ 0.46

3.2.3 Adjusted January 1st Beginning Balance $  907,178.46

3.2.4 Additions to Fund (e.g. portion of User Fee,
earned interest, etc.) + $  76,026.00

3.2.5 Subtractions from Fund (e.g., equipment
replacement, major repairs - use description box
3.2.6.1 below*) - $  44,228.88

3.2.6 Ending Balance as of December 31st for
CMAR Reporting Year $  938,975.58

126



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Sister Bay Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

6/4/2015 2014

All Sources: This ending balance should include all
Equipment Replacement Funds whether held in a
bank account(s), certificate(s) of deposit, etc.

3.2.6.1 Indicate adjustments, equipment purchases, and/or major repairs from 3.2.5 above.

Digester piping, Dissolved oxygen control, sludge pump, valve replacement,scum and drain
pump, lab still, lab D.O. meter,

3.3  What amount should be in your Replacement Fund? $ 938,975.58
Please note: If you had a CWFP loan, this amount was originally based on the Financial
Assistance Agreement (FAA) and should be regularly updated as needed. Further calculation
instructions and an example can be found by clicking the HELP link under Info in the left-side
menu.

3.3.1 Is the December 31 Ending Balance in your Replacement Fund above, (#3.2.6) equal to, or
greater than the amount that should be in it (#3.3)?

Yes
No

If No, please explain.

0

4. Future Planning
4.1 During the next ten years, will you be involved in formal planning for upgrading, rehabilitating,
or new construction of your treatment facility or collection system?

Yes  -  If Yes, please provide major project information, if not already listed below.

No

Project
#

Project Description Estimated
Cost

Approximate
Construction

Year
None reported

5. Financial Management General Comments

Total Points Generated 0
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100

Section Grade A

127



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Sister Bay Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

6/4/2015 2014

Sanitary Sewer Collection Systems

1. CMOM Program
1.1 Do you have a Capacity, Management, Operation & Maintenance (CMOM) requirement in your
WPDES permit?

Yes
No

1.2 Did you have a documented (written records/files, computer files, video tapes, etc.) sanitary
sewer collection system operation & maintenance (O&M) or CMOM program last calendar year?

Yes (Continue with question 1)
No (30 points) (Go to question 2)

1.3 Check the elements listed below that are included in your O&M or CMOM program.
Goals

Describe the specific goals you have for your collection system:

Develop a plan on how to upgrade the back up power suply at the main lift station. Continue to
eliminate4 open pick holes, install new benches and flowlines, and repair rings on manholes.
Conduct study with in the next 5 years to inspect the condition and proper sizing of each of the
pumps in all lift stations.

Organization

Do you have the following written organizational elements (check only those that apply)?

Ownership and governing body description
Organizational chart
Personnel and position descriptions
Internal communication procedures
Public information and education program

Legal Authority
Do you have the legal authority for the following (check only those that apply)?

Sewer use ordinance Last Revised Date (MM/DD/YYYY)  7/1/2012
Pretreatment/industrial control Programs
Fat, oil and grease control
Illicit discharges (commercial, industrial)
Private property clear water (sump pumps, roof or foundation drains, etc.)
Private lateral inspections/repairs
Service and management agreements

Maintenance Activities (provide details in question 2)
Design and Performance Provisions


How do you ensure that your sewer system is designed and constructed properly?
State plumbing code
DNR NR 110 standards
Local municipal code requirements
Construction, inspection, and testing
Others:

Overflow Emergency Response Plan:

Does your emergency response capability include (check only those that apply)?

Alarm system and routine testing
Emergency equipment 
Emergency procedures
Communications/notifications (DNR, internal, public, media, etc.)


Capacity Assurance:

128



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Sister Bay Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

6/4/2015 2014

How well do you know your sewer system? Do you have the following?
Current and up-to-date sewer map
Sewer system plans and specifications
Manhole location map
Lift station pump and wet well capacity information
Lift station O&M manuals

Within your sewer system have you identified the following?
Areas with flat sewers
Areas with surcharging
Areas with bottlenecks or constrictions
Areas with chronic basement backups or SSOs
Areas with excess debris, solids, or grease accumulation
Areas with heavy root growth
Areas with excessive infiltration/inflow (I/I)
Sewers with severe defects that affect flow capacity
Adequacy of capacity for new connections
Lift station capacity and/or pumping problems

Annual Self-Auditing of your O&M/CMOM Program to ensure above components are being
implemented, evaluated, and re-prioritized as needed
Special Studies Last Year (check only those that apply):

Infiltration/Inflow (I/I) Analysis
Sewer System Evaluation Survey (SSES)
Sewer Evaluation and Capacity Managment Plan (SECAP)
Lift Station Evaluation Report
Others:

0

2. Operation and Maintenance
2.1 Did your sanitary sewer collection system maintenance program include the following
maintenance activities? Complete all that apply and indicate the amount maintained.
Cleaning 5   % of system/year

Root removal 1   % of system/year

Flow monitoring 100   % of system/year

Smoke testing 0   % of system/year

Sewer line
televising 5   % of system/year

Manhole
inspections 25   % of system/year

Lift station O&M 8   # per L.S./year

Manhole
rehabilitation 0   % of manholes rehabbed

Mainline
rehabilitation 0   % of sewer lines rehabbed

Private sewer
inspections 0   % of system/year

Private sewer I/I
removal 0   % of private services

Please include additional comments about your sanitary sewer collection system below:

129



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Sister Bay Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

6/4/2015 2014

Inspections and cleaning of sewer mains and laterals was minimized this year due to time
constraints for other Village projects. Anticpate getting back on yearly schedule next year.

3. Performance Indicators
3.1 Provide the following collection system and flow information for the past year.

35.17 Total actual amount of precipitation last year in inches

30.0 Annual average precipitation (for your location)

29.12 Miles of sanitary sewer

8 Number of lift stations 

0 Number of lift station failures 

0 Number of sewer pipe failures

0 Number of basement backup occurrences

2 Number of complaints

.210 Average daily flow in MGD (if available)

.401 Peak monthly flow in MGD (if available) 

Peak hourly flow in MGD (if available)

3.2 Performance ratios for the past year:
Lift station failures (failures/year)

Sewer pipe failures (pipe failures/sewer mile/yr)

Sanitary sewer overflows (number/sewer mile/yr)

Basement backups (number/sewer mile)

Complaints (number/sewer mile)

Peaking factor ratio (Peak Monthly:Annual Daily Avg)

Peaking factor ratio (Peak Hourly:Annual Daily Avg)

4. Overflows

LIST OF SANITARY SEWER (SSO) AND TREATMENT FACILITY (TFO) OFERFLOWS REPORTED **
Date Location Cause Estimated

Volume (MG)

 None reported

** If there were any SSOs or TFOs that are not listed above, please contact the DNR and stop work
on this section until corrected.

5. Infiltration / Inflow (I/I)
5.1 Was infiltration/inflow (I/I) significant in your community last year?

Yes
No

If Yes, please describe:

We had a combination of a high snow pack and a quick melt in the spring that resulted in
infiltration issues and we had a 7" rainfall event in the Fall that resulted in infiltration issues.

5.2 Has infiltration/inflow and resultant high flows affected performance or created problems in
your collection system, lift stations, or treatment plant at any time in the past year?

Yes
No

If Yes, please describe:

130



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Sister Bay Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

6/4/2015 2014

5.3 Explain any infiltration/inflow (I/I) changes this year from previous years:

High snow pack, quick melt and 7" rainfall event or not usual weather events.

5.4 What is being done to address infiltration/inflow in your collection system?

Continue to clean, TV, and monitor sewer mains and private laterals on 15% of the Village
yearly.

Total Points Generated 0
Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100

Section Grade A

131



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Sister Bay Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

6/4/2015 2014

Grading Summary
WPDES No: 0022071

SECTIONS LETTER GRADE GRADE POINTS WEIGHTING
FACTORS

SECTION
POINTS

 Influent A 4 3 12
 BOD/CBOD A 4 10 40
 TSS A 4 5 20
 Phosphorus A 4 3 12
 Biosolids B 3 5 15
 Staffing/PM A 4 1 4
 OpCert A 4 1 4
 Financial A 4 1 4
 Collection A 4 3 12

 TOTALS 32 123
 GRADE POINT AVERAGE (GPA) = 3.84

Notes:
A = Voluntary Range (Response Optional)
B = Voluntary Range (Response Optional)
C = Recommendation Range (Response Required)
D = Action Range (Response Required)
F = Action Range (Response Required)

132



Compliance Maintenance Annual Report
Sister Bay Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For:

6/4/2015 2014

Resolution or Owner's Statement

 

Name of Governing
Body or Owner:
Date of Resolution or
Action Taken:
Resolution Number:
 

ACTIONS SET FORTH BY THE GOVERNING BODY OR OWNER RELATING TO SPECIFIC CMAR
SECTIONS (Optional for grade A or B. Required for grade C, D, or F. Regardless of grade, required
for Collection Systems if SSOs were reported):
Effluent Quality: BOD: Grade = A

Effluent Quality: TSS: Grade = A

Effluent Quality: Phosphorus: Grade = A

Biosolids Quality and Management: Grade = B

Staffing: Grade = A

Operator Certification: Grade = A

Financial Management: Grade = A

Collection Systems: Grade = A

ACTIONS SET FORTH BY THE GOVERNING BODY OR OWNER RELATING TO THE OVERALL GRADE
POINT AVERAGE AND ANY GENERAL COMMENTS (Optional for G.P.A. greater than or equal to 3.00,
required for G.P.A. less than 3.00)
G.P.A. = 3.84

133



 

Name: i:\1. 2015 agendas\board\2015\2015_10\04a br 4 ord 240-102015 amend ch 62 utilities.docx Created: 
10/16/2015 10:17 AM Printed: 10/16/2015 11:26 AM Author: Robert Kufrin Last Saved By: Zeke Jackson Revision: 2 

 
For additional information: www.sisterbaywi.gov 

 
Meeting Date: 10/20/15 

Item No. 4 
 
Recommendation: That the Board adopt Ordinance 240-102015, Amending the Sister Bay 
Utilities Code 
 
Background: From time to time, DNR changes administrative policies regarding our water sys-
tem, and how it relates to private wells.  In this instance, the regulations regarding cross con-
nections and testing were changed.  This amendment to Chapter 62 brings our local ordinance 
in line with current DNR requirements.  While a local ordinance is required, DNR is the driver 
or this change, and ultimately certifies our water system as compliant.  
 
Fiscal Impact: None at this time. 
 
       At your service, I am 
        
 
 
 
       Zeke Jackson 
       Village Administrator 

134

http://www.sisterbaywi.gov/


 
ORDINANCE NO. 240-102015 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE CHAPTER 62 OF THE VILLAGE UTILITIES CODE 

 
SECTION 1 INTRODUCTION 
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Village of Sister Bay, upon recommendation of the Utilities committee 
conducted a public hearing on October 20, 2015 on PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT AND, 
 
WHEREAS, The Board of Trustees of the Village of Sister Bay, upon recommendation of the Utilities Committee, 
conducted a public hearing on this amendment on OCTOBER 20, 2015; and, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Trustees of the Village of Sister Bay, Door County, Wisconsin, do ordain as fol-
lows: 
 
SECTION 2.00 INTENT 
This Ordinance is enacted to establish testing and connection standards for private wells in the Village of Sister 
Bay as required by the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources. 
 
SECTION 3.00 AUTHORITY 
This Ordinance is enacted under the authority granted by the Wisconsin Statutes and Administrative Rules 
promulgated by the Department of Natural Resources. 
 
SECTION 4.00 JURISDICTION 
The jurisdictional area of this Ordinance shall include all lands within the corporate limits of the Village of Sister 
Bay.  
 
SECTION 5.00 CREATION OF MUNICIPAL CODE PROVISIONS 
The following provisions are hereby created and incorporated into the Municipal Code of the Village of Sister 
Bay: 
   AS ATTACHED TO THIS DOCUMENT 
 
SECTION 5.00 SEVERABILITY 
If any section or part of this Ordinance is adjudged unconstitutional or invalid by any court of competent juris-
diction, the remainder of this Ordinance shall not be affected thereby. All other ordinances or parts of ordi-
nances of the Village inconsistent with this Ordinance to the extent of the inconsistency only are hereby re-
pealed. 
 
SECTION 6.00 EFFECTIVE DATE 
This Ordinance shall be effective after adoption by the Board of Trustees and publication or posting as provided 
by law. 
 
Note that this ordinance was published in the Door County Advocate as a Class II notice. 
 
Dated this 20th day of October, 2015 
 
     Village of Sister Bay 
 
By:  _____________________________________  Attest:_________________________ 
 Dave Lienau, President      Christine M. Sully, Clerk/Treasurer 
 
 

135



 1 

 2 

 3 

 4 
 5 
 6 
 7 
 8 
 9 
 10 

Utilities Code 11 

Chapter 62 12 

of the 13 

Municipal Code 14 

of the 15 

Village of 16 

Sister Bay, Wisconsin 17 

 18 

 19 

 20 

 21 

 22 

 23 

Amended:  24 
May 4, 2005 25 
December 13, 2005 26 
October 2, 2007 27 
August 12, 2008 28 
June 9, 2009 29 
July 14, 2009 30 
December 14, 2010 31 
This chapter was rewritten and renumbered August 14, 2012 as Ordinance 199 32 
August 13, 2013 33 
This chapter was rewritten December 10, 2013 as Ordinance 220 34 
December 10, 2013 35 

  36 

136



Chapter 62 1 

 2 
Utility Code 3 

 4 

Table of Contents 5 

 6 

Section 62.1 General Intent. ....................................................................................................................................... 1 7 
Section 62.2-4 Reserved. ........................................................................................................................................... 1 8 
Section 62.5 Sewer and Water System Requirements; Management Operation and Control. ................................... 1 9 
Section 62.6 Sewer and Water User Rules and Regulations. ..................................................................................... 2 10 
Section 62.7 Sewer Connection Fees. ........................................................................................................................ 9 11 
Section 62.8 Water Connection Fee. .......................................................................................................................... 9 12 
Section 62.9 User Charge System. ............................................................................................................................. 9 13 
Section 62.10 Payment of Charges. ......................................................................................................................... 10 14 
Section 62.11 Control of High Strength Waste and Septage Wastes. ....................................................................... 10 15 
Section 62.12-14 Reserved. ..................................................................................................................................... 12 16 
Section 62.15 Violations and Penalties. ................................................................................................................... 12 17 
Section 62.16 Definitions. ........................................................................................................................................ 13 18 
Section 62.17-19 Reserved. ..................................................................................................................................... 16 19 
Section 62.20 Establishment of Impact Fees ........................................................................................................... 18 20 
Section 62.21 Definitions ......................................................................................................................................... 18 21 
Section 62.22 Documentation .................................................................................................................................. 18 22 
Section 62.23 Revenues ........................................................................................................................................... 18 23 
Section 62.24 Time Limit for Expenditures ............................................................................................................. 18 24 
Section 62.25 Payment of Impact Fees .................................................................................................................... 18 25 
Section 62.26 Installment Payments ........................................................................................................................ 18 26 
Section 62.27 Appeals .............................................................................................................................................. 18 27 
Section 62.28 Impact Fee Amounts ......................................................................................................................... 19 28 

 29 

 30 

 31 

 32 

 33 

 34 

 35 

 36 

 37 

 38 

 39 

 40 

 41 

 42 

 43 

 44 

137



Section 62.1 General Intent. 1 
The general intent of this chapter is to establish rules for 2 
the village sewer system, water system, and the operation 3 
of private wells. 4 

Section 62.2-4 Reserved. 5 

Section 62.5 Sewer and Water System 6 
Requirements; Management Operation and 7 
Control. 8 
(a) Generally. The management operation and control 9 

of the sewer and water systems of the village are 10 
vested in the Village Board. All records, minutes, 11 
financial records and all written proceedings of the 12 
Village Board shall be kept by the administrator. 13 
The sewer and water systems are further regulated 14 
by the state department of natural resources. The 15 
water system is a separate utility established ac-16 
cording to the state public service commission and 17 
is by that subject to the rules and established rate 18 
file of the commission. A copy of the current rate 19 
file is available at the administrator's office and the 20 
Sewer and Water Utility Office. Besides the rules 21 
established by this chapter, all applicable county, 22 
state and federal rules shall be followed as they 23 
pertain to the sewer and water systems. 24 

(b) Construction. The board has the power to construct 25 
sewer and water lines for public use and has the 26 
power to lay sewer and water pipes in and through 27 
the alleys, streets and public grounds of the vil-28 
lage; and generally, to do all such work as may be 29 
found necessary or convenient in the management 30 
of the sewer and water systems. The board has 31 
power by itself, its officers, agents and servants to 32 
enter upon any land for making examination or su-33 
pervise in the performance of its duties under this 34 
chapter without liability therefore; and the board 35 
has power to purchase and acquire for the village 36 
all real and personal property that may be neces-37 
sary for construction of the sewer and water sys-38 
tems or for any repair, remodeling or additions 39 
thereto. 40 

(c) Maintenance of services. The owner shall maintain 41 
sewer and water services from the street main to 42 
the house including all controls between the street 43 
main and the house, without expense to the village, 44 
unless they are damaged by the village. All claims 45 
for damage by the village must be made by the 46 
owner to the village according to applicable law. 47 
All sewer and water services must be maintained 48 
free of defective conditions by and at the expense 49 
of the owner or occupant of the property. When 50 
any sewer and water services are to be re-laid and 51 
there are two or more buildings on such service, 52 
each building shall be disconnected from such ser-53 
vice and new sewer and water services shall be in-54 
stalled for each building. 55 

(d) Condemnation of real estate. Whenever any real 56 
estate or any easement therein, or use of it, shall in 57 
the judgment of the board be necessary to the sew-58 
er and water systems, and whenever, for any cause, 59 
an agreement for the purchase of it cannot be made 60 
with the owner, the board may proceed with all 61 
necessary steps to take such real estate, easement 62 
or use, by condemnation according to statute and 63 
the Uniform Relocation and Real Property Acqui-64 
sition Policy Act of 1970, if Federal Funds are 65 
used. 66 

(e) Title to real estate and personalty. All property, re-67 
al, personal and mixed, acquired for the construc-68 
tion of the sewer and water systems, and all plans, 69 
specifications, diagrams, papers, books and records 70 
connected with such sewer system, and all build-71 
ings, machinery and fixtures pertaining thereto, 72 
shall be the property of the village. 73 

74 

138



Section 62.6 Sewer and Water User Rules and 1 
Regulations. 2 
(Sections 62.6(a)-(d) amended Ordinance No. 152-3 
060909) 4 

(a) Purpose. The Village of Sister Bay is committed to 5 
providing clean drinking water to all of its resi-6 
dents in particular to the customers of the Village’s 7 
Water Utility. The Village Board finds and deter-8 
mines that improperly constructed, unused or im-9 
properly abandoned private wells are a known 10 
pathway for the entrance of contaminants into 11 
groundwater aquifers, which aquifers also supply 12 
the municipal water system. It is further deter-13 
mined that cross connecting of private wells and 14 
municipal water sources may lead to contamina-15 
tion. Contamination of the Village’s water supply 16 
would severely and adversely affect the health, 17 
safety and general welfare of Village residents, 18 
particularly since contamination once introduced is 19 
extremely difficult to correct. Therefore, it is nec-20 
essary and in the public interest that all wells with-21 
in the corporate limits of the Village, whether ex-22 
isting or hereafter installed, shall be effectively 23 
monitored and regulated in regard to their creation, 24 
operation and abandonment as set forth in this sec-25 
tion. 26 

 The rules and regulations of the Village concerning 27 
sewer and water users in this chapter shall be con-28 
sidered a part of the contract with every person, 29 
company or corporation who is connected to or us-30 
es the Village sewer and water systems, and every 31 
person, company or corporation by connecting 32 
with the sewer system or wastewater treatment fa-33 
cility shall be considered as expressing his/her or 34 
their assent to be bound. In addition, these rules 35 
and regulations of the Village in this chapter shall 36 
apply to all properties, persons, companies or cor-37 
porations who use wells, septic systems and hold-38 
ing tanks in the Village not currently receiving ser-39 
vice from the Village.  40 

 The Village Board reserves the right to change the 41 
rules and regulations from time to time, as it may 42 
deem advisable; and to make special rates and con-43 
tracts in all proper cases. Persons connected to the 44 
sewer and water systems of the Village are referred 45 
to in this chapter as “users.” This chapter ordains 46 
that the failure to connect to the sewer and water 47 
system is contrary to the minimum health stand-48 
ards of the Village and fails to ensure preservation 49 
of public health, comfort and safety of Village res-50 
idents. 51 

(b) Plumbers. No plumber, pipe fitter or other person 52 
will be permitted to do any plumbing or pipefitting 53 
work related to the sewer or water system without 54 
first receiving a license from the State. All service 55 
connections to the sewer main or water main shall 56 
comply with the State plumbing code. The Village 57 
herein adopts by reference Chapter COMM. 82, 58 

Wisconsin Administrative Code, of the State 59 
Plumbing Code. This section does not supersede 60 
the State Plumbing Code and Chapter 14 of this 61 
Municipal Code, but is supplementary to them. 62 

(c) Mandatory hookup. 63 

(1) The owner of each parcel adjacent to sewer 64 
and water mains on which there exists a 65 
building usable for human occupation, or in 66 
a block through which utility systems ex-67 
tend, shall connect to the systems. Once the 68 
new system is placed in service, the proper-69 
ty owner will receive a written notice that 70 
they must connect within 180 days from 71 
that notice. Once 180 days have lapsed and 72 
the property has not connected to the sys-73 
tem, the Village may provide a second writ-74 
ten notice that the Village is commencing 75 
the process to undertake the work and will 76 
bill the property owner for the costs includ-77 
ing all administrative and staff expenses. 78 
Costs not paid within 30 days shall be as-79 
sessed as a special tax lien against the 80 
property. The owner may within 30 days af-81 
ter the completion of the work file a written 82 
option with the Utility Manager stating that 83 
he/she cannot pay the amount in one sum 84 
and ask that it be levied in no more than 85 
five equal annual installments and that the 86 
amount shall be so collected with interest at 87 
prime rate plus 7 percent maximum per an-88 
num from the completion of the work, the 89 
unpaid balance being a special tax lien, all 90 
pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes § 281.45. 91 

(2) Instead of the provisions of subsection 92 
(c)(1) of this section, the Village at its op-93 
tion may impose a penalty for the period 94 
that the violation continues, after ten days 95 
written notice to any owner failing to make 96 
a connection to the sewer and water sys-97 
tems, of an amount equal to four times the 98 
minimum quarterly charge for the sewer, 99 
fire protection and water service payable 100 
quarterly for the period in which the failure 101 
to connect continues, and, upon failure to 102 
make the payment, a charge shall be as-103 
sessed as a special tax lien against the 104 
property, all pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes 105 
§ 281.45.  106 

(d) Private Wells in General. To prevent unused, un-107 
safe and/or improperly constructed wells from 108 
serving as a passage for contaminated surface or 109 
near surface waters or other materials to reach the 110 
usable groundwater, these wells must be properly 111 
maintained or filled and sealed. Section NR 112 
811.10, Wisconsin Administrative Code, provides 113 
that a municipal water system shall require aban-114 
donment of all unused, unsafe or non-complying 115 
private wells located on premises served by the 116 

139



water system. All properties within the Village lim-1 
its shall be governed by this section. All property 2 
owners must obtain a well permit as specified be-3 
low in order to operate or utilize a well. 4 

(1) Private Well Abandonment Requirements.  5 

  a. Any private well which is unused, 6 
unsafe or non-complying and which 7 
serves any premises required to be 8 
connected to a water main under 9 
Section 62.2 of this Chapter shall be 10 
permanently abandoned within six 11 
months after connection of the 12 
premises to the water system, unless 13 
a well operation permit has been 14 
obtained by the well owner pursuant 15 
to subsection (2) below. Abandon-16 
ment shall be conducted by filling 17 
and sealing in accordance with the 18 
provisions of Chapter NR 812 Wis-19 
consin Administrative Code. It shall 20 
be the responsibility of the land-21 
owner of any real property upon 22 
which a well is located to see to it 23 
that all wells located on the owner’s 24 
property have been properly aban-25 
doned in accordance with the pro-26 
cedures of Wisconsin Administra-27 
tive Code NR Chapter 812, regard-28 
less of whether the owner has used 29 
the well. Upon discovery of any un-30 
used or previously abandoned well, 31 
the owner shall notify the Village 32 
and comply, insofar as is practica-33 
ble, with the procedures of this sec-34 
tion. In the case of a previously 35 
abandoned well, if the owner can 36 
produce proof of compliance with 37 
state well abandonment require-38 
ments to the satisfaction of the Vil-39 
lage, compliance with this section 40 
may be deemed satisfied. The de-41 
termination shall be at the discretion 42 
of the Utility Manager upon consid-43 
ering the present and future possi-44 
bility of ground water contamina-45 
tion at the well site. 46 

  b. The owner of the well or the own-47 
er’s agent who will conduct the 48 
abandonment shall notify the Vil-49 
lage at least two business days prior 50 
to commencement of any well 51 
abandonment activities so that the 52 
Village may observe the abandon-53 
ment. 54 

  c. Wells must be abandoned by li-55 
censed well drillers and or pump in-56 
stallers.  57 

  d. Wells to be abandoned shall be 58 
filled according to the procedures 59 
outlined in Wisconsin Administra-60 
tive Code NR Chapter 812. The 61 
pump and piping must be removed 62 
and the well checked for obstruc-63 
tions before plugging. Any obstruc-64 
tion or liner must be removed. A 65 
well abandonment report must be 66 
submitted by the well owner to the 67 
State Department of Natural Re-68 
sources on forms provided by that 69 
agency and a copy provided to the 70 
Village. The report shall be submit-71 
ted immediately upon completion of 72 
the filling of the well.  73 

 (2) Permit for wells for outdoor or agricultural 74 
watering for properties served by Village 75 
Utilities. 76 

  a. Any owner of a private well which 77 
is required to be permanently aban-78 
doned pursuant to subsection (1)(a) 79 
above shall apply to the Village for 80 
permission to maintain the well in 81 
good operating condition for the 82 
sole purpose of providing water for 83 
filling swimming pools, lawn or 84 
garden watering or other similar ag-85 
ricultural purpose, provided that the 86 
well continues to pass all tests re-87 
quired for private wells and the 88 
owner shall agree to pay the cost of 89 
abandonment when the well shall be 90 
permanently abandoned.  91 

  b. Every owner of a private well 92 
which was in existence on January 93 
1, 1990, that serves premises also 94 
served by the municipal water sys-95 
tem and who wants to continue to 96 
use the well shall obtain a permit 97 
for the use of the well from the Vil-98 
lage within 90 days from the effec-99 
tive date of this section § 62.6(d)(2) 100 
determined to be May 14, 1991. 101 
Drilling new private wells that will 102 
be used under the circumstances de-103 
scribed in this subsection may not 104 
commence until a permit for the ex-105 
cavation of the private well has 106 
been granted in accordance with the 107 
terms of this section.  108 

  c. Applications for a permit for the 109 
excavation or use of a private well 110 
under this section shall be made in 111 
writing by the owner or owners of 112 
the well to the Village on forms 113 
provided by the Village. A $50 pro-114 
cessing fee shall accompany any 115 

140



private well excavation or renewal 1 
permit application. A permit shall 2 
be granted to a well owner to oper-3 
ate a well for a period not to exceed 4 
five years if the requirements of this 5 
subsection are met. Failure to obtain 6 
an initial or renewal permit will re-7 
sult in a late permit fee of $100 plus 8 
the penalties in section (6). Permit 9 
applications shall be made and 10 
submitted on forms provided by the 11 
Village. Permits and permit renew-12 
als will be granted under this sec-13 
tion only for wells and pump instal-14 
lations where: 15 

   (1) No physical connection shall 16 
exist between the piping of 17 
the public water system and 18 
the private well. 19 

(e)    (2) Bacteriologi-20 
cally safe water is evidenced 21 
by at least one two samples,  22 
taken a minimum of two 23 
weeks apart.  24 
 (3) There are no 25 
known exceedances of the 26 
preventive action limits 27 
(PALs) set forth in Chapter 28 
NR 140, Wisconsin Admin-29 
istrative Code.  30 

   (4) (4) The well and pump 31 
installation shall meet the 32 
requirements of Wisconsin 33 
Administrative Code NR 34 
Chapter 812 in effect at the 35 
time of the well construction 36 
and pump installation.  A 37 
well constructor’s report 38 
shall be on file with the 39 
State Department of Natural 40 
Resources or Certification  41 
of the Acceptability of the 42 
well shall have been granted 43 
by the private water supply 44 
section of the State Depart-45 
ment of Natural Resources.  46 
The well and pump system 47 
shall be evaluated by a li-48 
censed well driller or pump 49 
installer and certified to 50 
comply with ch. NR 812 sub 51 
ch.IV, every 10 years after-52 
ward.  Written documenta-53 
tion of the well and pump 54 
inspection indicating com-55 
pliance with DNR Wis. 56 
Adm. Code Ch. NR 812 re-57 
quirements using standard-58 

ized forms provided by the 59 
DNR. 60 

   (5) The proposed use of the well 61 
can be justified as necessary 62 
in addition to water provid-63 
ed by the public water sys-64 
tem. 65 

    66 

 (3) Permit for existing wells for properties not 67 
served by Village Utilities.  68 

  a. Every owner of a private well, 69 
which was in existence on June 1, 70 
2009, in the Village that serves their 71 
property, shall obtain a permit for 72 
the use of the well from the Village 73 
within 90 days from the effective 74 
date of this section.  75 

  b. A section (3)(a) well permit will be 76 
for a period of five years upon issu-77 
ance. The initial permit shall cost 78 
$50. The subsequent renewal permit 79 
processing fee shall be $50. Failure 80 
to obtain an initial or renewal per-81 
mit will result in a late permit fee of 82 
$100 plus the penalties in section 83 
(6). Permit applications shall be 84 
made and submitted on forms pro-85 
vided by the Village. 86 

  c. The well owner or operator shall 87 
every five years, on a schedule es-88 
tablished by the Village, provide the 89 
Village with written evidence that 90 
the well produces bacteriologically 91 
safe water as evidenced by two  one 92 
safe water sample.s taken a mini-93 
mum of one week apart. The report 94 
shall be submitted during the period 95 
June 1 — September 1 of each year. 96 
If the well does not meet the safe 97 
water requirements or is unsafe the 98 
owner must either repair or replace 99 
the well. However, prior to under-100 
taking any repairs or replacement of 101 
the well the property owner must 102 
meet with the Utility Manager to 103 
determine if the proposed repairs or 104 
replacement would solve the con-105 
tamination problem or if some other 106 
course of action is more practical. 107 
In lieu of repairing or replacing the 108 
well, the property owner may re-109 
quest the Village extend municipal 110 
water to serve that property.  111 

 (4) Permit for new wells for properties not 112 
served by Village Utilities.  113 

141



  a. After January 1, 2009, the drilling 1 
of new private wells that will be 2 
used under the circumstances de-3 
scribed in this section may not 4 
commence until a permit for the ex-5 
cavation of the private well has 6 
been granted in accordance with the 7 
terms of this section. 8 

  b. A section (4)(a) well permit will be 9 
for a period of five years upon issu-10 
ance and the initial permit shall cost 11 
$50. Failure to obtain a permit will 12 
result in a late permit fee of $100 13 
plus the penalties in section (6). 14 
Permit applications shall be made 15 
and submitted on forms provided by 16 
the Village. 17 

  c. The well owner or operator shall 18 
every five years, on a schedule es-19 
tablished by the Village, provide the 20 
Village with written evidence that 21 
the well produces bacteriologically 22 
safe water as evidenced by two one 23 
safe water samples taken a mini-24 
mum of one week apart. The report 25 
shall be submitted during the period 26 
June 1 — September 1 of each year. 27 
If the well does not meet the safe 28 
water requirements or is unsafe the 29 
owner must either repair or replace 30 
the well. However, prior to under-31 
taking any repairs or replacement of 32 
the well the property owner must 33 
meet with the Utility Manager to 34 
determine if the proposed repairs or 35 
replacement would solve the con-36 
tamination problem or if some other 37 
course of action is more practical. 38 
In lieu of repairing or replacing the 39 
well, the property owner may re-40 
quest the Village extend municipal 41 
water to serve that property. 42 

 (5) Additional conditions of well permit. The 43 
right to construct, install and maintain a 44 
well as authorized by permit under this sec-45 
tion shall be expressly conditioned upon 46 
the owners and successors in interest com-47 
plying with the following: 48 

  a. The owner shall permit the Village 49 
access to the well for inspection and 50 
testing at any time during normal 51 
working hours. If entry is refused, 52 
the well permit is revoked and the 53 
owner shall proceed with abandon-54 
ment as specified above. On re-55 
quest, the owner, lessee or occupant 56 
of any property so served shall fur-57 
nish to the inspector any pertinent 58 

information regarding the piping 59 
system on the property. 60 

  b. No repair or modification of any 61 
well may be performed unless done 62 
by a properly licensed individual. 63 
At least one business day notice to 64 
the Village prior to undertaking the 65 
repairs is required so the work may 66 
be inspected. Any and all plumbing 67 
code permits as required shall also 68 
be obtained prior to undertaking any 69 
work. 70 

  c. The Village shall have the right to 71 
sample the water after completion 72 
of any repairs or modifications. The 73 
sampling shall be at the owner’s 74 
cost and may either be done by the 75 
Village or by the owner at the Vil-76 
lage’s direction. 77 

  d. The Village shall have the right to 78 
randomly test or to direct the owner 79 
to test the well not more than two 80 
times in any six-month period. The 81 
Village may require additional test-82 
ing if there is reason to believe 83 
some contamination may be present 84 
or that the results of previous tests 85 
may be invalid. The Village at its 86 
option may require testing for con-87 
taminates to include microbiologi-88 
cal, radioactive, inorganic, synthetic 89 
organic, pesticides, herbicides and 90 
volatile organic substances. The 91 
Utility Manager shall report the re-92 
sults of testing and the resulting re-93 
medial action to the DNR on an an-94 
nual basis. If the test results suggest 95 
that a severe or area wide problem 96 
exists the Utility Manager shall no-97 
tify the DNR immediately. 98 

  e. The cost of any testing and sam-99 
pling as provided in this section 100 
shall be paid by the owner upon in-101 
voice by the Village. 102 

  f. A permit issued in accordance with 103 
the provisions of this section shall 104 
be revoked by the Utility Manager 105 
upon notice to the permittee that 106 
any of the following have occurred: 107 

   1. The owner of the well has 108 
refused access to a well for 109 
testing or has failed to fol-110 
low a direction of order of 111 
the Village in regard to test-112 
ing or sampling. 113 

   2. The owner of any well has 114 
neglected to pay for any 115 

142



tests authorized with 30 1 
days of billing or invoice. 2 

   3. Any test results demonstrate 3 
well contamination and do 4 
not meet reasonable health 5 
standards or are in violation 6 
of any state or municipal or-7 
dinance dealing with well 8 
operation. 9 

   4. The parties aggrieved by 10 
permit revocation may ap-11 
peal the initial decision of 12 
the Utility Manager to the 13 
Village Board by filing a 14 
written petition for review 15 
with the Village clerk-16 
treasurer. 17 

  18 
 (e) Private wastewater systems prohibited. The 19 

maintenance and use of septic tanks and other pri-20 
vate sewage disposal systems within the area the 21 
village services by its sewer system are declared a 22 
public nuisance and a health hazard. The use of 23 
septic tanks or any private sewage disposal system 24 
within the area of the village serviced by the sew-25 
erage system is prohibited. 26 

(f) Application for initial sewer and water service. 27 
Every person connecting with the sewer and water 28 
systems initially shall file an application in writing 29 
to the Utility Manager in such form as is pre-30 
scribed for that purpose. Blanks for such applica-31 
tion will be furnished at the office of the adminis-32 
trator and the Sewer and Water Utility Office. The 33 
application must state fully and truly all the uses 34 
the applicant intends to make of the sewer and wa-35 
ter systems. If the applicant is not the owner of the 36 
premises, the written consent of the owner must 37 
accompany the application. If it appears that the 38 
service applied for will not provide adequate ser-39 
vice for the contemplated use, the board may reject 40 
the application. If the board approves the applica-41 
tion, it shall issue a permit for services as shown 42 
on the application. 43 

(g) Septage disposal. Between August 1 and Septem-44 
ber 1 of each year, every licensed disposer wishing 45 
to discharge septage to the village's wastewater 46 
treatment works shall file a nonrefundable filing 47 
fee and an application in writing to the board in 48 
such a form as is prescribed for that purpose. Dur-49 
ing the months of July and August, forms for such 50 
application will be furnished at the office of the 51 
Utility Manager. The application must state fully 52 
and truly the type, frequency, quantity, quality and 53 
location of generated septage to be disposed at the 54 
village's wastewater treatment works. During Sep-55 
tember, the board will evaluate the applications 56 
and determine the amount and conditions of sep-57 
tage disposal at the village's wastewater treatment 58 

facility. The board shall approve or reject all appli-59 
cations by October 1 of each year. If the board 60 
cannot accept the proposed septage disposal, then 61 
consideration shall be given first to those genera-62 
tors of septage that are within the septage service 63 
area. The septage service area includes the Town 64 
of Liberty Grove, the village and the Liberty 65 
Grove Sanitary District No. 1. All village approv-66 
als for septage disposal shall have the condition 67 
that any time the wastewater treatment works has 68 
operational problems, maintenance problems or the 69 
threat of WPDES permit violations that are indi-70 
rectly or directly related to septage disposal, the 71 
village may immediately restrict septage disposal 72 
outside the septage service area until corrective ac-73 
tion or mitigative measures have been taken. Sep-74 
tage shall be discharged only at the village 75 
wastewater treatment plant and only by village ap-76 
proved and state licensed disposers and at loca-77 
tions, times and conditions as specified by the 78 
board. 79 

(h) User to keep in repair. All users shall keep their 80 
own sewer service pipes in good repair and pro-81 
tected from frost, at their own risk and expense, 82 
and shall prevent any unnecessary overburdening 83 
of the sewer system. The service pipe shall be de-84 
fined to be the building drain and building sewer 85 
pipe extending from the interior drain of the build-86 
ing to the sanitary sewer main. 87 

(i) Backflow preventor. All floor drains shall have a 88 
backflow prevention valve installed at the owner's 89 
expense. 90 

(j) User use only. No user shall allow others or other 91 
services to connect to the sewer or water system 92 
through his lateral. 93 

(k) Vacating of premises and discontinuance of ser-94 
vice. Whenever premises served by the system are 95 
to be vacated, or whenever any person wants to 96 
end service from the system, the Utility Manager 97 
must be notified in writing. Upon such notifica-98 
tion, the village will cause an inspection to be 99 
made of the system. If any damages are discovered 100 
having occurred to the system, other than through 101 
the fault of the system itself, or village employees, 102 
representatives or agents, the owner of the premis-103 
es shall be liable for such damages. 104 

(l) User to permit inspection. Every user shall allow 105 
the board or its duly authorized agent, at all rea-106 
sonable hours of the day, to enter their premises or 107 
building to examine the pipes and fixtures and the 108 
manner in which the drains and sewer connections 109 
operate. 110 

(m) Damage and repairs. No claim shall be made 111 
against the village or acting representative due to 112 
the breaking, clogging, stoppage or freezing of any 113 
service pipes; nor from any damage arising from 114 
repairing mains, making connections or extensions 115 

143



or any other work that may be deemed necessary. 1 
The right is here reserved to cut off the service any 2 
time for repairs or any other necessary purpose, 3 
any permit granted or regulations to the contrary 4 
notwithstanding. Whenever it shall become neces-5 
sary to shut off the sewer or water service within 6 
any area of the village, the Utility Manager shall, if 7 
practicable, give notice to every consumer within 8 
the village, of the time when such service will shut 9 
off. 10 

(n) Water cross connection control. 11 

(1) No person shall establish or permit to be es-12 
tablished or maintain or permit to be maintained 13 
any cross connection. A cross connection shall be 14 
defined as any physical connection or arrangement 15 
between two otherwise separate systems, one of 16 
which contains potable water from the village wa-17 
ter system, and the other, water from a private 18 
source, water of unknown or questionable safety, 19 
or steam, gases or chemicals so there may be a 20 
flow from one system to the other, the direction of 21 
flow depending on the pressure differential be-22 
tween the two systems. No interconnection shall be 23 
established so potable water from a private, auxil-24 
iary or emergency water supply other than the reg-25 
ular water supply of the village may enter the sup-26 
ply or distribution system of the village, unless 27 
such private, auxiliary or emergency water supply 28 
and the method of connection and use of such sup-29 
ply shall have been approved by the village and by 30 
the state department of natural resources. 31 

(2) It is the duty of the village to cause inspec-32 
tions to be made of all properties served by the 33 
public water system where cross connections with 34 
the public water system is deemed possible. The 35 
frequency of inspections and reinspections based 36 
on potential health hazards involved shall be as es-37 
tablished by the board and as approved by the state 38 
department of natural resources. 39 

(3) Upon presentation of credentials, a repre-40 
sentative of the village shall have the right to re-41 
quest entry at any reasonable time to examine any 42 
property served by a connection to the public water 43 
system of the village for cross connections. If entry 44 
is refused, such representative may obtain a special 45 
inspection warrant under Wis. Stats. § 66.0119. On 46 
request, the owner, lessee or occupant of any prop-47 
erty so served shall furnish to the inspection agen-48 
cy any pertinent information regarding the piping 49 
systems on such property. 50 

(4) The village shall cease water service to any 51 
property in which any connection violating this 52 
chapter exists and to take such other precautionary 53 
measures deemed necessary to eliminate any dan-54 
ger of contamination of the water system. Water 55 
service shall be ceased only after reasonable notice 56 
and opportunity for hearing under Wis. Stats. 57 
Chapter 68, except as provided here. Water service 58 
to such property shall not be restored until the 59 
cross connection has been eliminated in compli-60 
ance with the provisions of this chapter. 61 

(5) If it is determined by the village that a cross 62 
connection or an emergency endangers public 63 
health, safety or welfare and requires immediate 64 
action, and a written finding to that effect is filed 65 
with the Utility Manager and delivered to the cus-66 
tomer's premises, service may be immediately 67 
ceased. The customer shall have an opportunity for 68 
a hearing under Wis. Stats. Chapter 68 within ten 69 
days of emergency discontinuance. 70 

(o) Prohibitions against discharge to sewer. No person 71 
shall discharge or cause to be discharged any of the 72 
following described liquids or solid wastes to any 73 
sanitary sewer or to the wastewater treatment facil-74 
ity: 75 

(1) Any stormwater, surface water, groundwa-76 
ter, roof run off, sump pump, surface drainage, or 77 
any other connections from inflow sources to the 78 
sanitary sewer. Such waters may be discharged to a 79 
storm sewer or other waterway with written per-80 
mission of the village. 81 

(2) Any gasoline, benzene, naphtha, fuel oil, 82 
lubricating oil or other flammable or explosive liq-83 
uid, solid or gas or other substances that by them-84 
selves or by interaction with other substances may 85 
cause fire or explosion hazards, or in any other 86 
way harmful to persons, property or the operation 87 
of the wastewater facilities. 88 

(3) Any waters or wastes containing toxic or 89 
poisonous substances in sufficient quantity, either 90 
singly or by interaction with other wastes, which 91 
will injure or interfere with any wastewater treat-92 
ment process, constitute a hazard to humans or an-93 
imals, create a public nuisance in the receiving wa-94 
ters of the wastewater treatment plant or interfer-95 
ence with the disposal of sludge. 96 

(4) Any waters or wastes having a pH lower 97 
than five or having any other corrosive property 98 
capable of causing damage or hazard to structures, 99 
equipment and personnel or the wastewater facili-100 
ty. 101 

(5) Any waters or wastes having a pH more 102 
than ten. 103 

(6) Solid or viscous substances in quantities or 104 
of a size capable of causing obstruction to the flow 105 
in sewers or other interference with the proper op-106 

144



eration of the wastewater facilities such as, but not 1 
limited to, ashes, cinders, sand, rocks, mud, straw, 2 
shavings, metal, glass, rags, feathers, tar, plastics, 3 
wood, unground garbage, whole blood, paunch 4 
manure, hair or fleshings, entrails, paper dishes, 5 
cups, milk containers, etc., either whole or ground 6 
by garbage grinders. 7 

(7) Any discharge into the sanitary sewerage 8 
system that is violating the requirements of the 9 
WPDES permit and the modifications of it. 10 

(8) Wastewater having a temperature higher 11 
than 150 degrees Fahrenheit or cause the 12 
wastewater at the treatment facility to exceed 104 13 
degrees Fahrenheit. 14 

(9) Any waters or wastes which may contain 15 
more than 100 parts per million by weight of oils, 16 
fat or grease. 17 

(10) Any garbage that has not been properly 18 
shredded. Garbage grinders may be connected to 19 
sanitary sewers from homes, hotels, institutions, 20 
restaurants, hospitals, catering establishments or 21 
similar places where garbage originates from the 22 
preparation of food in kitchens for consumption on 23 
the premises or when served by caterers. 24 

(11) Any waters or wastes containing iron, 25 
chromium, copper, zinc, mercury and similar ob-26 
jectionable or toxic substances to such degree that 27 
any such material received in the composite 28 
wastewater at the treatment facility exceeds the 29 
limits established by the village for such materials. 30 

(12) Any waters or wastes containing odor-31 
producing substances exceeding limits that may be 32 
established by the village. 33 

(13) Any radioactive wastes or isotopes of a 34 
half-life or concentration as may exceed limits es-35 
tablished by the village complying with applicable 36 
state or federal regulations. 37 

(14) Quantities of flow, concentrations or both 38 
that form a slug load as defined in this chapter. 39 

(15) Incompatible pollutants containing sub-40 
stances that are not amenable to treatment or re-41 
duction by the wastewater treatment processes em-42 
ployed, or are amenable to treatment only to such 43 
degree that the wastewater treatment facility efflu-44 
ent cannot meet the requirements of other agencies 45 
having jurisdiction over discharge to the receiving 46 
waters. 47 

(16) Any waters or wastes that, by interaction 48 
with other waters or wastes in the public sewer 49 
system, release obnoxious gases, form suspended 50 
solids that interfere with the collection system or 51 
create a condition deleterious to structures and 52 
treatment processes. 53 

(17) Materials, which exert or cause: 54 

a. Unusually high BOD5, chemical 55 
oxygen demand or chlorine requirements, 56 
such as, but not limited to, whey in such 57 
quantities as to form a significant load on 58 
the wastewater treatment facility. 59 

b. Unusual flow or concentrated 60 
wastes forming a slug load as defined in 61 
this chapter. 62 

c. Unusual concentrations of inert sus-63 
pended solids (such as, but not limited to, 64 
fuller's earth, lime slurries and lime resi-65 
dues) or of dissolved solids (such as, but 66 
not limited to, sodium sulfate). 67 

d. Excessive discoloration (such as, 68 
but not limited to, dye wastes and vegetable 69 
tanning solutions). 70 

(p) Special wastewater agreements. No statement con-71 
tained in this chapter shall be construed as prohib-72 
iting any special agreement between the village 73 
and any person by which an industrial waste of 74 
unusual strength or character may be admitted to 75 
the wastewater treatment facility, either before or 76 
after pretreatment, if there is no impairment of the 77 
functioning of the wastewater treatment facility 78 
due to the admission of the wastes and no extra 79 
costs are incurred by the village without recom-80 
pense by the person, if all rates and provisions set 81 
forth in this chapter are complied with. 82 

(q) Wastewater permit required. It shall be unlawful to 83 
discharge to any natural waterway within the vil-84 
lage or in any area under the jurisdiction of the vil-85 
lage any sewage or other polluted waters without 86 
first obtaining a WPDES permit. 87 

(r) Abandoned water connection. Whenever any con-88 
nection to the Water System is abandoned because 89 
the building to which the connection is made has 90 
been abandoned, destroyed or removed, the prop-91 
erty owner must remove any pipe or connections in 92 
the public right of way or easement and cap, plug 93 
or otherwise seal the pipe or main as approved by 94 
the Utility Manager. The property owner must no-95 
tify the Utility Manager at least three (3) business 96 
days in advance of the intent to abandon a lateral. 97 
The lateral abandonment must be inspected by the 98 
Water Utility during normal working hours before 99 
burial takes place. If proper abandonment is not 100 
performed, the Water Utility may authorize this 101 
work done and billed back to the property owner 102 
or placed on the tax roll as a special assessment or 103 
fee.  104 

(s) Abandoned sewer connection. Whenever any con-105 
nection to the Wastewater Collection System is 106 
abandoned because the building to which the con-107 
nection is made has been abandoned, destroyed or 108 
removed, the property owner must expose the line 109 
at the property line, disconnect and permanently 110 
cap the pipe or connections in the public right of 111 

145



way or easement and cap, plug or otherwise seal 1 
the pipe or main as approved by the Utility Man-2 
ager. The property owner must notify the Utility 3 
Manager at least three (3) business days in advance 4 
of the intent to abandon a lateral. The lateral aban-5 
donment must be inspected by the Sewer Utility 6 
during normal working hours before burial takes 7 
place. If proper abandonment is not performed, the 8 
Sewer Utility may authorize this work done and 9 
billed back to the property owner. 10 

Section 62.7 Sewer Connection Fees. 11 
(a) Sewer connection fees. All new users to the sewer 12 

system are required to buy into the system wide 13 
improvements through an initial connection 14 
charge. The initial connection charge will be levied 15 
against each user connected to the sanitary sewer. 16 
The single-family residence connection charge will 17 
be on file in the village payable before connection 18 
to the sewer. Initial connection charge for multiple-19 
family, commercial or industrial buildings will be 20 
based on a multiple of the single-family connec-21 
tion charge or residential equivalent user (REU). 22 
The initial connection charge for restaurants, small 23 
commercial or industrial connections will be based 24 
on a multiple of the volume of water usage and 25 
strength of wastewater in comparison to a typical 26 
single-family residence residential equivalent user 27 
having the following standards: 28 

REU Standards 29 

Volume 225 gallons per day 

BOD (Biochemical Oxy-
gen Demand) 

0.51 pounds per day 

SS (Suspended Solids) 0.60 pounds per day 

Phosphorus 0.03 pounds per day 

 30 

(b) The Utility Committee shall establish and maintain 31 
a methodology to charge a connection fee for all 32 
properties taking into account the cost of materials, 33 
equipment and vehicles, the cost of employee time 34 
to perform the work and to set up the account for 35 
billing purposes.  36 

Section 62.8 Water Connection Fee. 37 
(a) Water Lateral Installation Charge. The initial water 38 

service lateral(s), not installed as part of a subdivi-39 
sion development or an assessable utility exten-40 
sion, will be installed from the main through the 41 
curb stop and box by the utility, for which the ac-42 
tual cost will be charged. (Amended Ordinance 43 
133-100207) 44 

(b) The Utility Committee shall establish and maintain 45 
a methodology to charge a connection fee for all 46 
properties taking into account the cost of materials, 47 
equipment and vehicles, the cost of employee time 48 

to perform the work and to set up the account for 49 
billing purposes.  50 

Section 62.9 User Charge System. 51 
(a) Policy. It is the policy of the Village Board to ob-52 

tain sufficient revenues to pay the costs of the op-53 
eration and maintenance of the water, wastewater 54 
collections and treatment facilities, including a re-55 
placement fund (i.e., a cash account to be used for 56 
future expenditures for obtaining or installing 57 
equipment, accessories or appurtenances that are 58 
necessary to maintain the capacity and perfor-59 
mance of those facilities during the service life for 60 
which such facilities were designed and construct-61 
ed), through a system of water and sewer service 62 
charges as defined in this section. The system shall 63 
ensure that each user of the sewerage facilities 64 
pays a proportionate share of the cost of facilities. 65 

(b) Reassignment of users. The village will reassign 66 
water and sewer users into appropriate water and 67 
sewer service charge categories if wastewater 68 
sampling programs, changes in water demand and 69 
other related information show a change of catego-70 
ries is necessary. 71 

(c) Sewer User charge methodology. The Utility 72 
Committee shall establish and approve the meth-73 
odology for sewer use rates. The following factors 74 
shall be used to calculate the debt service and op-75 
eration, maintenance and replacement charges for 76 
the treatment of village and outside wastewaters: 77 

(1) Debt service charges. 78 

 (2) Operation, maintenance and replacement 79 
charges. 80 

 (3) Surcharges. All users shall pay a surcharge 81 
on wastewater exceeding normal concentrations. 82 

(e) Water User Charge System. The methodology for 83 
determining water rates is established by the Wis-84 
consin Public Service Commission. The water user 85 
charges are established and included in the Wis-86 
consin Public Service Commission (WPSC) rate 87 
file established for the village. 88 

(f) Review and approval of rates. The Village Utility 89 
Committee shall provide oversight of the utilities 90 
consistent with the requirements of the Wisconsin 91 
Public Service Commission. The Utility Commit-92 
tee will prepare an annual budget and capital im-93 
provement plan on the same schedule as the Vil-94 
lage Budget for approval by the Village Board. The 95 
Utility Committee will conduct a review of 96 
wastewater and water rates on alternate years for 97 
Village Board consideration. 98 

(g) Records and expenditures. The water and sewer 99 
utility shall maintain all records of revenue and 100 
expenditures as required by the WPSC and stat-101 
utes. 102 

146



(d) Annual sewer system audit. The village shall con-1 
duct an annual audit, the purpose of which shall be 2 
to maintain the proportionality between the users 3 
and user classes of the sewer user charge system 4 
and to ensure that adequate revenues are available 5 
relative to increasing operation, maintenance and 6 
replacement costs for the sewer and wastewater 7 
treatment works and water system. 8 

Section 62.10 Payment of Charges. 9 
(a) Payment. The sewer and water service charges 10 

shall be billed quarterly and shall be payable to the 11 
Water and Sewer Utility not later than 20 days af-12 
ter the end of each period. Every reasonable care 13 
will be exercised in the proper delivery of sewer 14 
and water bills. Failure to receive a sewer and/or 15 
water bill, however, shall not relieve any person of 16 
the responsibility for payment of sewer and water 17 
rates within the prescribed period, nor exempt any 18 
person from any penalty imposed for delinquency 19 
in the payment of it. The property owner is held re-20 
sponsible for all sewer and water bills on the prem-21 
ises that he owns. All sewer and water bills and no-22 
tices of any nature about the sewer or water system 23 
will be addressed to the owner and delivered to the 24 
premises referred to on such bill or notice. A late 25 
payment charge of three percent (3.0%), but not 26 
less than $0.50, will be added to all bills not paid 27 
within the 20 days of issuance. (Amended Ordi-28 
nance 133-100207) 29 

(b) Charges a lien. All sewer charges shall be a lien 30 
upon the property serviced pursuant to Wis. Stats. 31 
§ 66.0821(4)(d) and all water charges shall be a 32 
lien on the property serviced pursuant to Wis. 33 
Stats. § 66.0809 and all such charges shall be col-34 
lected in the manner therein provided. 35 

(c) Disposition of revenue. 36 

(1) Sewer system. 37 

a. The amounts received from the col-38 
lection of charges authorized by this chap-39 
ter shall be credited to a sanitary sewerage 40 
account that shall show all receipts and ex-41 
penditures of the sewerage system. Charges 42 
collected for replacement expenses shall be 43 
credited to a segregated, non-lapsing re-44 
placement account. These funds are to be 45 
used exclusively for replacement. When 46 
appropriated by the village, the credits to 47 
the sanitary sewerage account shall be 48 
available for the payment of the require-49 
ments for operation, maintenance, repairs 50 
and depreciation of the sewerage system 51 
consistent with 40 CFR 35.929. Any sur-52 
plus outside the preview of 40 CFR 35.929, 53 
in such account, shall be available for the 54 
payment of principal and interest of bonds 55 
issued and outstanding, or that may be is-56 
sued, to provide funds for such sewerage 57 

system, or part of it, and all or a part of the 58 
expenses for additions and improvements 59 
and other necessary disbursements or in-60 
debtedness, and the village may resolve to 61 
pledge each surplus or any part of it for any 62 
such purpose. All present outstanding sew-63 
er system general obligation bonds on the 64 
effective date of the ordinance from which 65 
this chapter is derived, including refunding 66 
bonds, shall be paid from this fund as to 67 
both principal and interest. 68 

b. Excess revenues collected for a user 69 
class will be applied to operation and 70 
maintenance costs attributable to that class 71 
for the next year. 72 

Section 62.11 Control of High Strength 73 
Waste and Septage Wastes. 74 
(a) High Strength Waste discharges. If any waters, 75 

wastes or septage are discharged, or proposed to be 76 
discharged, to the public sewers or at the 77 
wastewater treatment facility, which waters, wastes 78 
or septage contain substances or possess the char-79 
acteristics enumerated in subsection 62.6(o) that, 80 
in the judgment of the village, may have deleteri-81 
ous effects upon the wastewater treatment facility, 82 
processes, equipment, receiving waters or which 83 
otherwise create a hazard to life, health or form a 84 
public nuisance, the village may: (Amended Ordi-85 
nance 133-100207) 86 

 (1) Reject the wastes. 87 

 (2) Require pretreatment to an acceptable con-88 
dition for discharge to the public sewers. 89 

 (3) Require control over the quantities and 90 
rates of discharge. 91 

 (4) Require payment to cover the added cost of 92 
handling and treating the wastes not cov-93 
ered by existing taxes or sewer charges un-94 
der the provisions of section 62.9. 95 

(b) Control manholes. 96 

(1) Each person discharging high strength 97 
wastes into a public sewer shall construct and 98 
maintain one or more control manholes or access 99 
points to ease observation, measurement and sam-100 
pling of his wastes, including domestic sewage. 101 

(2) Control manholes or access facilities shall 102 
be located and built in a manner acceptable to the 103 
board. If measuring devices are to be permanently 104 
installed, they shall be of a type acceptable to the 105 
board. 106 

(3) Control manholes, access facilities and re-107 
lated equipment shall be installed by the person 108 
discharging the high strength waste, at his expense, 109 
and shall be maintained by the person discharging 110 
the waste to be in safe condition, accessible and in 111 

147



proper operating condition always. Plans for instal-1 
lation of control manholes or access facilities and 2 
related equipment shall be approved by the board 3 
before the beginning of construction. 4 

(c) Metering of waste. Devices for measuring the vol-5 
ume of waste discharged may be required by the 6 
village if this volume cannot otherwise be estimat-7 
ed. Where required by the village, metering devic-8 
es for determining the volume of water shall be in-9 
stalled, owned and maintained by the person dis-10 
charging the wastewater. Following approval and 11 
installation, such meters may not be removed 12 
without the consent of the village. 13 

(d) Waste sampling. 14 

(1) High strength wastes and septage dis-15 
charged into the public sewers shall be subject to 16 
periodic inspection and a determination of the 17 
character and concentration of such wastes. The 18 
determinations shall be made by the industrial 19 
classification or the licensed disposer as often as 20 
may be deemed necessary by the village. 21 

(2) Samples shall be collected in such a manner 22 
as to represent the composition of the wastes. The 23 
sampling may be accomplished either manually or 24 
by mechanical equipment acceptable to the village. 25 

(3) Testing facilities shall be the responsibility 26 
of the person discharging the high strength waste 27 
or septage and shall be subject to the approval of 28 
the village. Access to sampling locations shall al-29 
ways be granted to the village or its duly author-30 
ized representative. Every care shall be exercised 31 
in the collection of samples to ensure their preser-32 
vation in a state comparable to that at the time the 33 
sample was taken. 34 

(e) Pretreatment. When required, in the opinion of the 35 
village, to modify or eliminate wastes that are 36 
harmful to the structures, processes or operation of 37 
the wastewater conveyance and treatment facili-38 
ties, the discharger shall provide at his expense 39 
such preliminary treatment or processing facilities 40 
as may be required to render such wastes accepta-41 
ble for admission to the public sewers. 42 

(f) Grease, oil and sand interceptors. The intent of the 43 
following grease interceptor requirements are to 44 
provide rules to eliminate or decrease the accumu-45 
lation of grease in the pipes and pumps of the sani-46 
tary sewer collection system and to reduce the 47 
waste loading of undesirable elements at the treat-48 
ment plant. This will serve to reduce or eliminate 49 
special costs to the sewer users, such as sewer 50 
cleaning due to grease plugs, odor control and ad-51 
ditional chemical treatment. [Amended Ordinance 52 
214-081313] 53 

 Grease, oil and sand interceptors shall be provided 54 
when, in the opinion of the Utility Manager, they 55 
are necessary for the proper handling of liquid 56 

wastes containing floatable grease in excessive 57 
amounts, as specified in Section 62.6(o)(9); except 58 
that such interceptors shall not be required for pri-59 
vate living quarters or dwelling units.  60 

 All interceptors shall meet the requirements of 61 
Wisconsin Administrative code SPS 382.34. The 62 
owner(s) shall be responsible for the proper re-63 
moval and disposal by appropriate means of the 64 
captured material and shall maintain records of the 65 
dates and the means of disposal, which are subject 66 
to review by the Utility Manager. Any removal and 67 
hauling of the collected materials not performed by 68 
the owner(s)’ personnel must be performed by cur-69 
rently licensed waste disposal firms. 70 

 In addition to the requirements stated above, all 71 
restaurants, food processing and similar facilities 72 
must comply with the requirements of Subsections 73 
(1) and (2) below.  74 

 (1) Installation of Grease Interceptors:  75 

  (a) No later than December 1, 2014 grease 76 
interceptors must be provided at all restau-77 
rants, food processing and similar facilities 78 
for the proper handling of liquid wastes 79 
containing floatable grease in excessive 80 
amounts as specified in Section 62.6 (o)(9). 81 

  (b) All interceptors shall meet the require-82 
ments of Wisconsin Administrative code 83 
SPS 382.34, except that the Village shall 84 
reserve the right to require all new restau-85 
rants, food processing and similar facilities 86 
to have exterior grease interceptors. 87 

 (2) Inspection and Cleaning of Grease Intercep-88 
tors:  89 

  (a) All interior grease interceptors must be 90 
inspected by the restaurant or food pro-91 
cessing facility owner or authorized em-92 
ployee and cleaned at a minimum as fol-93 
lows: 94 

  1. Once per month, except during 95 
periods when restaurants, food processing 96 
and similar facilities are not open for busi-97 
ness. 98 

  (b) All exterior grease interceptors must 99 
be inspected and cleaned by a li-censed 100 
pumper or hauler by May 1 of each year.  101 

  (c) The Utility Manager shall have the 102 
authority to require more frequent clean-103 
ings. 104 

  (d) All interceptor inspections and 105 
cleaning must be recorded on a form pro-106 
vided by the Utility, and a signed copy 107 
must be provided to the Utility Clerk on a 108 
monthly basis. If a commercial hauler per-109 
forms the cleaning service, his name and 110 

148



signature must be recorded on the form af-1 
ter each cleaning. Failure to provide the 2 
Utility with an executed and signed inspec-3 
tion/cleaning form will result in an inspec-4 
tion by the Utility. If the restaurant or food 5 
processing facility has not been open for 6 
business or in operation during the month 7 
to be reported, it should be so noted on the 8 
reporting form. 9 

  (e) If the Utility inspection reveals that 10 
an interceptor is in need of cleaning, a writ-11 
ten notice will be issued to the owner or his 12 
representative, and the Utility will have the 13 
interceptor cleaned. The owner will be 14 
billed the cost for cleaning the interceptor, 15 
including a service charge by the Utility. 16 
Delinquent bills with interest will be placed 17 
on the tax roll for the property as a special 18 
charge. 19 

  (f) If the Utility inspection reveals that 20 
an interceptor is defective or undersized so 21 
as to not work properly the Utility Manager 22 
may order the repair or replacement of the 23 
interceptor. 24 

  (g) Wastes from interceptor cleaning 25 
shall not be disposed of in the sanitary 26 
sewer system. 27 

  (h) Grease liquefiers or solvents of any 28 
kind shall not be used to clean grease inter-29 
ceptors. 30 

  (i) The Utility Manager shall annually 31 
report to the Utility Committee and Village 32 
Board on the compliance of the various 33 
businesses and facilities with these provi-34 
sions no later than May 15 each year. 35 

(g) Analyses. 36 

(1) All measurements, tests and analyses of the 37 
characteristics of waters, wastes and septage to 38 
which reference is made in this chapter shall be de-39 
termined according to "Standard Methods for the 40 
Examination of Water and Wastewater," published 41 
by the American Public Health Association and 42 
"Guidelines Establishing Test Procedures for Anal-43 
ysis of Pollutants," (40 CFR 136). Sampling meth-44 
ods, locations, times, durations, and frequencies 45 
are to be determined on an individual basis subject 46 
to approval by the village. 47 

(2) Determination of the character and concen-48 
tration of the high strength wastes shall be made 49 
by the person discharging them or his agent, as 50 
designated and required by the village. The village 51 
may also make its own analyses of the wastes and 52 
these determinations shall be used as a basis for 53 
charges. If the person discharging the waste con-54 
tests the determination, the village may elect to 55 
have an independent laboratory determine the 56 
character and concentration of the waste. Such in-57 

dependent laboratory shall be acceptable to both 58 
the village and the person discharging the waste. 59 
All costs incurred by the independent laboratory in 60 
determining shall be assumed by the discharger. 61 

(h) Submission of information. Plans, specifications 62 
and any other pertinent information relating to 63 
proposed flow equalization, pretreatment or pro-64 
cessing facilities shall be submitted for review of 65 
the village before the start of their construction if 66 
the effluent from such facilities is to be discharged 67 
into the public sewers. 68 

(i) Extension of time. When it can be demonstrated 69 
that circumstances exist that would create an un-70 
reasonable burden on the person proposing to dis-71 
charge a waste, to comply with the time schedule 72 
imposed in this chapter, a request for extension of 73 
the time may be presented for consideration by the 74 
board. 75 

Section 62.12-14 Reserved. 76 

Section 62.15 Violations and Penalties. 77 
(a) Damages and accidental discharge. 78 

(1) Damages. No unauthorized person shall 79 
maliciously, willfully or negligently break, dam-80 
age, destroy, uncover, deface or tamper with any 81 
structure of pertinence or equipment that is a part 82 
of the sewer system or water system. 83 

(2) Accidental discharge. Any person found re-84 
sponsible for accidentally allowing a deleterious 85 
discharge into the sewer system that causes dam-86 
age to the treatment facility and/or receiving body 87 
of water shall, besides a fine, pay the amount to 88 
cover damages, both values to be established by 89 
the village. 90 

(b) Written notice of violation. 91 

(1) Any person connected to the sewerage sys-92 
tem or water system found violating a provision of 93 
this chapter shall be served by the village with a 94 
written notice stating the nature of the violation 95 
and providing a reasonable time for the satisfacto-96 
ry correction of it. If the person does not correct 97 
the violation within the time set by the village, 98 
then the person shall be liable for the penalties set 99 
forth in subsection (e) of this section from the day 100 
of first violation. The offender shall, within the pe-101 
riod stated in such notice, permanently cease all 102 
violation. 103 

(2) Any licensed disposer discharging to the 104 
wastewater treatment facility or to a public sewer, 105 
found violating a provision of this chapter or of 106 
any conditions of the Village Board's approval for 107 
septage disposal, may have his approval immedi-108 
ately revoked. This revocation shall be done in 109 
writing and state the reason for revoking the sep-110 
tage disposal approval. 111 

149



(3) Whenever any of the rules and regulations, 1 
or others as the Village may hereafter adopt, are 2 
violated, the use of service shall be shut off from 3 
the building or place of violation (even if there are 4 
two or more parties receiving service through the 5 
same connection) and shall not be re-established 6 
except by order of the Village Board and on pay-7 
ment of all arrears, the expenses and established 8 
charges of shutting off and putting on and other 9 
terms as the Village Board may decide. With the 10 
violation, the Village Board, furthermore, may de-11 
clare any payment made for the service by the par-12 
ties committing the violation, to be forfeited, and 13 
the payment shall then be forfeited. 14 

(c) Liability to village for losses. Any person violating 15 
any provision of this chapter shall become liable to 16 
the village for any expense, loss or damage occa-17 
sioned because of a violation that the village may 18 
suffer as a result of it. 19 

(d) Damage recovery. 20 

(1) The sewer utility shall have the right of re-21 
covery from all persons an expense incurred by 22 
such utility for the repair or replacement of any 23 
sewer pipe damaged in any manner by any person 24 
by the performance of any work under their control 25 
or by any negligent acts. 26 

(2) The water utility shall have the right of re-27 
covery from all persons any expense incurred by 28 
such utility for the repair or replacement of any 29 
water pipe, curbcock, gate valve, hydrant or valve 30 
box damaged in any manner by any person by the 31 
performance of any work under their control or by 32 
any negligent act. Owners or operators of motor 33 
vehicles will be held liable for the cost of repair of 34 
any hydrant damaged by them and the utility will 35 
not be responsible for the damage to the motor ve-36 
hicle because of such accident. 37 

(6) Penalties for Well Abandonment. 38 

(1) Failure to abandon any well after revoca-39 
tion of a permit to follow the provisions of Wis-40 
consin Administrative Code NR Chapter 812, in 41 
abandoning the well is hereby deemed a public 42 
nuisance, and the Village may cause the well to be 43 
properly abandoned and may assess the cost 44 
against the owner of the affected property and col-45 
lect it as a special tax. 46 

(7) Penalties for Cross Connections. 47 

 The Village may discontinue water service to any 48 
property wherein any connection in violation of 49 
this section exists, if the Village reasonably believe 50 
that a cross connection may contaminate the mu-51 
nicipal water system. The Village may also take 52 
other precautionary measures deemed necessary to 53 
eliminate any danger of contamination of the pub-54 
lic water system. Water service shall be discontin-55 
ued only after reasonable notice and opportunity 56 
for hearing under Chapter 68, Wisconsin Statutes, 57 

except as provided below. Water service shall not 58 
be restored until the matters in violation of this 59 
section have been eliminated and the private well 60 
and plumbing brought into compliance with the 61 
provisions of this section or adequate assurance is 62 
given the Village in its discretion that this section 63 
will be complied with in a timely manner. If it is 64 
determined by the Village that a failure of compli-65 
ance with this section endangers the public health, 66 
safety or welfare and requires immediate action 67 
and a written finding to that effect is filed with the 68 
Village clerk-treasurer and delivered to the cus-69 
tomer's premises, service may be immediately dis-70 
continued. The customer shall have an opportunity 71 
for hearing under Chapter 68, Wisconsin Statutes, 72 
within ten days of an emergency discontinuance. 73 

(e) Penalties. Any person who shall violate any of the 74 
provisions of this chapter shall, upon conviction, 75 
forfeit not less than $100.00 nor more than 76 
$1,000.00 and the costs of prosecution (pursuant to 77 
Wis. Stats. § 66.0114). This, however, shall not bar 78 
the village from enforcing the connection duties 79 
set out in subsection 62.6(c) for mandatory 80 
hookup. Compliance with this chapter may also be 81 
enforced by injunction order at the suit of the vil-82 
lage to prevent or cause the discontinuance of a vi-83 
olation of any of the provisions of this chapter. 84 
This chapter may be enforced by the issuance of a 85 
citation to any violator of this chapter by the Vil-86 
lage Administrator, by any state officer with police 87 
powers or any other duly appointed law enforce-88 
ment officer of the Village. 89 

(f) Continued violation. Any person, partnership, cor-90 
poration or any officer, agent or employee thereof 91 
who shall continue any violation beyond the notice 92 
time limit provided shall, upon conviction, forfeit 93 
not less than $500.00 per day of continued viola-94 
tion with the costs of prosecution. In default of 95 
payment of forfeiture and costs, such violator shall 96 
be imprisoned in the county jail for a period not to 97 
exceed five days. Each day in which any violations 98 
is continued beyond the notice time limit shall be 99 
deemed a separate offense. 100 

Section 62.16 Definitions. 101 
Unless the context specifically indicates otherwise, the 102 
meaning of terms used in this chapter shall be as follows: 103 
 104 
Approving authority means the Village Board or its duly 105 

authorized committee, agent or representative. 106 
Backflow means: 107 
 (1) A flow condition, induced by a differential 108 

in pressure that causes the flow of water or other 109 
liquid into the distribution pipes of a potable water 110 
supply from any source or sources other than its 111 
intended source. 112 

 (2) The backing up of water through a conduit 113 
or channel in the direction opposite to normal flow. 114 

Biochemical oxygen demand (BOD) means the quantity 115 
of oxygen used in the biochemical oxidation of or-116 

150



ganic matter in five days at 20 degrees Celsius, ex-1 
pressed as milligrams per liter. Quantitative deter-2 
mination of BOD shall be made according to pro-3 
cedures set forth in the most recent edition of 4 
"Standard Methods." 5 

Building drain means that part of the lowest horizontal 6 
piping of a drainage system that receives the dis-7 
charge from  waste and other drainage pipes inside 8 
the walls of the building and conveys it to the 9 
building sewer. 10 

Building sewer means the extension from the public sewer 11 
or other place of disposal beginning outside the in-12 
ner face of the building wall. 13 

Compatible pollutants means biochemical oxygen de-14 
mand, suspended solids, phosphorus, or pH, plus 15 
additional pollutants identified in the Wisconsin 16 
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (WPDES) 17 
permit for the publicly owned treatment works re-18 
ceiving the pollutants if such works were designed 19 
to treat such additional pollutants to a substantial 20 
degree. 21 

Cross connection, control means a program for protecting 22 
the public water system from contamination due to 23 
the backflow of contaminants through the water 24 
service connection into the public water system. 25 

Debt service charges means all costs associated with the 26 
repayment of debts incurred for the construction 27 
and/or rehabilitation of the wastewater collection 28 
system and treatment facility. 29 

Floatable oil means oil, fat or grease in a physical state 30 
such that it will separate by gravity from 31 
wastewater by treatment in an approved pretreat-32 
ment facility. A wastewater or septage shall be 33 
considered free of floatable fat if it is properly pre-34 
treated and the wastewater does not interfere with 35 
the collection system. 36 

Garbage means the residue from the preparation, cooking 37 
and dispensing of food, and from the handling, 38 
storage and sale of food products and produce. 39 

Ground garbage means the residue from the preparation, 40 
cooking and dispensing of food that has been 41 
shredded to such degree that all particles will be no 42 
greater than one half inch in any dimension and 43 
will be carried freely in suspension under normal 44 
flow conditions in public sewers. 45 

Improperly constructed well means a well or pump instal-46 
lation that does not comply with the provisions of 47 
Wis. Admin. Code NR Chapter 812 in effect at the 48 
time of construction of the well, at the installation 49 
of a contamination source, at the installation of the 50 
pump or completion of work on the well or pump 51 
installation. 52 

Incompatible pollutants mean wastewater or septage with 53 
pollutants that will adversely effect or disrupt the 54 
wastewater processes or effluent quality or sludge 55 
quality if discharged to a wastewater treatment fa-56 
cility. 57 

High Strength waste means the wastewater from commer-58 
cial or industrial processes, trade or business, as 59 
distinct from sanitary sewage, including cooling 60 
water and the discharge from sewage pretreatment 61 
facilities. 62 

Laterals (service lateral) means: 63 
 (1) A ditch, pipe or other conduit entering or 64 

leaving a water main from the side. 65 
 (2) A sewer that discharges into the main sewer 66 

or other sewer branch. 67 
Licensed disposer means a person holding a license under 68 

Wis. Stats. § 281.49(1)(a). 69 
Meter means an instrument installed to measure the vol-70 

ume and/or rate of flow of water delivered through 71 
it. 72 

Municipal wastewater means the spent water of a com-73 
munity. The wastewater may be a combination of 74 
the liquid and water carried wastes from residenc-75 
es, commercial buildings, industrial plants and in-76 
stitutions, with any groundwater, surface water and 77 
stormwater that may be present. 78 

Natural outlet means any outlet, including storm sewers, 79 
into a watercourse, pond, ditch, lake or other body 80 
of surface water or groundwater. 81 

Normal domestic strength wastewater means wastewater 82 
with concentrations less than 300 mg/l BOD, 250 83 
mg/l suspended solids and 12 mg/l phosphorus. 84 

Normal user means a user whose contributions to the 85 
wastewater treatment facility consist only of nor-86 
mal domestic strength waste originating from a 87 
house, apartment, condominium or other living 88 
quarters occupied by a person or persons making 89 
up a distinct household, business or commercial 90 
enterprise. 91 

Operation and maintenance costs means all costs associat-92 
ed with the operation and maintenance of the 93 
wastewater collection and treatment facilities. 94 
These costs, including costs associated with extra-95 
neous (clear water) flows, shall be divided propor-96 
tionately among the various sewer users according 97 
to their equivalent user factors. 98 

Parts per million means a weight to weight ratio; the parts 99 
per million value multiplied by the factor 8.34 100 
shall be equivalent to pounds per million gallons of 101 
water. 102 

Person means any person, including any individual, firm, 103 
company, municipal or private corporation, associ-104 
ation, society, institution, enterprise, government 105 
agency or other entity. 106 

pH means the logarithm of the reciprocal of the hydrogen 107 
ion concentration. The concentration is the weight 108 
of hydrogen ions, in grams per liter of solution. 109 
Neutral water, for example, has a pH value of sev-110 
en and a hydrogen ion concentration of 107. 111 

Potable water means water that does not contain objec-112 
tionable pollution, contamination, minerals or in-113 
fective agents and is considered satisfactory for 114 
domestic consumption. 115 

Public sewer means any sewer provided by or subject to 116 
the jurisdiction of the village. It shall also include 117 
sewers within or outside the corporate boundaries 118 
that serve one or more persons and ultimately dis-119 
charge into the village's sanitary sewer system, alt-120 
hough those sewers may not have been constructed 121 
with village funds. 122 

Pump installation means the pump and related equipment 123 
used for withdrawing water from a well including 124 

151



the discharge piping, the underground connections, 1 
pitless adapters, pressure tanks, pits, sampling fau-2 
cets and well seals or caps. 3 

Replacement costs means a service charge levied on users 4 
of the wastewater collection and treatment facili-5 
ties for payment of capital expenses and operation 6 
and maintenance costs, including replacement of 7 
such facilities. 8 

Sanitary District: means the portion of the Town of Liber-9 
ty Grove covered by the Liberty Grove Sanitary 10 
District.  11 

Sanitary sewage means a combination of liquid and water 12 
carried wastes discharged from toilets and/or sani-13 
tary plumbing facilities, with such groundwater, 14 
surface water and stormwater as may be present. 15 

Sanitary sewer means a sewer that carries liquid and water 16 
carried wastes from residences, commercial build-17 
ings, industrial plants and institutions, with small 18 
quantities of groundwater, stormwater and uninten-19 
tionally admitted surface water. 20 

Septage means scum, liquid, sludge or other waste from a 21 
septic tank, soil absorption field, holding tank, 22 
vault toilet or privy. This does not include the 23 
waste from a grease trap. 24 

Sewage means spent water of a community. The preferred 25 
term is "municipal wastewater." 26 

Sewer service areas means the areas presently served and 27 
anticipated to be served by a sewage collection 28 
system. State regulations (Wis. Admin. Code NR § 29 
121.05) require that water quality management 30 
plans delineate sewer service areas for urban areas 31 
with a population of over 10,000. Approved facili-32 
ty plans contain less detailed sewer service areas 33 
for communities under a population of 10,000. 34 

Sewer service charge means a service charge levied on 35 
users of the wastewater collection and treatment 36 
facilities for payment of use related capital expense 37 
and operation and maintenance costs, including re-38 
placement of such facilities. 39 

Sewerage system means as defined in Wis. Stats. § 40 
281.01(14). 41 

Shall means mandatory; may means permissible. 42 
Slug load means any substance released at a discharge rate 43 

and/or concentration that causes interference to the 44 
wastewater treatment processes. 45 

Standard methods means the examination and analytical 46 
procedures set forth in the most recent edition of 47 
"Standard Methods for the Examination of Water, 48 
Sewage and Industrial Wastes," published jointly 49 
by the American Public Health Association, the 50 
American Water Works Association and the Water 51 
Pollution Control Federation. 52 

Storm drain (sometimes termed "storm sewer") means a 53 
drain or sewer for conveying water, groundwater, 54 
subsurface water or unpolluted water from any 55 
source. 56 

Stormwater runoff means that portion of the rainfall that 57 
drains into sewers. 58 

Suspended solids means solids that either float on the sur-59 
face of, or are in suspension in, water, wastewater, 60 
septage or other liquids and that is removable by 61 

laboratory filtering as prescribed in "Standard 62 
Methods" and is called non-filterable residue. 63 

Unpolluted water means water of a quality equal or better 64 
than the effluent criteria in effect or water that 65 
would not cause violation of receiving water quali-66 
ty standards and would not be benefited by dis-67 
charge to the sanitary sewers and wastewater 68 
treatment facilities provided. 69 

Unsafe well means a well or pump installation that pro-70 
duces water contaminated bacteriologically or wa-71 
ter contaminated with substances in exceedance of 72 
the standards of Wis. Admin. Code NR Chapter 73 
109 or Chapter 140 or for which a health advisory 74 
has been issued by the state department of natural 75 
resources. 76 

Unused well means a well or pump installation that is not 77 
in use or does not have a functional pumping sys-78 
tem. 79 

USEPA means the United States Environmental Protec-80 
tion Agency. 81 

User/customer means any person, owner or occupant, 82 
firm, partnership, corporation, municipality, coop-83 
erative organization, government agency, political 84 
entity, etc., provided with water and/or sewer ser-85 
vice by any water and/or sewer public utility. 86 

Utility means a public or private concern engaged in the 87 
performance of some useful service, such as fur-88 
nishing water, gas, electricity or sewer facilities. 89 

Utility Committee: means the committee established by 90 
the Village including members from the Town of 91 
Liberty Grove and Utility District that provides 92 
oversight on the operation of the Village Utilities. 93 

Utility District means: the portion of the Liberty Grove 94 
Sanitary District designated to provide sanitary 95 
sewer service and water service. 96 

Wastewater facilities means the structures, equipment and 97 
processes required to collect, carry away, store and 98 
treat domestic and industrial wastes and septage 99 
and dispose of the effluent. 100 

Wastewater treatment works means an arrangement of de-101 
vices and structures for treating wastewater, sep-102 
tage, industrial wastes and sludge. Sometimes used 103 
synonymously with waste treatment. 104 

Water main means the water pipe, located beneath a street, 105 
right-of-way or easement from which domestic 106 
water supply is delivered to the service pipe (lat-107 
eral) leading to specific premises. 108 

Water supply means: 109 
 (1) The sources of water for public or private 110 

uses. When United States Environmental Protec-111 
tion Agency standards have been met, the supply is 112 
termed "an approved water supply"; 113 

 (2) The furnishing of good potable water under 114 
satisfactory pressure for domestic, commercial, in-115 
dustrial and public service and an adequate quanti-116 
ty of water under reasonable pressure for fire-117 
fighting. 118 

Water system means as provided in Wis. Stats. § 119 
811.02(25). Collectively, all of the property in-120 
volved in the operation of the water utility, includ-121 
ing land, water lines and appurtenances, pumping 122 
stations, treatment plants and general property. 123 

152



Watercourse means a natural or artificial channel for the 1 
passage of water, either continuously or intermit-2 
tently. 3 

Well means an excavation or opening into the ground 4 
made by digging, boring, drilling, driving or other 5 
methods for obtaining groundwater for consump-6 
tion or other use. 7 

Well abandonment means the filling and sealing of a well 8 
according to the provisions of Wis. Admin. Code 9 
Comm. NR Chapter. 812. 10 

Wisconsin Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 11 
(WPDES) Permit means a document issued by the 12 
state department of natural resources that estab-13 
lishes effluent limitations and monitoring require-14 
ments for the municipal wastewater treatment fa-15 
cility. 16 

WDNR means the Wisconsin Department of Natural Re-17 
sources. 18 

WPSC means the Wisconsin Public Service Commission 19 
that governs the rates, rules and regulations of the 20 
village water utility. 21 

Section 62.17-19 Reserved. 22 
 23 

  24 

153



Section 62.20 Establishment of Impact Fees 1 
The following fees are impact fees established by the Vil-2 
lage pursuant to Section 66.0617, Wis. Stats.: 3 

(a) Impact fees pursuant to Section 62.28 of this 4 
Chapter. 5 

Section 62.21 Definitions 6 
In this Section: 7 

(a) All words shall have the same meanings as set 8 
forth in Section 66.0617, subsection (1), Wis. 9 
Stats. 10 

(b) The word "development" shall have the same 11 
meaning as the phrase "land development.” 12 

Section 62.22 Documentation 13 
The following Village documents contain the needs as-14 
sessments for the impact fees identified under Section 3 15 
above, demonstrate Village compliance with the require-16 
ments of Section 66.0617(4), Wis. Stats., and shall be kept 17 
on file and available for public inspection in the Office of 18 
the Village Clerk: 19 

 Public Facilities Needs Assessment for Wastewater 20 
Impact dated March 2005 21 

 Public Facilities Needs Assessment for Water 22 
Tower and System Improvement Impact dated 23 
September 2005 24 

 Public Facilities Needs Assessment for the Down-25 
town Sanitary Sewer and Watermain Improve-26 
ments Dated June 2008 (Amended Ordinance No. 27 
145-081208) 28 

Section 62.23 Revenues 29 
Revenues collected by the Village as impact fees shall be 30 
placed by the Village Treasurer in segregated interest-31 
bearing accounts, and shall be accounted for separately 32 
from other funds of the Village. Impact fee revenues and 33 
interest earned on impact fee revenues may be expended 34 
by the Village only for the capital costs for which the im-35 
pact fees were imposed. Separate accounts shall be kept of 36 
fees collected from different impact fee zones, where the 37 
particular Impact Fee Ordinance provides for differential 38 
fees according to zones, and revenues collected in particu-39 
lar zones shall be spent in those zones as appropriate. 40 

Section 62.24 Time Limit for Expenditures 41 
(a) The Village determines the following lengths of 42 

time appropriate for the planning, financing, acqui-43 
sition and construction of the public facilities listed 44 
below: 45 

 1. Wastewater Treatment Plant Expansion 46 

  From January 2003 through December 31, 47 
2005. 48 

 2. Water System Improvements 49 

  From January 1, 2006 through December 50 
31, 2021(Amended Ord-239-091515) 51 

 3. Downtown Sanitary Sewer and Watermain 52 
Improvements. (Amended Ordinance No. 53 
145-081208) 54 

  From August 12, 2008 through July 31, 55 
2015. 56 

(b) Maximum Time to Use Impact Fees Collected 57 
From the Time of Fee Collection: 58 

 1. Type of Facility: Wastewater Treat-59 
ment Plant expansion May 2025 60 

 2. Type of Facility: Water system im-61 
provements December 2026(Amended 62 
Ord-239-091515) 63 

 3. Type of Facility: Downtown Sani-64 
tary Sewer and Watermain Improvements 65 
2028 (Amended Ordinance No. 145-66 
081208) 67 

(c) Fees held by the Village under Section 62.23 68 
above, and not used within the time period speci-69 
fied herein, shall be refunded to the persons who 70 
are the current owners of record, at the expiration 71 
of such time period, of the property with respect to 72 
which the impact fees were imposed. 73 

Section 62.25 Payment of Impact Fees 74 
All required impact fees, unless expressly excepted in a 75 
section of this Chapter, shall be paid before a building 76 
permit may be issued for the construction for which the 77 
impact fee is to be imposed. With respect to any develop-78 
ment affected by any impact fee imposed under this Chap-79 
ter which is under construction at the time the ordinance 80 
imposing such impact fee becomes effective or which has 81 
received a building permit at such time, all required im-82 
pact fees shall be paid before a certificate of occupancy 83 
may be issued for such development. Impact fee payments 84 
shall be assumed to be the responsibility of the owner of 85 
record at the time the building permit is requested. 86 

Section 62.26 Installment Payments 87 
The Village Board, by resolution, may authorize the pay-88 
ment of impact fees, otherwise payable in full, in install-89 
ment payments. If installment payments are authorized, 90 
interest shall be paid on the installment payments at the 91 
same rate then charged by the Village on installments of 92 
special assessments. 93 

Section 62.27 Appeals 94 
A developer may appeal to contest the amount, collection 95 
or use of the impact fee in the manner provided herein: 96 

(a) It shall be a condition to the commencement of 97 
such an appeal that the impact fee from which the 98 
developer appeals shall be paid as and when the 99 
fee or any permitted installment thereof becomes 100 
due and payable, and upon default in making any 101 
such payment, such appeal may be dismissed. 102 

154



(b) The only questions appealable under this section 1 
are the following, as authorized by Section 2 
66.0617(10), Wis. Stats.: 3 

 (1) The amount of fee charged and paid by the de-4 
veloper; 5 

 (2) The method of collection of the impact fee; 6 

 (3) The use to which the particular fee paid by the 7 
developer is made by the Village. 8 

(c) Appeals must be brought within 30 days of the ear-9 
lier of: 10 

 (1) The date the impact fee is payable hereunder; 11 

 (2) In a situation where installment payments are 12 
allowed, the due date of the first required install-13 
ment. 14 

(d) The appellant shall pay a filing fee of $300 at the 15 
time of filing of the appeal. The notice of appeal 16 
shall be filed with the Village Clerk. 17 

(e) Following the filing of the notice of appeal, the 18 
Village Clerk shall compile a record of the ordi-19 
nance imposing the impact fee that is the subject of 20 
the appeal and a record of the management and ex-21 
penditure of the proceeds of the impact fee, and 22 
shall transmit these documents to the Village 23 
Board. In consultation with the Village depart-24 
ments, the Village Clerk shall also compile a report 25 
on each appeal in which the appellant is seeking a 26 
reduction or total refund in the impact fee paid. 27 
This report shall specify the fiscal impact on the 28 
Village of Sister Bay if the appeal overturns the 29 
impact fee. If the fiscal impact re-port indicates 30 
that the appeal, if successful, will cause a revenue 31 
shortfall that otherwise was not budgeted with re-32 
spect to the public facility, and if this revenue 33 
shortfall cannot be reconciled by reduction in im-34 
pacts caused by development on the appellant's 35 
property, the report shall estimate whether it will 36 
be necessary for the Village to adjust impact fees, 37 
or amend existing ordinances, to recover the pro-38 
posed revenue shortfall. 39 

(f) The Village Board shall hold a public hearing on 40 
the appeal, preceded by a Class 1 notice, providing 41 
fair opportunity for the appellant to be heard. The 42 
burden shall be on the appellant to establish ille-43 
gality or impropriety of the fee from which the ap-44 
peal has been taken. Following the close of the 45 
public hearing, the Village Board shall deliberate 46 
upon the matter, and shall conduct such studies and 47 
inquiries as it deems appropriate to decide the ap-48 
peal. 49 

(g) If the Village Board determines that the appeal has 50 
merit, it shall determine appropriate remedies. 51 
These may include reallocation of the proceeds of 52 
the challenged impact fee to accomplish the pur-53 
poses for which the fee was collected, refunding 54 
the impact fee in full or in part, along with interest 55 
collected by the Village thereon, or granting the 56 

appellant the opportunity to make the impact fee 57 
payment in installments, or such other remedies as 58 
it deems appropriate in a particular case. 59 

Section 62.28 Impact Fee Amounts 60 
(a) The Wastewater Treatment Plant expansion impact 61 
fee for every residential meter equivalent is $653.00.  62 

(b) The Water System improvements impact fee for 63 
every residential meter equivalent is $1,478.00. (Amended 64 
Ord-239-091515) 65 

(c) The Downtown Sanitary Sewer and Watermain 66 
Improvements impact fee for every residential meter 67 
equivalent is $861.00 effective on September 1, 2010. 68 
(Amended Ordinance No. 179-121410) 69 

155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 1 

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 14, 2015 2 

Sister Bay-Liberty Grove Fire Station – 2258 Mill Road 3 

UNAPPROVED VERSION 4 
 5 
The October 14, 2015 meeting of the Village of Sister Bay Finance Committee was called to 6 

order by Acting Chair Dave Lienau at 3:30 P.M.  7 

 8 

Lienau noted that Shane Solomon, who had been the Chair of the Finance Committee, recently 9 

resigned from the Village Board, and, therefore, he would be serving as Acting Chair of the 10 

Finance Committee until a replacement has been appointed. 11 

 12 

Committee Members Present: Acting Chair Dave Lienau and Committee Member Pat Duffy. 13 

 14 

Staff Members:  Village Administrator Zeke Jackson, and Assistant Administrator Janal Suppanz. 15 

 16 

Others:  Scott Baker 17 

 18 

Approval of the Agenda: 19 

A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Lienau that the Agenda for the October 14, 2015 20 

meeting of the Finance Committee be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 21 

 22 

Approval of the minutes for the September 2, 2015 meeting of the Finance Committee: 23 

A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Lienau that the minutes for the September 2, 2015 24 

meeting of the Finance Committee be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 25 

 26 

Comments, correspondence and concerns from the public: 27 

Lienau asked if anyone wished to comment regarding a non-agenda item. No one responded. 28 

He then noted that no new correspondence had been received.  29 

 30 

Discussion Items: 31 

Item No. 2. Consider a motion to convene into executive session pursuant to Wis. Stats., 32 

§19.85(1)(e) to deliberate or negotiate the purchase of public properties, the investment of 33 

public funds, or conduct other specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining 34 

reasons require a closed session, and Wis. Stats., §19.85(1)(c) to discuss personnel and 35 

employee benefits: 36 

At 3:32 P.M. a motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Duffy that the Finance Committee 37 

convene into executive session pursuant to Wis. Stats., §19.85(1)(e) to deliberate or negotiate 38 

the purchase of public properties, the investment of public funds, or conduct other specified 39 

public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session, and Wis. 40 

Stats., §19.85(1)(c) to discuss personnel and employee benefits. 41 

 42 

A roll call vote was taken on that motion, and the Committee members voted in the following 43 

fashion: 44 

    Lienau – Aye;   Duffy – Aye. 45 

Motion carried. 46 

171



Minutes for the October 14, 2015 Meeting of the Finance Committee 

 
 

-2- 
 

 

Item No. 3. Consider a motion to reconvene into open session: 1 

At 3:26 P.M. a motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Duffy that the Finance Committee 2 

reconvene into open session. Another roll call vote was taken, and the Committee members 3 

voted in the following fashion: 4 

    Lienau – Aye;   Duffy – Aye. 5 

Motion carried. 6 

 7 

Item No. 4. Consider a motion to take action, if required: 8 

No formal action was taken. 9 

 10 

Item No. 1. Discussion on the following 2016 Budget draft requests and consider motions for 11 

action as appropriate: 12 

 General Revenues 13 

 General Government 14 

 Administration 15 

 Parks, Properties and Streets Department 16 

 Skate Park and TKH Ice Rink 17 

 Debt Service and TIF 18 

 Capital Reserve and Capital Improvement Program 19 

A draft of the 2016 Budget for the Village of Sister Bay was included in the meeting packets, 20 

and the Committee members jointly reviewed that document. 21 

 22 

Some revisions were suggested, and Jackson took note of all of them. If the budget is approved 23 

as presented there will be a 3.51% overall property tax increase.  24 

 25 

The question arose as to whether or not it will be necessary to continue having the Door 26 

County Sheriff’s Department provide security services in 2016, and it was the consensus that 27 

this issue shall be referred to the Parks Committee. 28 

 29 

Discussion took place regarding the support which is provided to the SBAA, and Duffy 30 

suggested that at least half of that contribution be withdrawn. It was eventually the consensus 31 

that further discussion shall take place regarding this issue at an upcoming Village Board 32 

Meeting.  33 

 34 

Duffy pointed out that the Marina was charged for the services which were provided by the 35 

Parks Department employees during Marina Fest. He firmly believes the SBAA should also be 36 

charged for any services the Parks Department employees provide to that organization.  37 

 38 

A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Lienau that the Parks allocation for Marina Fest, 39 

2015 be refunded. Motion carried – All ayes.  40 

 41 

172



Minutes for the October 14, 2015 Meeting of the Finance Committee 

I:\1. 2015 Agendas\Finance\2015\2015_10\101415\101415 Finance Com. Meeting Minutes - Unapproved 
Version.docx 
Created by Janal Suppanz on 10/14/2015; Last Printed: 10/16/2015 11:54 AM 

-3- 
 

 

A motion was made by Duffy that the SBAA shall be charged for any services which are 1 

provided to it by the Parks Department employees.  2 

 3 

Lienau and Jackson noted that it will not be possible to charge the SBAA for services provided 4 

to it by the Parks Department this year because that would be contrary to the terms of the 5 

agreement which was entered into with the SBAA, and, therefore, any changes in policy need 6 

to be re-negotiated.  7 

 8 

Duffy’s motion subsequently failed due to the lack of a second.      9 

 10 

Duffy voiced extreme displeasure with the figures for health insurance premiums which are 11 

shown in the draft budget, and stressed that he definitely wants to see that portion of the 12 

budget revised. Jackson responded that he misunderstood comments which were made by 13 

Duffy during a recent discussion, and thought Duffy wanted to see a balanced overall budget 14 

arrived at, which did occur. It was eventually the consensus that the health insurance issue shall 15 

be addressed at length within a few days at a joint meeting of the Personnel Committee and the 16 

Finance Committee. 17 

    18 

Item No. 5. Discussion regarding matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred to a 19 

committee, official or employee: 20 

A joint meeting of the Personnel and Finance Committees will be scheduled as soon as Lienau 21 

has an opportunity to review his calendar.  22 

 23 

The issue of deciding whether or not a contract shall be entered into with the Door County 24 

Sheriff’s Department for provision of security services in 2016 shall be referred to the Parks 25 

Committee. 26 

 27 

Discussion regarding the annual support which is provided to the SBAA shall take place at an 28 

upcoming Village Board Meeting.  29 

 30 

Adjournment 31 

At 5:20 P.M. a motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Duffy that the meeting of the Finance 32 

Committee be adjourned. Motion carried – All ayes. 33 
 34 
Respectfully submitted,  35 

 36 
Janal Suppanz,  37 
Assistant Administrator 38 
 39 
 40 

173



Sister Bay & Liberty Grove Fire Board Meeting 
August 18, 2015 

 
The meeting was called to order September 28, 2015 at 8:00 am by Lou Covotsos 
 
Roll Call: Louis Covotsos, Scott Baker, Nancy Goss, Hugh Mulliken  
 
In attendance Chris Hecht & Willard Randall 
 
A motion was made by Nancy Goss to approve the agenda, seconded by Scott Backer. Motion 
passed with no discussion. 
 
A motion was made by Louis Covotsos to approve the minutes of the previous meeting, 
seconded by Nancy Goss. Motion passed with no discussion. 
 
Public input: None 
 
Discussion Items: 

         Chief’s Report 
o   The Chief passed out a count of calls. We are on track to be ahead of prior year 

calls. 
o   There were two separate calls to the same location on different days for a CO 

alarm. One was for the burners on the stove left on. The other was for 
construction debris that plugged the water heater vent. 

o   We purchased devices to test the level of CO an individual has in their blood 
stream. 

o   The Fire Chiefs have authorized the EMS to pull Fire Fighters off the line if the 
EMS feels the Fire Fighter needs to rest and the Fire Fighter cannot return until 
EMS clears them. 

o    The closest hyperbolic chamber is in Appleton. 
o   Red Power will be here for pump testing and maintenance. 
o   The new extrication tools are here except 2 items that are on back order. They 

should arrive soon. We are looking at selling the old tools to Ephraim. 

o   We have 2 people in Entry Level Driver Operation and 4 in Aerial Operation. 
o   We hope to run an entry level fire fighter class this fall and a fire fighter 2 class 

after the first of the year.  
o   The state only requires entry level fire fighter. The tech college offers fire fighter 

part A, B and C. A & B are required for entry level, part C is for certified fire 
fighter. The state is looking at up grading the requirements to include part C. 

o   Road construction is still on going and the construction company has been very 
helpful in letting us know what is going on. 

o   We are in discussion with Ephraim about adding their EMR members to the 
SBLGFD EMR crew and covering Ephraim for EMR calls.   

o   Accountability has been rolled out for all of the Door County Fire Departments. 
o   Marina Fest gross was $24,000 and we expect to net $10,500. We will be giving 

10% to the Village.   

174



 
 
 
 

         Clerk/Treasurer Report 
o   A list of checks was passed out. 
o   The 2015 budget to date report was passed out.   
o   A list of calls since the last meeting was passed out and discussed. 
o   A motion was made by Hugh Mulliken to approve the treasurers’ report, 

seconded by Nancy Goss. Motion passed with no discussion. 
 

         Town (and Village?) 2016 budgets regarding the Fire Department capital reserve fund. 
o   The Town and Village are under funding the Fire Department Capital Budget. The 

Town and Village have proposed to accelerate the funding in the future to make 
up for the shortage.    

 

         2016 Budget Discussion  
o   The town electorate will be reviewing the budget on October 13 and make the 

final approval.  
 

         New Brush Truck  
o   There is a new brush truck in the capital budget for 2017. 
o   We are looking at converting the current utility truck to a brush truck and 

purchasing a new utility truck.  
o   We will be proposing the new brush truck be sent out for bid in 2016 for delivery 

in 2017. 
 

         Fire District  
o   The fire district is at a standstill because the Village and Town of Egg Harbor 

cannot agree on funding the current department. 
o   The fire district creation may be a slow process of departments joining each other 

like Ephraim EMRs’ joining the SBLGFD EMRs’  
 

         Set date for Next Meeting 

o   November 9, 2015 8:00 am 
 

 A motion was made by Louis Covotsos to Adjourn, seconded by Nancy Goss. Motion passed 
with no discussion 
 
Submitted By  
Bill Randall 
Fire Department Clerk 

 

175



MARINA COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 1 

FRIDAY, SEPTEMBER 18, 2015 2 

Sister Bay-Liberty Grove Fire Station – 2258 Mill Road 3 
 4 
The September 18, 2015 meeting of the Marina Committee was called to order by Chairperson 5 
John Clove at 9:32 P.M. 6 
 7 
Present:  Chairperson Clove, and members Pat Duffy, and Fuzzy Sunstrom. 8 
 9 
Excused:  Shane Solomon and Dan Jungwirth 10 
 11 
Others:  John Bulin, Greg Diltz, Steve Eatough and Chris Hecht 12 
 13 
Staff Members:  Village Administrator Zeke Jackson, Marina Manager Nicole Krauel, and 14 
Assistant Administrator Janal Suppanz. 15 
 16 
Approval of the agenda: 17 
A motion was made by Sunstrom, seconded by Duffy that the Agenda for the September 18, 18 
2015 meeting of the Marina Committee be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 19 
 20 
Approval of minutes as published: 21 
As to the minutes for the May 27, 2015 meeting of the Marina Committee: 22 
A motion was made by Sunstrom, seconded by Duffy that the minutes for the May 27, 2015 23 
meeting of the Marina Committee be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 24 
 25 
Comments, correspondence and concerns from the public: 26 
Clove asked if anyone wished to comment regarding a non-agenda item.  27 
 28 
Greg Diltz requested that the members of the audience be allowed to comment during the 29 
course of this meeting, and Clove responded that he would allow that. 30 
 31 
Steve Eatough pointed out that it is nearly impossible to get to the pump-out at the Marina as a 32 
large yacht is docked in that location. He believes “it is the wrong answer” when people are 33 
told to go to Yacht Works if they cannot gain access to the pump out area. Clove noted that the 34 
Committee members are aware of the pump-out situation and will be addressing that issue 35 
when discussion takes place regarding the Marina’s Capital Improvement Program. 36 
 37 
Business Items: 38 
Item No. 1. Discussion regarding the Marina tip policy; Consider a motion for action if 39 
necessary: 40 
In the past all tips which were given to Marina employees were held until the end of the season 41 
and distributed as “wages” at year-end. Distribution of tips such a long time after meaningful 42 
labor has been performed is unlikely to significantly incentivize some employees. Krauel 43 
believes that Marina employees will make a greater effort to provide “good service” if tips are 44 
distributed on a more frequent basis. If the new procedure is implemented tips would still be 45 
pooled. 46 
 47 
Sunstrom indicated that he believes the persons who are provided tips should be allowed to 48 
retain those tips as not all the Marine employees provide the same level of service, and Greg 49 
Diltz agreed. Kraul responded that this would really not be fair, since depending upon job 50 

176



Minutes of the September 18, 2015 Meeting of the Marina Committee 

 

-2- 

 

assignments not all employees will get an opportunity to directly deal with or help boaters. 1 
Sunstrom then suggested that a “taking turns” job assignment system be utilized.   2 
  3 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Clove that the Marina Manager is authorized to 4 
establish a new internal tip distribution policy. In accord with that policy, tips which are 5 
received at the Sister Bay Marina will be distributed to Marina employees on a more frequent 6 
basis. From this point forward, none of the tips which are received at the Marina will be turned 7 
over to the employees in the Administration Office. Motion carried – All ayes.   8 
 9 
Item No. 2. Review of marketing for 2015: 10 
Data concerning the special events which were conducted at the Marina was included in the 11 
meeting packets and the Committee members jointly reviewed it. Jackson spoke with a number 12 
of transient boaters, and they did like the special events. Several of those individuals informed 13 
him that they came to the Marina because the special events were being conducted. Questions 14 
did arise as to whether the seasonal slip holders were invited to the events, and Clove indicated 15 
that he believes that should occur from now on. He also believes more efforts should be made 16 
to promote the events within the boating community. To that end the Marina Manager shall see 17 
that regular e-mail blasts are sent out.  18 
 19 
Diltz indicated that he believes the special event concept is good, but does not believe the 20 
established fee of $20 which was charged this year is reasonable for events like a barbeque. 21 
 22 
It was the consensus that up to three special events at which traditional Door County food and 23 
drink is provided shall be conducted at the Sister Bay Marina in 2016. All seasonal and transient 24 
guests at the Marina shall be invited to those events, and a concerted effort shall be made to 25 
keep ticket prices reasonable. (The suggested price point shall be $10 to $15 per ticket).   26 
 27 
It was also the consensus that a “Welcome” bag should be provided to every transient boater 28 
who utilizes the Marina.  29 
 30 
Jackson noted that at the present time a wayfinding signage study is being conducted at the 31 
Village Hall. To his knowledge no boaters have responded to cards which were mailed to them 32 
or distributed to local businesses.  33 
 34 
Marina Fest was conducted on the Saturday and Sunday of Labor Day weekend. The question 35 
arose as to whether or not that event was profitable, and Jackson responded that some 36 
accounting work still has to be completed, but he does believe this year’s revenues were 37 
comparable to last year’s.  Positive as well as negative comments were received about Marina 38 
Fest, and all of those comments will be taken into consideration when planning is done for next 39 
year’s festival.  40 
 41 
Discussion took place regarding whether the second day of Marina Fest activities should 42 
continue, and Chris Hecht, the Fire Chief, noted that the Fire Department will commit to 43 
participating in an extended event if that is what the Village decides to do, but this year’s 44 
second day was not profitable for them, especially in light of the fact that the volunteer pool is 45 
so slim.  On the other hand, some of the business owners informed Jackson that their business 46 
was up considerably on the Sunday of Labor Day weekend. 47 
 48 
Item No. 3. Review of the financial statements: 49 
Financial statements for the Marina were included in the meeting packets and the Committee 50 

177



Minutes of the September 18, 2015 Meeting of the Marina Committee 

 

-3- 

 

members also reviewed that documentation.  1 
 2 
Item No. 4. Discussion regarding the 2016 Marina Budget; Consider a motion to refer the 3 
proposed Marina budget for 2016 to the Finance Committee for further action: 4 
Diltz noted that up until this year the Marina was always open until sunset, and the seasonal 5 
boaters have become accustomed to that type of service. If the goal is to make the Marina a 6 
“premier destination”, that type of service must continue. Sunstrom and Hecht agreed. John 7 
Bulin noted that he has seen a number of people coming in from a sail or cruise after the 8 
Marina has closed. Discussion took place regarding this issue, and it was the consensus that the 9 
Marina hours shall be extended to 9:00 P.M. from the last week of June through Labor Day. 10 
Krauel cautioned that if the Marina is open for extended hours it could be difficult to satisfy 11 
budgetary staffing contraints, and, therefore, she may have to hire an additional staff member 12 
next year.  13 
 14 
A draft of the proposed budget for the Marina for 2016 was included in the meeting packets, 15 
and the Committee members jointly reviewed that documentation. Some amendments were 16 
suggested, and Jackson took note of them. One of those items was elimination of the Operating 17 
Transfer to the General Fund of $15,000.00. (Duffy and Sunstrom stressed that the Marina 18 
Committee only authorized this action for one year.) The Committee members also indicated 19 
that they believe the Marina should receive further relief from the PILOT, and pointed out that 20 
there appear to be errors on the formulas which are contained on the final page of the Budget 21 
spreadsheet.  22 
 23 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Sunstrom that the recommendation is made to the 24 
Finance Committee that the 2016 Budget for the Sister Bay Marina which was reviewed at this 25 
meeting be approved as amended. Motion carried – All ayes.   26 
 27 
At 11:43 A.M. Sunstrom indicated that he had another obligation and left the meeting.  28 
 29 
Item No. 5. Discussion on the 2016 Marina Capital Improvement Program; Consider a motion 30 
for action if necessary: 31 
It was the consensus that Agenda Item No. 5 – Discussion on the 2016 Marina Capital 32 
Improvement Program, shall be tabled until the next meeting of the Marina Committee. 33 
 34 
Item No. 7. Review of the Boathouse Lease for 2016; Consider a motion for action, if 35 
necessary: 36 
Scott and Mary Mueller, long-time Marina patrons, expressed interest in renting the Boathouse 37 
from May 1, 2016 through October 31, 2016, and pursuant to the agreement which was 38 
eventually entered into with them they will be paying an annual rental fee of $18,500. A copy 39 
of a proposed Lease was included in the meeting packets. Suppanz and Krauel noted that the 40 
Muellers rented the Boathouse during 2015 and were very good renters. It has not been as easy 41 
to rent the Boathouse to transient guests as Village officials had originally thought. In fact, it is 42 
still available for Pumpkin Patch weekend and Fall Fest weekend, and, therefore, it makes the 43 
most sense to enter into the previously mentioned Lease. 44 
 45 
The Committee members reviewed the draft of the Mueller’s Lease for 2016, and during the 46 
review process Suppanz noted that the Muellers have a boat and trailer it up here from time to 47 
time. As a matter of course, Boathouse tenants are entitled to the use of a designated slip at the 48 
Marina, but since the Muellers didn’t need that slip on a regular basis they agreed to give the 49 
Marina Manager at least two weeks advance notice if they actually wished to utilize the 50 

178



Minutes of the September 18, 2015 Meeting of the Marina Committee 

I:\1. 2015 Agendas\Marina\2015\2015_09\091815 Marina Committee Meeting Minutes - Approved Version.docx 
Created by Janal Suppanz on 9/18/15; Last Printed:  10/16/2015 11:16 AM 

-4- 

 

Boathouse slip.  This arrangement worked quite well in 2015, and Krauel was able to rent the 1 
Boathouse slip out to other boaters on several occasions. The Muellers would like to enter into 2 
a similar agreement in 2016, and Suppanz and Krauel are recommending that an applicable 3 
provision be included in the new Lease. The Committee members concurred. Clove pointed out 4 
that he believes the Lease should contain a provision which states that the Muellers will be 5 
billed for the electrical service at the Boathouse, and again the Committee members concurred.          6 
 7 
Clove noted that Scott Mueller has informed him that he would like to enter into a long-term 8 
Lease for the Boathouse. He suggested that Village officials contact Mueller ASAP to negotiate 9 
an extended Lease. 10 
 11 
Item No. 6. Discussion regarding Marina activities with the Marina Manager: 12 
Krauel gave the following oral report: 13 

 During the week there is a “skeleton crew” working  at the Marina, but the staff members 14 
who are still in high school do work on the weekends. 15 

 The Marina staff members who worked for Marina Fest each received a bonus of 16 
$150.00. 17 

 The Marina Office painting project has been completed and looks very nice. 18 

 The Marina and docks have been treated for spiders. A residual product which is safe 19 
around water has been utilized. Clove and Duffy requested that the dock cleats also be 20 
sprayed.  21 

 Marina staff members will continue to work on replacement of light bulbs at the Marina. 22 

 A new soda machine has been installed at the Marina. 23 

 Efforts will be made to make the pump-out station more accessible. 24 

 The launch set-up at the Marina is less than ideal, but whenever possible efforts are  25 
made to assist boaters who utilize the launch ramp.  26 

 A number of transient boaters have made favorable comments about the Marina. 27 

 The wagons which are currently utilized at the Marina will be replaced with dock carts.  28 

 Income which was realized as the result of renting transient slips on Marina Fest weekend 29 
was up considerably. “Welcome” packets were provided to those individuals, and they 30 
were well received.  31 

 Some congestion was realized at the launch ramp during Marina Fest and efforts will be 32 
made to address those issues during next year’s festival. 33 

 “Buckshot” the miniature pony was quite tired after Marina Fest, but he really enjoyed his 34 
time in the Marina Fest Petting Zoo. 35 

    36 
Item No. 7. Consider a motion to discuss matters to be placed on a future agenda or 37 
referred to a committee, official or employee: 38 
The Marina Committee’s recommendation concerning the 2016 Marina Budget will be 39 
referred to the Finance Committee. 40 
 41 
Adjournment: 42 
Due to the fact that a quorum was no longer present the meeting was adjourned without a 43 
formal motion to adjourn at 12:19 P.M. 44 
 45 
Respectfully submitted,  46 

 47 
Janal Suppanz, Assistant Administrator 48 

179



MARINA COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 1 

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 13, 2015 2 

Sister Bay-Liberty Grove Fire Station – 2258 Mill Road 3 

(APPROVAL PENDING) 4 
 5 
The October 13, 2015 meeting of the Marina Committee was called to order by Chairperson 6 
John Clove at 3:04 P.M. 7 
 8 
Present:  Chairperson Clove, and members Pat Duffy and Fuzzy Sunstrom. 9 
 10 
Excused: Dan Jungwirth  11 
 12 
Others:  Greg Diltz 13 
 14 
Staff Members:  Village Administrator Zeke Jackson, Marina Manager Nicole Krauel and 15 
Assistant Administrator Janal Suppanz. 16 
 17 
Approval of the agenda: 18 
A motion was made by Sunstrom, seconded by Duffy that the Agenda for the October 13, 2015 19 
meeting of the Marina Committee be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 20 
 21 
Approval of minutes as published: 22 
As to the minutes for the September 18, 2015 meeting of the Marina Committee: 23 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Sunstrom that the minutes for the September 18, 24 
2015 meeting of the Marina Committee be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 25 
 26 
Comments, correspondence and concerns from the public: 27 
Clove asked if anyone wished to comment regarding a non-agenda item. No one responded. 28 
Jackson noted that he had received a few e-mails in which positive comments were made about 29 
the Marina and the services which were provided to Marina patrons during the past season.   30 
 31 
Business Items: 32 
Item No. 1. Consider a motion to convene into Executive Session pursuant to Wis. Stats., 33 
§19.85(1)(e) to deliberate or negotiate the purchase of public properties, the investment of 34 
public funds or conduct other specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining 35 
reasons require a closed session: 36 
At 3:11 P.M. a motion was made by Sunstrom, seconded by Duffy that the Marina Committee 37 
convene into Executive Session pursuant to Wis. Stats., §19.85(1)(e) to deliberate or negotiate 38 
the purchase of public properties, the investment of public funds or conduct other specified 39 
public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session. A roll call 40 
vote was taken on that motion, and the Committee members voted in the following fashion: 41 
 42 
  Clove – Aye   Duffy – Aye   Sunstrom – Aye. 43 
 44 
Motion carried. 45 
 46 
Item No. 2. Consider a motion to reconvene into Open Session: 47 
At 4:20 P.M. a motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Sunstrom that the Marina Committee 48 
reconvene into Open Session. Another roll call vote was taken, and the Committee members 49 
again voted in the following fashion: 50 

180



Minutes of the October 13, 2015 Meeting of the Marina Committee 

 

 

-2- 

 

  Clove – Aye   Duffy – Aye   Sunstrom – Aye. 1 
 2 
Motion carried. 3 
 4 
Item No. 3. Consider a motion to take action, if required: 5 
A motion was made by Duffy seconded by Sunstrom that a long term Lease shall be entered 6 
into with Scott and Mary Mueller for the building which is commonly referred to as “The 7 
Boathouse” located at 10697 N. Bay Shore Drive. That Lease shall contain all the terms and 8 
conditions which were agreed upon at the last meeting of the Marina Committee as well as the 9 
terms and conditions which were discussed by the Committee members in closed session at this 10 
meeting. Motion carried – All ayes. 11 
 12 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Sunstrom that effective November 1, 2015 a full-13 
time Marina Manager position shall be created. Until January 1, 2016, the funds for the Marina 14 
Manager’s salary and benefits shall be withdrawn from the unexpended portion of the 2015 15 
wages and benefits section of the Marina budget, and, if necessary, the unassigned Marina fund 16 
balance. Motion carried – All ayes. 17 
 18 
Duffy then informed Krauel that the Marina Committee had decided to offer her the newly 19 
created Marina Manager position, and she accepted. 20 
      21 
Item No. 4. Review of the Marina financial statements: 22 
Financial statements for the Marina were likewise included in the meeting packets, and the 23 
Committee members jointly reviewed all of that documentation.  24 

  25 
Item No. 5. Discussion regarding the 2016 Marina Budget; Consider a motion to refer the 26 
proposed Marina budget for 2016 to the Finance Committee/Village Board for further action: 27 
A draft of the proposed Marina budget for 2016 was included in the meeting packets and the 28 
Committee members jointly reviewed that documentation. Some revisions were suggested, and 29 
Jackson took note of all of them. 30 
 31 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Sunstrom that the Marina Committee recommends 32 
that the Marina Budget for 2016 which was reviewed at this meeting be approved as corrected. 33 
Motion carried – All ayes.  34 
 35 
Item No. 6. Discussion regarding a 2016 Meeting Calendar for the Marina Committee; 36 
Consider a motion for action if necessary: 37 
Until further notice the regular monthly meetings of the Marina Committee will be conducted 38 
on the second Tuesday of the month at 4:00 P.M., but due to scheduling conflicts the next 39 
meeting of the Marina Committee will be conducted at 4:00 P.M. on Tuesday, November 3, 40 
2015. 41 
  42 
Item No. 7. Discussion regarding Marina activities with the Marina Manager:   43 
Item No. 8. Consider a motion to discuss matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred 44 
to a committee, official or employee:  45 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Sunstrom that Agenda Item No. 7 – Discussion 46 
regarding Marina activities with the Marina Manager; shall be tabled until the next meeting of 47 
the Marina Committee. 48 
 49 

181



Minutes of the October 13, 2015 Meeting of the Marina Committee 

I:\1. 2015 Agendas\Marina\2015\2015_10\101315 Marina Committee Meeting Minutes - Unapproved 
Version.docx 
Created by Janal Suppanz on 10/14/2015; Last Printed: 10/16/2015 10:56 AM 

-3- 

 

Adjournment: 1 
A motion was made by Sunstrom, seconded by Duffy to adjourn the meeting of the Marina 2 
Committee at 6:14 P.M. 3 
 4 
Respectfully submitted,  5 

 6 
Janal Suppanz,  7 
Administrative Assistant 8 

182



MINUTES FOR THE JOINT MEETING OF THE PARKS, PROPERTIES & STREETS 1 

COMMITTEE, THE MARKETING COMMITTEE, THE FINANCE COMMITTEE AND 2 

THE SBAA BOARD OF DIRECTORS 3 

MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 14, 2015 4 

SISTER BAY-LIBERTY GROVE FIRE STATION – 2258 MILL ROAD 5 

 (APPROVAL PENDING) 6 

 7 

The September 14, 2015 joint meeting of the Parks, Properties and Streets Committee, the 8 
Marketing Committee, and the Finance Committee was called to order by the Parks, 9 
Properties & Streets Committee Chair Dave Lienau at 3:05 P.M. 10 
 11 
Drew Bickford, the President of the SBAA, then called the meeting of the SBAA Board of 12 
Directors to order, but noted that a quorum of that Board was not present. 13 
 14 
Present:  Parks, Properties & Street Committee Chair Dave Lienau and members John 15 
Clove, Sharon Doersching and Scott Baker, Finance and Marketing Committee members 16 
Kathy Enquist and Pat Duffy, and Marketing Committee member and SBAA Board of 17 
Directors President Drew Bickford, as well as SBAA Board members Ron Kane, Denise 18 
Bhirdo, Heidi Hitzeman, Larry Gajda, Nora Zacek and SBAA Coordinator Paige 19 
Funkhouser. 20 
 21 
Excused:  Facilities Manager Steve Mann, Marketing and Finance Committee Chair Shane 22 
Solomon, and SBAA Board members James Larsen, Windy Bittorf, Tonya Crowell, Casey 23 
St. Henry, and Jessica Grasse.     24 
 25 
Staff Members: Village Administrator Zeke Jackson, Marketing Director Jason Polecheck 26 
and Assistant Administrator Janal Suppanz.  27 
 28 
Others: Judith Ross Stevenson, Mary Smythe, Tom Brown, Peter Northard, Chris Risch, 29 
Jackson Parr, Kay Halbrook, Pita Katobalavu, Tim Halbrook, Rob Zoschke, Nancy Grube, 30 
and two other individuals.   31 
 32 
Approval of Agenda: 33 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Doersching that the Agenda for the September 34 
14, 2015 joint meeting of the Parks, Properties & Streets Committee, the Marketing 35 
Committee, the Finance Committee and the SBAA Board of Directors be approved as 36 
presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 37 
   38 
Comments, correspondence and concerns from the public: 39 
Lienau asked if anyone wished to address a non-agenda item. No one responded. 40 
 41 
Business Items: 42 
Item No. 1. Review of data from the “Midwest Sunsplash” Festival: 43 
Jackson presented data regarding attendance at “Midwest Sunsplash”. General admission 44 
pre-sales was 73 tickets and general camping pre-sales was 67, while the number of 45 
general admission tickets which were sold at the gate was 967. There were also 260 46 
general admission complimentary tickets handed out. Generally speaking attendees came 47 

183



Minutes for the September 14, 2015 Meeting of the Parks, Marketing and Finance Committees and the SBAA 
Board of Directors  

 

- 2 - 

from Colorado, Illinois, Ohio, Minnesota, and Wisconsin. The Committee/SBAA Board 1 
members then reviewed a Revenues vs. Expenses Report, and Jackson answered all the 2 
questions which arose regarding the data on that report. He also presented a graph 3 
depicting the revenues which were generated by vendors, sponsorships, alcohol sales and 4 
ticket sales. When all was said and done the Village did not realize any profit as a result of 5 
conducting “Midwest Sunsplash”, but did cover all its expenses. Jackson noted that there 6 
were a number of individuals who refused to pay the established admission fee of $30, 7 
and, therefore, admission fees were eventually reduced to $5 per person.  8 
 9 
The results of a survey which was distributed to business owners was also reviewed. 10 
Approximately 100 surveys were mailed out, but only 12 responses were received.  11 
 12 
Lienau asked the SBAA Board members what comments they have heard from the 13 
members of the business community, and they responded that a lot of business owners just 14 
couldn’t understand why “Midwest Sunsplash” was scheduled for mid-August as that is the 15 
busiest time of year up here. Most business owners would have preferred to have a special 16 
event scheduled during June or September. There were “locals” who did thank Funkhouser 17 
for helping to see that an event such as “Midwest Sunsplash” was brought to the Village.  18 
 19 
Bickford noted that on the weekend “Midwest Sunsplash” was conducted sales figures at 20 
the store he manages were up 49% over last year. 21 
 22 
Doersching indicated that she has not heard comments that people were opposed to 23 
having an event such as “Midwest Sunsplash” conducted in the Village, but did hear a 24 
number of people voice objections to the fact that loud outdoor music was allowed to be 25 
played until midnight. They also were not pleased that camping was allowed within the 26 
Village limits. In addition, a number of people voiced displeasure with the date which was 27 
chosen for “Midwest Sunsplash” as occupancy rates are already at 96% during that time 28 
period. Doersching suggested that in the future music at any concerts scheduled in the 29 
Performance Pavilion be required to cease by 10:00 P.M. She also suggested that 30 
whenever large concerts or festivals are conducted in Waterfront Park a tent be erected 31 
nearby so that if it does rain or is windy shelter is available for attendees.  32 
 33 
Funkhouser noted that from May to October there are festivals and special events going on 34 
throughout Door County. Baileys Harbor and Fish Creek did conduct winter festivals on 35 
the same weekend, and both of those events were successful.  36 
 37 
Several of the Committee members indicated that they do not believe it was a wise 38 
decision to utilize tokens at “Midwest Sunsplash”, and suggested that that practice be 39 
eliminated. Polecheck and Jackson acknowledged that some issues did arise when tokens 40 
were utilized at Marina Fest, but they did create an avenue for non-profit organizations to 41 
realize income as the result of credit card sales. Funkhouser also noted that it made it 42 
much easier from a bartender’s perspective to not have to deal with cash and making 43 
change when it was busy at “Midwest Sunsplash”.     44 
 45 
Item No. 2. Follow-Up Discussion Regarding Midwest Sunsplash; Consider appropriate 46 
motions for action, if necessary: 47 
Lienau noted that he is considering reinstating the Waterfront Oversight Committee, and is 48 
looking for volunteers to serve on that Committee. It would consist of a number of people 49 

184



Minutes for the September 14, 2015 Meeting of the Parks, Marketing and Finance Committees and the SBAA 
Board of Directors  

 

- 3 - 

from all walks of life who live or work in the Village, and its members would be charged 1 
with making recommendations for utilization of the waterfront to the fullest extent. It was 2 
the consensus that this would be a very good idea. 3 
 4 
It was also the consensus that if and when plans are made for future concerts or special 5 
events which are similar in size to “Midwest Sunsplash”, organizers of those events shall 6 
keep the following facts in mind: 7 

 Two days is too long;  8 

 Amplified outdoor music must cease by 10:00 P.M.; 9 

 Festival or event organizers shall consider booking acts which perform different 10 
music genres so there is a wider appeal; 11 

 A “shoulder season” date shall be considered; 12 

 Camping shall not be allowed within the Village limits; and, 13 

 Noise limit regulations must be enforced. 14 
 15 
Lienau then asked if anyone in the audience wished to make a comment which had 16 
already not been made at previous meetings regarding “Midwest Sunsplash”. 17 
 18 
Rob Zoschke stated that he has expressed interest in serving on a Village Committee or 19 
Commission in the past, and would be willing to serve on the Waterfront Oversight 20 
Committee. It is his hope as someone who is raising children in Sister Bay that everyone 21 
will get past the fact that “Midwest Sunsplash” was very unpopular and “was not the way 22 
to go”, as the goal should be to plan something that will “keep people here”. If that occurs 23 
local businesses will grow and flourish. If the point of conducting an event such as 24 
“Midwest Sunsplash” was to expose people to the waterfront, Village officials may be 25 
“missing the point”, as there are already lots of people who utilize those areas. 26 
Unfotunately not all of the people who utilize the waterfront frequent any of the 27 
restaurants, bars or stores in and around Sister Bay.  28 
 29 
Judith Ross Stevenson stated that she owns a unit at the Yacht Club at Sister Bay. She 30 
utilized a decibel meter during “Midwest Sunsplash” and found that fireworks and a wood 31 
chipper produced lower levels of sound than the music which was played that weekend. It 32 
isn’t so bad when loud music is played for a while, but when it goes on for hours it 33 
becomes overbearing.    34 
 35 
Nancy Grube indicated that she owns the Bluffside Motel. She heard nothing but good 36 
comments about “Midwest Sunsplash”, and does not believe allowing camping in the 37 
Village limits hurt her business at all. She is fully aware that young people want to have 38 
something to do during the evening hours when they’re up here, and she would prefer that 39 
a two day event be planned. The music which was played during “Midwest Sunsplash” did 40 
not bother her and she is “all for it”. 41 
 42 
Tim Halbrook indicated that he was a sponsor of “Midwest Sunsplash”. He complimented 43 
Village officials on constructing the beach and seeing that all the improvements were made 44 
in Waterfront Park, and believes there are many more “positives” than “negatives” 45 
associated with events such as “Midwest Sunsplash”. 46 
 47 
 48 
 49 

185



Minutes for the September 14, 2015 Meeting of the Parks, Marketing and Finance Committees and the SBAA 
Board of Directors  

 

- 4 - 

Mary Smythe of Woodcrest Village asked if anyone has considered sponsoring an “improv” 1 
night or karaoke sessions in the Village Hall. She believes events such as that would attract 2 
millennials and families with young children, and would be fun for “locals” as well as 3 
visitors to the area.  4 
 5 
Kay Halbrook indicated that this is the fourth year that “Midwest Sunspash” was 6 
conducted, and thanked Village officials for allowing her and the other organizers of that 7 
event to bring it to Sister Bay. It does take a few years to grow an event such as this, and 8 
Halbrook believes that will definitely be possible as Sister Bay is “absolutely beautiful”. 9 
The organizers of “Midwest Sunsplash” made a concerted effort to bring in volunteers and 10 
vendors who met the desired demographic, and would be happy to work with Village 11 
officials on any future events which are scheduled. Halbrook pointed out that she is aware 12 
that tokens are utilized at a number of other large events, and once people become 13 
accustomed to them they do work quite well.     14 
 15 
Pita Katobalavu indicated that he is the lead singer for “Unity”, which was the headliner at 16 
“Midwest Sunsplash”. It took a lot of work to bring that event to Sister Bay, but the main 17 
goal of all the festival organizers was to help the community and encourage diversity. If 18 
Village officials grant permission for “Midwest Sunsplash” to be conducted in Waterfront 19 
Park in 2016 Katobalayu would certainly consider booking different bands, and would also 20 
be willing to plan some additional festival activities. The members of “Unity” really liked 21 
performing on Sister Bay’s stage, and would love to come back. 22 
 23 
Item No. 3. Discussion regarding matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred to a 24 
committee, official or employee: 25 
It was the consensus that discussion regarding utilization of tokens at Village sponsored 26 
events shall be addressed by the Waterfront Oversight Committee. 27 
 28 
Adjournment: 29 
A motion was made by Doersching, seconded by Clove to adjourn the joint meeting of the 30 
Parks, Properties and Streets Committee, the Marketing Committee, the Finance Committee 31 
and the SBAA Board of Directors at  5:18 P.M. Motion carried – All ayes. 32 
 33 
At 5:30 P.M. the Parks Committee reconvened at Waterfront Park to discuss sidewalks 34 
and the Post Office parking lot:  35 
Discussion took place regarding extending the asphalted parking area at the Post Office 36 
and placement of paver sidewalks in Waterfront Park. 37 
 38 
A motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Doersching that the Village Administrator shall 39 
be empowered to expand the parking lot at the Post Office and modify the sidewalk plan 40 
for the Beach Project and surrounding area. Further, the kiosk which had been in 41 
Waterfront Park shall be taken down and placed in storage. Motion carried – All ayes.  42 
 43 
Adjournment: 44 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Doersching to adjourn the meeting of the 45 
Parks Committee at 5:55 P.M. 46 
 47 
 48 
 49 

186



Minutes for the September 14, 2015 Meeting of the Parks, Marketing and Finance Committees and the SBAA 
Board of Directors  

I:\1. 2015 Agendas\Parks\2015\2015_09\sunsplash joint meeting\091415 PPS-Marketing-Finance-SBAA 
Meeting Minutes - Unapproved Version.docx 
Created by Janal Suppanz on 9/2/2015; Last Printed: 10/1/2015 4:37 PM 

- 5 - 

Respectfully submitted,  1 

 2 
Janal Suppanz,  3 
Assistant Administrator 4 

187



PLAN COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 1 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 22, 2015 2 

Sister Bay-Liberty Grove Fire Station – 2258 Mill Road 3 

UNAPPROVED VERSION 4 
 5 
The September 22, 2015 meeting of the Plan Commission was called to order by Chairperson 6 
Dave Lienau at 5:32 P.M. 7 
 8 
Present:  Chairperson Lienau, and members Don Howard, Marge Grutzmacher, and Nate Bell. 9 
Scott Baker arrived at 5:51 P.M. 10 
 11 
Excused:  Shane Solomon and Eric Lundquist 12 
 13 
Others:  Ron Kane, Denise Bhirdo, Kim Erzinger, Steve Musinsky and Mary Kay Shumway. 14 
 15 
Staff Members:  Village Administrator Zeke Jackson, Marketing Director Jason Polecheck and 16 
Assistant Administrator Janal Suppanz 17 
 18 
Comments, correspondence and concerns from the public: 19 
Lienau noted that no new correspondence had been received, and then asked if anyone wished 20 
to comment regarding a non-agenda item.   21 
 22 
Denise Bhirdo noted that at a previous Plan Commission Meeting there was discussion 23 
regarding creation of a Mural Code. She reviewed the Zoning Code and discovered that 24 
§66.0770(j) of that Code prohibits murals. She also indicated that she would like to attend a 25 
Finance Committee Meeting, but those meetings are generally scheduled for afternoons. Bhirdo 26 
asked if it would be possible for at least one Finance Committee Meeting to be scheduled for 27 
6:00 P.M. or later, so people who work would have an opportunity to attend. 28 
 29 
Kim Erzinger stated that he resides on Mill Road and received a parking citation which he does 30 
not believe was justified. He does intend to contest that citation. When he went to the Justice 31 
Center for his initial appearance the Clerk of Court informed him that she hadn’t received the 32 
citation yet, and, therefore, his initial appearance has been rescheduled. Erzinger does have 33 
photos of where his vehicle was parked, and he believes those photos confirm his position. 34 
Jackson requested that Erzinger schedule an appointment to discuss this matter with him ASAP. 35 
 36 
Mary Kay Shumway asked if the members of the public would be allowed to ask questions 37 
during this meeting. Lienau responded that generally speaking public comment is limited, and 38 
asked what questions Shumway would like to ask. She stated that her husband is a Deputy, and 39 
his squad car is parked in their yard on a regular basis. She is concerned that this could be 40 
deemed to be a violation of the Village’s parking regulations. 41 
 42 
Approval of the agenda: 43 
A motion was made by Howard, seconded by Grutzmacher that the Agenda for the September 44 
22, 2015 meeting of the Plan Commission be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 45 
 46 
Approval of minutes as published: 47 
As to the minutes for the August 26, 2015 meeting of the Plan Commission: 48 
A motion was made by Grutzmacher, seconded by Howard that the minutes for the August 26, 49 
2015 meeting of the Plan Commission be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 50 

188



Minutes for the September 22, 2015 Meeting of the Plan Commission 

 

 -2-  

 

Business Items: 1 
Item No. 1. Discussion regarding “Reed v. Gilbert”, and review of possible amendments to 2 
the Sister Bay Zoning Code; Consider a motion to proceed to public hearing: 3 
The Supreme Court case which is entitled “Reed v. Gilbert”, which was reviewed at the July 4 
Plan Commission Meeting, is having an impact on a number of other Court cases, and Jackson 5 
and the Village Attorney believe the Village’s Sign Code will also be impacted by that case. The 6 
Town of Gilbert, AZ has a comprehensive Sign Code which prohibits the display of outdoor 7 
signs without a permit, but exempts some categories of signs. “Ideological Signs”, defined as 8 
signs “communicating a message or ideas” that do not fit in any other Sign Code category may 9 
be up to twenty square feet in size and have no placement or time restrictions. ‘Political Signs”, 10 
which are defined as signs “designed to influence the outcome of an election” may be up to 32 11 
square feet in size and may only be displayed during an election season. “Temporary 12 
Directional Signs, defined as signs directing the public to a church or other “qualifying event”, 13 
have even greater restrictions: No more than four of the signs, limited to six square feet in size, 14 
may be on a single property at any time, and signs may be displayed no more than twelve 15 
hours before the “qualifying event” and one hour after. Good News Community Church and its 16 
pastor, Clyde Reed, whose Sunday church services are held at various temporary locations in 17 
and near the Town of Gilbert posted signs early each Saturday which bore the Church’s name 18 
and the time and location of the next service, but did not remove the signs until around midday 19 
Sunday. The Church was eventually cited for exceeding the time limits for displaying temporary 20 
directional signs and for failing to include an event date on their signs. Church leaders were 21 
unable to reach an accommodation with the Town, and, therefore, they filed suit, claiming that 22 
the Town’s Sign Code abridged their freedom of speech. The matter was ultimately referred to 23 
the U.S. Supreme Court, which held that the provisions of the Town’s “qualifying event” sign 24 
regulations are more stringent than the regulations which pertain to signs conveying other 25 
messages. The Court also held that such content-based regulations of speech cannot survive 26 
strict scrutiny, and, therefore, local government has no compelling interest to regulate them. 27 
 28 
A copy of the Village’s current Sign Code as well as research materials which were prepared by 29 
Christa Johnson, the Village’s Legal Intern, were included in the meeting packets, and the 30 
Commission members jointly reviewed all of it. Based upon the provisions of “Reed v. Gilbert” 31 
the Village will no longer be allowed to regulate sign content, but the Village will be allowed to 32 
regulate “where” signs will be allowed. Basically the entire Sign Code will have to be rewritten. 33 
In some instances businesses in the Village will be allowed to retain non-conforming pre-34 
existing signage, but it will not be possible for those signs to be replaced with like signage.  35 
 36 
Lienau noted that since this is a very complex issue, it is quite possible that a public hearing 37 
will not be scheduled this evening, and the other Commission members concurred. Further 38 
discussion will take place regarding possible Sign Code amendments at the next Plan 39 
Commission Meeting. 40 
        41 
Item No. 2. Discussion regarding §66.045 of the Zoning Code, Parking of Vehicles in 42 
Residential Districts; Consider a motion for action if necessary: 43 
A number of photos which were taken at residences and buildings throughout the Village, as 44 
well as a copy of §66.045 of the Zoning Code were included in the meeting packets, and the 45 
Commission members jointly reviewed those documents. Jackson noted that the photos depict 46 
possible violations of the provisions of §66.045 of the Zoning Code, but also pointed out that 47 
no complaints have been received about any of the items shown in the photos. It was 48 
eventually the consensus that the existing regulations shall stand.  49 
 50 

189



Minutes for the September 22, 2015 Meeting of the Plan Commission 

I:\1. 2015 Agendas\Plan Com\2015\2015_09\092215 Plan Commission Minutes - Unapproved Version.docx 
Created by Janal Suppanz on 04/28/2015; Last Printed: 10/1/2015 2:09 PM 

 -3-  

 

Item No. 3. Report by the Zoning Administrator regarding development activities, various 1 
enforcement actions, and issuance of Sign and Zoning Permit: 2 
Jackson gave the following oral report: 3 

   There are ongoing civil legal issues associated with storm water management on 4 
The Creamery property. The owner of the property has indicated that he is still 5 
waiting for a contractor to do the required work.  6 

 The Garot project has been re-bid.  7 

 Work is continuing on the development being constructed on the Old Ballfield 8 
Property. 9 

 Work is progressing quite rapidly on the Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction Project. 10 
D.O.T. officials have control over all the detour signage which is posted.   11 

 The consultants working on the Wayfinding Signage Plan have put together a 12 
preliminary plan and will be developing an on-line survey. After the survey data 13 
has been compiled the consultants will fly back up here and make another 14 
presentation. Eventually a final draft of the plan will be submitted to Village 15 
officials for consideration. 16 

 17 
Item No. 4. Discussion regarding matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred to a 18 
Committee, Official or Employee: 19 
It was the consensus that the following issues shall be addressed at a future meeting(s) of the 20 
Plan Commission: 21 

 Beacon Marine’s request to allow parking of boats on a vacant lot in a residential 22 
district. 23 

 Discussion regarding “Reed v. Gilbert”, and review of possible 24 

amendments to the Sister Bay Zoning Code. 25 
 26 
Adjournment: 27 
A motion was made by Grutzmacher, seconded by Howard to adjourn the meeting of the Plan 28 
Commission at 7:05 P.M. Motion carried – All ayes. 29 
 30 
 31 
Respectfully submitted,  32 

 33 
Janal Suppanz,  34 
Assistant Administrator 35 

190



DOOR COUNTY TOURISM ZONE  1 
COMMISSION and EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 2 

Minutes of August 20th, 2015 9:00 a.m. 3 
Town of Sevastopol, 4528 STH 57 4 

 5 
ACTION ITEMS: 6 
Dannhausen moved and Anderson seconded to approve the agenda. Motion carried. 7 

Starr moved and LeClair seconded to approve the July 16th, 2015 and July 21, 2015 minutes as submitted.  Motion 8 
carried. 9 

Nelson moved and Tice seconded to approve reports and payables plus receipts.  Motion carried  10 

Starr moved and Nelson seconded to table the Baylakes Information System contract to upgrade the DCTZC back 11 
office program.  Motion carried.  12 

Consider motion to convene into Closed Session pursuant to Wisconsin State Statutes, Section 19.85(1)(a)(f) or (g) 13 
to confer with legal counsel for the governmental body who is rendering oral or written advice concerning strategy 14 
to be adopted by the body with respect to litigation in which it is or likely to become involved; to wit: enforcement 15 
actions against lodging providers who have failed to obtain lodging permits and to timely remit monthly room tax 16 
report and tax payments. Nelson moved to convene into Closed Session as per statutes named; LeClair seconded. 17 
Motion carried.  18 

Nelson moved to reconvene into Open Session; Anderson seconded. Motion carried. 19 

Weddig moved and Olsen seconded that Roberts take action and proceed as directed regarding delinquent 20 
properties and pursue action as advised. Motion carried. 21 

Dannhausen moved to adjourn; LeClair seconded. Motion carried.  22 

Committee Members Present by Roll Call: Mary Boston, Bryan Nelson, Mike Johnson, Fred Anderson, Josh Van 23 
Lieshout, Myles Dannhausen, Nancy Robillard, Bill Weddig, Elizabeth LeClair, Cathy Ward, Tom Olsen, Chuck Tice, 24 
Bob Starr, and Linda Elmore. 25 

Excused:  Dick Skare, Jeff Larson, Pam Seiler and Richard Briggs. 26 

Absent: Dave Holtz, Keith Krist, Nora Zacek, Zeke Jackson and Deb Jeanquart. 27 

Also in Attendance:  Michelle Rasmussen/DCVB, Jon Jarosh/DCVB, Jack Moneypenny/DCVB, Dianne 28 
Lensert/Kerber Rose, and Kim Roberts /Administrative Assistant DCTZC 29 

Call to Order 30 
Chair Van Lieshout called the meeting to order at 9:03 AM. 31 

Approval of the Agenda 32 
Dannhausen moved and Anderson seconded to approve the agenda. Motion carried. 33 

Starr moved and LeClair seconded to approve the July 16th, 2015 and July 21, 2015 minutes as submitted.  Motion 34 
carried. 35 

Report by the Door County Visitor Bureau on Marketing Efforts 36 
Moneypenny addressed the Commission concerning their ad agency of record.  He went on to say that the DCVB served 37 
notice to their agency of record, Zizzo group on July 15, 2015 with a sixty (60) day notice, September 14, 2015 will be the 38 
end date for Zizzo.  He added that there were differences in viewpoints.  Belter Lincoln, whose focus is tourism centric 39 
advertising and comes highly recommended, will be the new advertising agency for the DCVB, Moneypenny said. He 40 
added that they have been the agency of record for the Wisconsin Dells for a long time.  He went on to say that they 41 
would be meeting with the new group today, to work on the Strategic Plan for 2016. 42 

Rasmussen said performance in July was strong on the website as the site continues to settle and search engines indexed 43 
the new pages.  Rasmussen went on to say that the "Book It Now" button was up eighty (80%) and the e-newsletter letter 44 
had a thirty two point nine (32.9%) percent open rate.  The most clicked on items from the e-newsletter blast and through 45 
the website were the "20 Best Spots for Sunrises and Sunsets" and the header image of "See Yourself on Washington 46 
Island" which was the second most clicked on from the blast.  Social media was the biggest driver to the website with 47 
plenty of fun with the "See Your Selfie in our light" contest.  The "So Delicious So Door County" campaign is underway 48 

191



with brochures being distributed.  The Visitor Guide contracts are out for 2016.  The winter guide will be distributed in 1 
time for Labor Day weekend. 2 

Rasmussen reported that Trail Genius has continued to map Door County; most recently completing Peninsula State Park 3 
and area marinas.  She went on to discuss working on the Strategic Plan with Bay Lakes Information Systems (BLIS) and 4 
the database management team; BLIS will be assisting with the Strategic Plan by working through the data collected 5 
through the zip code program. 6 

Moneypenny added that the zip code program gives the DCVB how far reservations out were booked and the zip codes to 7 
work through with the media team.  They look to see if the same areas are still worth advertising dollars or if there are 8 
new “heat bubbles”.   Moneypenny said that the program has been running for (2) years and said that BLIS did a great job 9 
with the creation of the program and it was interesting to see new reaches this year on the map from New York to Florida.  10 
Moneypenny reminded everyone that the program only provides data on zip codes and actualized reservations, he stressed  11 
the personal information in relation to  the reservation is confidential.  Nelson added that this was voluntary anonymous 12 
sharing of information by BLIS customers.   13 

Jarosh that the data from the zip code program is phenomenal, other tourism areas are envious, we are lucky to have the 14 
information as a tool to target and use funds, he said. 15 

Jarosh reported that in July twenty (20) articles were reported as result of the media marketing program and reached just 16 
about thirty one million (31,000,000) readers/listeners/viewers.  Since the media marketing began, the program has 17 
generated almost fourteen ($14,000,000) million worth of earned media coverage for Door County, including one hundred 18 
sixty eight thousand five hundred twenty dollars ($168,520) for July.  The return on investment for the media marketing 19 
program to date is eight hundred eighty nine percent (889%).  For every dollar spent, we’ve gotten back nine dollars ($9) 20 
worth of earned media coverage measured in terms of ad value equivalency.  21 

Jarosh went on to say that eighteen (18) journalists were welcomed to Door County on a cherry themed press trip July 27-22 
30; Lautenbach and Seaquist orchards were visited to name a few.  Three (3) more press trips are scheduled: silent sports, 23 
photography and a fall themed trips. 24 

Jarosh mentioned that assistance was provided in July to the Wisconsin Department of Tourism with filming a discover 25 
Wisconsin TV episode that will highlight Washington Island and Rock Island State Park.  The episode is now in post-26 
production and is scheduled to premiere the weekend of February 20-21, 2016 on broadcast and cable networks in eight 27 
(8) states across the Midwest.  Jarosh added that there will be a premiere party on Washington Island in November. 28 

Jarosh finalized his report by updating the Commission with the Capture Door County program.  To date, more than 29 
twenty one thousand (21,000) photos have been entered /uploaded by three thousand three hundred forty one (3,341) 30 
users.  Currently, in 2015, seven thousand six hundred (7,600) photos have been entered in the current book contest, 31 
which runs through the end of the year.  The photo book, Seasons Behind the Door, will be published in the spring of 32 
2016. 33 

Moneypenny asked if the DCVB audit went out to everyone in their packets the previous month.  Roberts replied yes.  34 
Moneypenny went on to ask if there were any questions; he said that it was a clean audit with the gift certificate program 35 
balanced out. There were no questions. 36 

Report from Administrative Assistant on current activities, projects and issues associated with permitting new 37 
members. 38 
Roberts reported that she sent out eighty six (86) no report letters for the report month of May on July 10th, 2015.   She 39 
added that as of August 11th, 2015, nine (9) properties remain to report for May 2015.  Roberts went on to say that 40 
because the August meeting fell a bit later in month she was able to report on June.  She said that she sent out fifty three 41 
(53) no report letters for the report month of June on August 14th, 2015.    42 

The total outstanding due in unpaid taxes, fees and penalties is one thousand two hundred fifty five dollars and thirty one 43 
cents ($1,255.31) from three (3) permit holders.  She noted that of the total due, one thousand two hundred fifteen dollars 44 
and fifty cents ($1,215.50) was ACH rejects (errors in entering payment information when filing online which caused the 45 
payment to be rejected by the permit holder’s bank). 46 

Roberts said that she had permitted eight (8) new properties since the meeting in July.  She added that she was working on 47 
ten (10) unpermitted properties that are advertising online.   48 

Roberts followed up on the Airbnb discussion from the July meeting in which Roberts said she reported that there was 49 
now a list on the Airbnb website in which areas where Occupancy Tax and Remittance were required.  Roberts reported 50 
that she first tried emailing Airbnb and got a standard response asking her to read the help information on the site.  She 51 

192



said that she then did some research and found a contact number and was able to talk to a representative.  She read he 1 
notes from the phone call “Finally tracked down a person, Eddie, at Airbnb who was extremely helpful.  He put my on hold for 2 
about ten minutes.  He reported back that the listing of cities that Airbnb would be collecting and remitting taxes in locations would 3 
happen city by city.   Of note, a lot of these cities have been involved in legal fights regarding this very issue.  Eddie, the customer 4 
service representative, said Airbnb still had a lot of details to iron out and wasn’t sure how quickly the process would happen.  He 5 
looked into Wisconsin specifically and said nothing was on their radar.  He stressed that there were no plans for any cities or 6 
municipalities in Wisconsin; there is no time frame.  He stressed that ultimately it is the host, not Airbnb, who is responsible to be 7 
aware of the local taxes and make sure that they are paid. “  8 

Starr said we don't dispute the fact that the ultimate responsibility falls to the host.  Roberts agreed, but said she felt it would be 9 
beneficial to be on the Airbnb site as part of the list of where “Occupancy tax and remittance is required”.  She asked if she should 10 
keep calling or if she should involve Vande Castle as this point.  Van Lieshout replied that because Airbnb is listing by municipality 11 
where occupancy and tax is required, we should ask the municipalities to contact Airbnb so that we get on their radar. 12 

Nelson asked Anderson if he was aware of any Wisconsin Hotel and Lodging Association (WH&LA) activity regarding Airbnb. 13 

Anderson said no. 14 

Nelson said that American Hotel and Lodging Association (AH&LA) is working on the Airbnb issue and thought that Roberts should 15 
follow up with them.   16 
Tice asked is Airbnb was being sued.  17 

Nelson replied that there have been actions all over the country.   18 

Tice said that we should be trying to join any pending class action suit(s).   19 

Dannhausen asked how the statute was defined in Wisconsin.  If someone pays room tax isn't the DCTZC obligated to promote or 20 
market the property.  21 
No said, Van Lieshout, we aren’t promoting anyone that is the job of the marketing entity.  He went on to say that the DCTZC’s only 22 
obligation to marketing is the collection of money and the distribution of the money to our marketing entity.  In terms of marketing it 23 
goes to the DCVB so it can be spent as marketing dollars.  Properties are not promoted individually. 24 

Dannhausen stressed that the organization started as promoting hotels and now promotes hotels, motels, B&B’s.  He added that now 25 
we have a situation in Door County where people can't afford their second homes and are using Airbnb as a rental service.  He asked, 26 
where we draw the line when someone rents a bed.   27 
Starr, Van Lieshout and Nelson responded you don't.  28 

It goes to the State statue, said Nelson. 29 

Starr said there is your line.   30 

Van Lieshout said individual property marketing comes down to the marketing entity and membership.   31 

Dannhausen said sooner or later everything will be a rental; the occupancy will be spread out over a broader base.  32 

Nelson said it is simply our job to collect and remit the taxes.  Anyone renting a room for less than thirty days collects is required to 33 
collect and remit the tax.  It is not the DCTZC job to direct the growth, decline or any trend in Door County; our job is to collect the 34 
taxes.   35 

Weddig said it may come down to zoning.  36 

R1 and R2, said Starr, are the defined areas in Sturgeon Bay as it relates to transient lodging zoning.  Starr added that some of the 37 
zoning may be unenforceable with some new state laws that might render the zoning unenforceable. 38 

Van Lieshout said we got on this topic because Tice suggested we commence litigation.  Van Lieshout said he doesn't agree with the 39 
solution being litigation.  Given the balance sheet, the commitment to upgrading the back office system and commitments to the 40 
DCVB, Van Lieshout said he felt there isn’t the money for a prolonged litigation.   41 

Starr said that Tice has a point that it may be beneficial to explore if there are any pending suits that could be joined.  42 

Van Lieshout said that we can afford to do that.   43 

Starr said we can investigate if there is an appropriate action to join and it wouldn't obligate us to a ton of litigation.   He suggested we 44 
explore and research something that would accomplish our goals of getting Airbnb to recognize that there are situations where the tax 45 
should be collected and their structure should be set up to facilitate that.   46 

Van Lieshout asked Roberts to contact the attorney to provide the Commission with information.  47 

Nelson added that Roberts should contact the AH&LA for their input. 48 

193



Roberts noted that she had followed up with Vande Castle regarding a requested opinion from the July meeting and she had not yet 1 
had a response regarding the issue of final responsibility when it comes to liquidated rooms by third parties.  These third parties may 2 
unknowingly market and advertise a property or unit without an owner’s knowledge and is becoming more common. 3 

Discussion on Current Comparable Occupancy numbers  4 
Lensert commented this was the month that numbers were re-run, all columns through May have been re-run and 5 
allocated.  She went on to say that June was up 1%, however with the amount out there still to report, there is more to 6 
come in.  She noted that there were more available units than June 2015 and the ADR was up as well.  7 

Statistical numbers were also all re-run, said Lensert.  There was a negative adjustment under Sister Bay due to an ACH 8 
reject, said Lensert.  On the larger payments, if there is any issue, we wait to collect before dispersing the money. 9 

Consideration of approving reports and payables plus receipts 10 
Nelson moved and Tice seconded to approve reports and payables plus receipts.  Motion carried. 11 

Report from Commissioners on feedback from local boards on recent issues. 12 
Dannhausen commented on the recent power outage and suggested that there was a necessity for better pubic information.  13 

Van Lieshout said that it was an issue and it should be worked on.  He had heard that as well. 14 

Nelson added that he found the WPS website was accurate and had good information to pass on in real time to customers.  15 

Rasmussen said you could also follow the DCVB online with live information updates via social feeds from WPS and the 16 
DCVB. 17 

Dannhausen said that it was difficult; you don't want guests to leave, but need good reliable information for them to stay.  18 
On the lodging end it comes to their health and safety.  With food service, he felt there was only a four (4) hour window 19 
before establishments needed to find alternative solutions for food safety.  All these things dictate a program for public 20 
information for the service industry and guest in Door County. 21 

The other thing, Dannhausen said, was that traffic was backed up and there was no system to bypass.  EMS was not and 22 
should not be responsible for the traffic flow, but there is a leadership question that needs to be answered and didn't know 23 
who should take the lead. 24 

Van Lieshout replied that in the Village of Egg Harbor, there is an emergency operations plan and that everyone should 25 
have one and he said that he hoped that everyone else did.   Every municipality including the County has a level of 26 
responsibility.  Individual property owners have a responsibility as well.  Dan Williams is the person to talk to the County 27 
and to speak with Moneypenny to come up with a DCVB response plan to aid in getting information out, replied Van 28 
Lieshout. 29 

LeClair commented that in Jacksonport the EMS was out directing detours, offering shelter at the town hall and clearing 30 
debris with chainsaws.  She stresses that each municipality has to have a plan and respond accordingly. 31 

Nelson said that it sounded like the DCVB did respond through their Facebook page by repeating what the WPS page 32 
said.  33 

Rasmussen said that they have their tentacles out there with the utilities and other lodging providers and it was 34 
communicated through their social feeds. 35 

Van Lieshout took the opportunity to welcome Cathy Ward from the Town of Liberty Grove, to the Commission as she 36 
asked to speak.  Ward suggested that everyone visit the WPS Facebook page or use their "app".  She went on to say this 37 
was so hopeful when informing the SAGBRAW riders, (about four hundred (400) people) with plans.  She went on to say 38 
that the riders asked Kalms about the Liberty Grove plan for emergency scenarios; he had to think about it. She stressed 39 
the importance of running the scenarios that could happen and coming up with a plan.  40 

 41 

Discussion of Bay Lakes Information Upgrade Contract 42 
Van Lieshout advised the Commission that he had questions about the terms of the contract and asked for the Commission 43 
to table the item. Starr moved and Nelson seconded to table the Bay Lakes Information Contract discussion. Motion 44 
carried. 45 

Follow Up from Attorney Vande Castle regarding the Amendment to the local room tax ordinance 46 
Roberts advised that Tice had a great question about the clarification of the terms used within the agreement.  She updated 47 
the Commission that it was now clear that we are amending the Ordinance first and we will later have to amend the 48 
Intergovernmental Agreement, per Vande Castle.  Van Lieshout thanked Tice for asking the question. 49 

194



Consider motion to convene into Closed Session pursuant to Wisconsin State Statutes, Section 19.85(1)(a)(f) or (g) 1 
to confer with legal counsel for the governmental body who is rendering oral or written advice concerning strategy 2 
to be adopted by the body with respect to litigation in which it is or likely to become involved; to wit: enforcement 3 
actions against lodging providers who have failed to obtain lodging permits and to timely remit monthly room tax 4 
report and tax payments. Nelson moved to convene into Closed Session as per statutes named; LeClair seconded. 5 
Motion carried 6 

CLOSED SESSION 7 

Consider a Motion to Reconvene into Open Session 8 
Nelson moved to reconvene into Open Session; Anderson seconded. Motion carried. 9 

Consider a motion to take action, if required. 10 
Weddig moved and Olsen seconded that Roberts take action and proceed with consulting Attorney Vande Castle 11 
regarding delinquent properties and pursue action as advised. Motion carried. 12 

Van Lieshout asked that the members of the Commission to take the time to respond to the Meeting Wizard requests sent 13 
from the office, so that there is an idea of how many members will be attending meetings and if we will have a quorum. 14 

Adjournment 15 

Dannhausen moved to adjourn; LeClair seconded. Motion carried.  16 

 17 
Respectfully submitted, 18 
 19 

 20 
Kim Roberts 21 
Administrative Assistant 22 
 23 

195



DOOR COUNTY TOURISM ZONE  1 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 2 

Minutes of September 17th, 2015 3 
Village of Egg Harbor, Bertschinger Center, 7860 STH 42 4 

 5 
ACTION ITEMS: 6 
Weddig moved and Nelson seconded to approve the agenda. Motion carried. 7 

Nelson moved and Starr seconded to approve the August 20th, 2015 Full Commission minutes as 8 
submitted. Motion carried 9 

Nelson moved and LeClair seconded to approve Kerber Rose Reports, Payables, and Receipts to 10 
Date. Motion carried. 11 

Starr moved and Skare seconded to recommend moving the Administrative Assistant position 12 
to full time beginning with the 2016 budget to the Full Commission. Motion carried. 13 

Starr moved and Skare seconded to convene into Closed Session pursuant to Wisconsin State 14 
Statutes, Section 19.85(1)(a)(f) or (g) to confer with legal counsel for the government body who 15 
is rendering oral or written advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with respect to 16 
litigation in which it is or likely to become involved to wit: enforcement actions against lodging 17 
providers who have failed to obtain lodging permits and to timely remit monthly room tax 18 
report and tax payments. Motion carried. 19 

Nelson moved and Skare seconded to reconvene into Open Session. Motion carried. 20 

Skare moved and Weddig seconded that Roberts should proceed with advising Attorney Vande 21 
Castle to proceed as directed in Closed Session.  Motion carried. 22 

Skare moved and Starr seconded to adjourn. Motion carried. 23 
Committee Members Present by Roll Call: Bryan Nelson, Elizabeth LeClair, Bill Weddig, Dick 24 
Skare, Bob Starr and Dave Holtz. 25 

Also in Attendance: Dianne Lensert/Kerber Rose and Kim Roberts/Administrative Assistant. 26 

Excused: Josh Van Lieshout 27 

Call to Order 28 
Skare called the meeting to order at 9:03 a.m. 29 

Approval of the Agenda 30 
Weddig moved and Nelson seconded to approve the agenda. Motion carried. 31 

Approval of the Meeting Minutes from August 20th, 2015 32 
Nelson moved and Starr seconded to approve the August 20th, 2015 Full Commission minutes as 33 
submitted. Motion carried 34 

Report by the Door County Visitor Bureau on Marketing Efforts and Quarterly Report 35 
The DCVB was not in attendance for the meeting, but the consensus was everyone was happy with 36 
the nice increase in July numbers.  Nelson said that he was hearing about increases across the 37 
board including restaurants.  Nobody is crying this year, he said.  Skare agreed and the only issue 38 
is having enough help to handle the increased business. 39 

Skare added that he heard about Act 55 from the Wisconsin Town’s Association and asked Roberts 40 
if she got his message.   He wanted to know if anyone had been exploring this. Roberts said yes, 41 
that signed State Budget is being referred to as Act 55.  Skare noted that there may be some 42 
changes to promotion and development specifically including chain hotels because they would not 43 
be an individual owner in a town or municipality; he wondered if Moneypenny was aware of this.   44 

196



Starr said it takes time to see how changes affect everyone and that we should continue to keep an 1 
eye on things.  2 

Roberts added that she has been watching for analysis and noted the WH&LA has done a great job 3 
keeping up with updates and how they affect those collecting room taxes.  Skare said that he 4 
would forward the Towns Association analysis to Roberts to review.  5 

Le Clair asked if there was anything about credit card fees.   6 

Weddig felt it would be interesting for the larger chains in Sturgeon Bay and how it may affect 7 
how promotion and development is defined.  8 

Nelson said “chain” would have to be defined as there are owners who have multiple properties in 9 
Door County. 10 

Starr said not to get to worried; eventually we will acquire the changes and be able to see the 11 
ramifications.  He added that we just need to stay plugged in.  12 

Roberts mentioned that various associations are doing training sessions with regard to the changes 13 
in the budget that have affected room tax.   14 

Report from the Administrative Assistant on current activities and issues associated with 15 
permitting new members. 16 
Roberts reported that she sent out fifty three (53) no report letter for the month of June and as of 17 
September 8th, 2015 the (10) properties remained to report.  She went on to say that she had just 18 
completed July no reports and had sent out fifty seven (57); she felt with that many remaining to 19 
report for July there should be an increase to be seen on the six (6%) percent growth in July. 20 

Roberts said that the total outstanding due as of September 8th, 2015 was one thousand one 21 
hundred forty one dollars and fifty two cents ($1,141.52) from eight permit holders. She noted that 22 
of the total, only two hundred forty nine and seventy seven cents ($249.77) was late fees, penalties 23 
or unpaid tax.  The remaining eight hundred ninety one dollars and seventy five cents is legal fees 24 
due by a permit holder.  She went on to say that as of September 15th, 2015 two hundred twenty 25 
four and forty two cents ($224.42) remained to be collected aside from the legal fees. 26 

Roberts reported that she had permitted ten (10) properties since August reporting; six (6) of which 27 
were permitted through compliance channels. She went on to say that she is currently working on 28 
seventeen (17) unpermitted properties. 29 

Roberts thanked Starr for the advice to ask Holly in Real Property Listings for help in tracking 30 
down time share owners.  Roberts said that she was able to get quite a few properties sorted out, 31 
but that Holly had said the process was harder than she thought it would be.  She advised Roberts 32 
to work with the Register of Deeds. 33 

Starr recommended asking Holly for disks of all the properties in Door County so Roberts could 34 
do the searching herself.  35 

Roberts agreed.  She explained that Meadow Ridge listings have increased due to the increased 36 
amount of assessments and higher management fees.   37 

Starr said to ask for a list of owners on a disk of all time share or partial ownership so that Roberts 38 
can do the research. 39 

As requested, Roberts said, membership information for the American Hotel and Lodging 40 
Association (AH&LA) and the Wisconsin Hotel and Lodging Association (WH&LA) were included 41 
in her report.  She noted that the membership fees for the (AH&LA) were three thousand dollars 42 
($3,000) a year.  Roberts did not feel that the Commission would get enough out of the 43 
membership to make the cost worthwhile.  She went on to say a lot of the valuable information is 44 
available online through their site.  Roberts added that the WH&LA was working on a 45 

197



membership for organizations such as the DCTZC and noted that Pugal has said that it should be 1 
available in November. 2 

Roberts advised the Committee that the surplus funds check was distributed to the DCVB on 3 
August 25th, 2015 in the amount of fifty two thousand dollars ($52,000). 4 

Follow up regarding Airbnb and the AH&LA State and Local Government Affairs Department. 5 
Roberts reported that she had contacted the AH&LA Local Government Affairs Department to inquire 6 
if there were any current class action law suits against Airbnb.  She added that she included the 7 
response from Troy Flanagan, Vice President of State and Legal Affairs for the AH&LA.  His 8 
perspective was that they agreed that all short term rentals should operate on a level playing field, 9 
including and not limited to the collection and remittance of room taxes.  He added that earlier in the 10 
summer, the Federal Trade Commission looked into this issue as part of a workshop in the “Sharing 11 
Economy”.  He included a link to the public statement from the AH&LA in his email response.  He 12 
added at this point they were not aware of any class action laws suits involving municipalities. He also 13 
noted that he had included Pugal of the WH&LA in the conversation to see if she was aware of 14 
anything on the local level. 15 

Roberts went on to say that she had asked the same of Attorney Vande Castle.  And as of yet she had 16 
not heard a response from him.  Roberts also reviewed with the Committee the current pending items 17 
with Attorney Vande Castle.   18 

Weddig was concerned that the Baylakes Information Systems (BLIS) contract had not yet been 19 
returned from Attorney Vande Castle.  He didn’t want the delay the project delayed which would 20 
cause bad timing and not be completed before the 2016 season.   21 

Starr and Skare stressed that Roberts communicate that time was of the essence with the pending items 22 
for the DCTZC. 23 

Weddig wanted to make sure that there is a threshold for average daily rates when the work is 24 
completed by BLIS.  He went on to say that as Kerber Rose enters reporting there needs to be a 25 
programming feature that indicates if the ADR is too low.  26 

Roberts said that Justin at BLIS said that would not be hard to do; it would be up to the Commission to 27 
determine what that threshold for ADR would be.   28 

Discussion of letter to municipalities regarding Airbnb 29 
Roberts said that during the August meeting it was discussed that a letter to the municipalities be 30 
drafted asking each one to call Airbnb to get Door County on their radar so that Door County 31 
would be listed among the other municipalities on the Airbnb website that required permitting 32 
and remittance of room tax.   33 

Nelson felt it looked good to him.   34 

Weddig felt that we should use the current letter as a cover letter to each municipality to explain 35 
the situation and include a letter for each municipality to sign and send in.  He felt that there stood 36 
a better chance of a letter being signed that was already done for them as opposed to asking each 37 
municipality to make a phone call.  It would be the best way for the perspective of Door County to 38 
be communicated clearly and consistently if a letter was drafted for the clerks or town chairs to 39 
sign.   40 

Le Clair suggested that there be a timeline so that they all arrive in a window of time to make a 41 
bigger statement.  All agreed for Roberts to draft a letter to Airbnb for the municipalities to sign 42 
and use the current letter as a cover letter to explain the situation. 43 

Starr asked if the problem was that Airbnb users simply don’t know about the need of permitting 44 
and reporting.  That was the consensus.  Starr asked if there was a better way.   45 

198



Roberts said this is something she thinks about all the time.  She went on to say that we put notices 1 
in the local papers and notices in with property taxes, but if property taxes are paid via a lender, 2 
the property owner would never see that notice. 3 

Starr wondered about a marketing campaign to help get the word out to benefit more exposure to 4 
the requirements, on a continuing basis in a positive way to educate the public.   5 

Roberts said more often than not when she hears from un-permitted people that she finds and  6 
explains what the tax does for Door County, their municipality and that it is a pass through tax, 7 
they take a sigh of relief and say they don’t have a problem with that.  Roberts felt education 8 
would be great and possibly change the view of what the DCTZC does.  9 

Starr asked if was time to consider another way of educating about the requirements of transient 10 
rental.  He went on to say that repetition with a consistent marketing campaign may yield good 11 
results.  All agreed.  Starr went on to say that there are a number of local advertising agencies that 12 
could put together such a campaign.  With all in agreement Starr asked Roberts to discuss the idea 13 
with Van Lieshout and recommended a line item on the budget for a marketing campaign for 2016.   14 

Weddig asked if we should be asking real estate agents to provide permitting information to their 15 
clients at the closing of their real estate transaction.  Starr felt that might be hard to achieve, he felt 16 
that there would be a better chance of asking local title companies to do so.  Roberts felt that it 17 
couldn’t hurt to ask. 18 

Discussion of Current Comparable Occupancy Numbers  19 
Lensert said that there were happy faces all around with the July being up 6.2%.  She added that 20 
July was a big month to see that kind of increase and that it really affect year to date numbers. 21 

Starr said that he had lost his ability in feeling confident in the long term, but said it would be 22 
wonderful if this was a trend, and a sustainable one.  His concern was what the numbers would 23 
look like for next year and his hope that this is a trend.  24 

Nelson agreed and said we’ve had seventy (70) months of growth, but that recession feels like it 25 
happened yesterday.  He agreed your confidence does get shaken.   26 

Skare said we would know a lot at 2 pm eastern.  Starr said that will be a telling sign. Weddig 27 
agreed and said it would be interesting if rates were increased (discussion referred to the Federal 28 
Reserve announcement regarding interest rates).   29 

Weddig asked how much of the increase was due to ADR.  30 

Lensert pointed out occupancy was up and there were properties still to report.   31 

Holtz added there were less rooms available than last year.  32 

Lensert said that on the check listing there was the distribution check to the DCVB from the 33 
surplus funds. 34 

Nelson moved and LeClair seconded to approve Kerber Rose Reports, Payables, and Receipts to 35 
Date. Motion carried. 36 

Report from Commissioners on Feedback from Local Boards on Recent Issues 37 
Nothing was reported from local boards. 38 

Preliminary 2016 Budget Discussion 39 
Lensert said that she had provided the initial budget for a preliminary discussion of the 2016 40 
budget.  She said the following items were still to be determined: hours and rate of pay for the 41 
Administrative Assistant, what to plan for 2016 and whether it should be planned flat to be 42 
conservative and any project items need to be determined.  She added that the DCTZC is still 43 
running positive and not coming close to the revenue coming in. 44 

Weddig asked where the Baylakes Information System (BLIS) upgrade project was budgeted. 45 

199



Lensert said that that item would show up on the balance sheet as it was a surplus payout.  Nelson 1 
said it will show on the balance sheet showing as a special payout for a project. 2 

Skare asked how soon Lensert would need a number for marketing.   3 

Lensert said the budget came up early this year due to the move of Van Lieshout and the 4 
discussion of making the Administrate Assistant position full time.  And normally we don’t look at 5 
the budget until November. 6 

Nelson added that they were in the middle of the discussion of expanding the role of Roberts and 7 
there had been a meeting in which the Ad-Hoc Committee recommended to the Executive 8 
Committee to expand the position.  He went on to say that Roberts was interested in the expanded 9 
hours and appreciated her willingness to do so. 10 

Roberts reviewed her current responsibilities along with presenting the original job description 11 
from her hire in 2012.  She then reviewed with the Committee how she saw the additional time 12 
being used. 13 

Skare added that the DCTZC has always been lucky to have an administrator to run the 14 
Commission, but there was a need to have a full time professional. 15 

Skare asked Roberts if she was willing to do full time. 16 

Roberts replied yes. 17 

Skare felt that it was important to have a professional full time in the position; we won’t have a 18 
Kufrin and Van Lieshout forever.  19 

Nelson felt it is significant to have someone full time driving the organization with the chairs 20 
influence. 21 

Weddig felt that the title needed to be changed so that she would have the respect with the 22 
interactions with permit holders and so on. 23 

Nelson recommended that the Executive Committee plan for the 2016 budget for the 24 
Administrative Assistant to be full time and bring the item to the Full Commission. 25 

LeClair said the item has been on the table and discussed and it was time to get it done. 26 

Weddig said that Roberts has demonstrated her ability and the additional hours would pay for 27 
themselves. 28 

Nelson added that Roberts has grown and created the position it is today.  He added that she has 29 
documented a level of professionalism different that an Administrative Assistant. 30 

Starr moved and Skare seconded to recommend moving the Administrative Assistant position 31 
to full time beginning with the 2016 budget to the Full Commission. Motion carried. 32 

Starr moved and Skare seconded to convene into Closed Session pursuant to Wisconsin State 33 
Statutes, Section 19.85(1)(a)(f) or (g) to confer with legal counsel for the government body who 34 
is rendering oral or written advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with respect to 35 
litigation in which it is or likely to become involved to wit: enforcement actions against lodging 36 
providers who have failed to obtain lodging permits and to timely remit monthly room tax 37 
report and tax payments. Motion passed carried. 38 

Nelson moved and Skare seconded to reconvene into Open Session. Motion carried. 39 

Skare moved and Weddig seconded that Roberts should proceed with advising Attorney Vande 40 
Castle to proceed as directed in Closed Session.  Motion carried. 41 

Skare moved and Starr seconded to adjourn. Motion carried. 42 
 43 

200



Respectfully submitted, 1 
 2 
Kim Roberts 3 
Administrative Assistant 4 

201


	03c 2014 CMAR.pdf
	Influent Flow and Loading
	Effluent Quality and Plant Performance (BOD/CBOD)
	Effluent Quality and Plant Performance (Total Suspended Solids)
	Effluent Quality and Plant Performance (Phosphorus)
	Biosolids Quality and Management
	Staffing and Preventative Maintenance (All Treatment Plants)
	Operator Certification and Education
	Financial Management
	Sanitary Sewer Collection Systems
	Grading Summary
	Resolution or Owner's Statement

	04c 62-Chapter 62 Utilities Code 091515 draft.pdf
	Section 62.1 General Intent.
	Section 62.2-4 Reserved.
	Section 62.5 Sewer and Water System Requirements; Management Operation and Control.
	Section 62.6 Sewer and Water User Rules and Regulations.
	Section 62.7 Sewer Connection Fees.
	Section 62.8 Water Connection Fee.
	Section 62.9 User Charge System.
	Section 62.10 Payment of Charges.
	Section 62.11 Control of High Strength Waste and Septage Wastes.
	Section 62.12-14 Reserved.
	Section 62.15 Violations and Penalties.
	Section 62.16 Definitions.
	Section 62.17-19 Reserved.
	Section 62.20 Establishment of Impact Fees
	Section 62.21 Definitions
	Section 62.22 Documentation
	Section 62.23 Revenues
	Section 62.24 Time Limit for Expenditures
	Section 62.25 Payment of Impact Fees
	Section 62.26 Installment Payments
	Section 62.27 Appeals
	Section 62.28 Impact Fee Amounts




